Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS
PRIVATE LIMITED {(the "Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended. and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the hest of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and farr view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2023, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit cpinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matlers that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statemente nf the rirrent period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the its as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report. but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financia)
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud

or error,

In prepanng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for company's financia! reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis f our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financiai control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's abliity to continue as a going concern If we conciude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to dre attention (n gur audior's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in ti nents that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economit asonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influence lantitative materiality and
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qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with goveinance we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financtal statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A’ a siatement on the matters
specified in paragra s 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extenl apphcabie.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary foi the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act reac with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on record by it ctors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, g appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the
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f. Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financ.al statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
eflectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

g. In our opinion and toc the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respact to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2020

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commentng on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise

i) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that. to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds! by the company to or
in any other person{(s) or entty(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any inanner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented. that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes {o the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the hke on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneftciaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
{b) contain any material mis-statement

v) The company has not declared or paic during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section npanies Act, 2013.
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h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors Regont under Section
197{16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the nformation and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 187 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIH1838
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(i)

(i}

(i)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’'s Report”

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under '‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

of even date)

(a) {A) The company dces not have Property, Plant and Equipment so this clause is not
applicable.
(B} The Company does not have any intangible assets.

{b) Since there is no Property, Plant & Equipment, so the point of verification does not arise.
(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause :s not applicable.

(d) The company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) ' intangible assets or both during the year, hence revaluation is not required as this
clause is not applicable.

(e} None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Pronibit.ony Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

{(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonuable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verificaticn by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore this clause is not applicable

The company has not made any investments and not provided any guarantee or security or
has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
(a) The company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity

(A} As the company has not provided any loans and advances to subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates so this clause is not applicable.

{B} As the company has not provided any loans and advances to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates so this clause is not applicable.

(b) The investments made are not prejudicial to the company’s interest,

{c) Since the company has not given any loans and advances therefore there is no
requirement for preparing any schedule.

{d) Since the company has not given any loans and advances therefore no reasonable
steps are required to be taken by the company.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan grantec ilen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or no fresh granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same partie
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{v)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or peiiod ! repayment.

The company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees and security, therefore the
compliance of provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Comparizs Act, 2013 is not
required.

No deposits were accepted by the company or amounts which arc¢ ducmned to be deposits,
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the pic.tsions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and tne r.c¢s made thereunder,
are not applicable to the company.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not appiicable to the company.

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues ncluding Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax s.ales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any othe( statutory dues to the
appropnate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more tharn six ‘Tonths from the date
they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have 10t been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

{b) The company has not applied for any term loans.

(c) The company has not raised any funds on short term or iong term purposes.

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or persci. ©- account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

(e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the piedge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or futhe: public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does ot arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private piacement of shares or

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the comp ticed or reported
during the year.
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(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

{xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of repurting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central
Government;

(c) There were no whistle-blower comptaints, received during the year by the company.
The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the compliance of this > ause is not required.

There are no such transactions with the related parties hence the ccmphance of this clause
is not required.

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system commens.rate with the size and
nature of its business;

{b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the 1eports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 uf Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A ¢f the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

{b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Cenrtificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

{c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as cefinzd in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, s0 it does not require to fulfil the critena of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of rcaiisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowiedge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no materal uncenainty exists as on the dite of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at th ce sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balanc
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(xx)

(xxi)

{a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with se.and proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;

{b) No amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section *35 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARQ) reports of the conpa-ies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm -—= *'=- "24428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIH1838
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Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner B ng, B/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kotkata 700001
CIN: U25209WR1998PTCOREB083
{In Rupees hundrads)
Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Note 315t Mar, 2023 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
Non-turrent assets
Financial Assets
Other financial assets 2 1,187,060 1,187.04
Total Non Current Assets 1,187.06 1,187.06

Current assets
Inventones 3 1,327,680.76 1,327 680.76
Financial Assets

Trade receivables 4 424322 38 23,185.49
Cash and cash eguivalents 5 3,586.64 4,090.10
Other Bank Baiances 6 16,212 74 15,448 18
Other Tinancial Assets 2 73,238.02 69,3/7.52
Qther current assets 7 58.70 7,46201
Total Current Assets 1463 304 34 1447 244 08
Total Assets : _ s
£QUITY ¢ LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 8 110,360.00 110,360.00
Other Equity 9 1,013,05.2.86 924, 406.48
Total equity 1,123,452 86 1,034,766.48
Liabilities
Nan-current liabilities
Financial Liabrlities
Other finanaial habilities 10 6,962.40 6,216.43
Other Mon current liahilities 13 16,951.76 182,492 83
Total non-current liabilities B 23,914.16 24,?05.26_
Current liabilities
Financiai Liabsditres
Barrowings 11 79,238.82 148.458.40
Trade and other payables
dues of micro & small enterprises; 12
dues of creditors other than MSME 13 5,723.77 5,975 10
Other current liabiities 13 227.284.85 2431,984.51
Prowvisions 14 4,781.85 2,534.2B
Total Current Liabilities 317,029.29 3188,956.29
Total liabilities 340,943.45 413,665.55
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,464,396.30 1,448,432.02
This is the Batance Sheet referred tom our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an mtegral part of the Financial Statements
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Ch 1t
Fradeep Kumar Hirawal
Vit ceimanmes Dirertor
Membearship Na DA02 70
Kolkata
LUDIN
Date

Director
DIN: 00501351



Bhagwati Plastowarks Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CiN: U25209WB1998PTCOBE0A3

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st  irch, 2023 {In Rupees hundreds)
Pi culars Note J1st Mar, 2023 J1st Mar, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 15 138,429.69 134,630.50
Other income 16 914.73 1,144.46
Total Income 139,344.42 135,774.96
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 17 - 42,301.97
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 18 - {42,301.97}
Employee benefit ex 1se 19 8,934.66 3,602.92
finance costs 20 3,932.65 10,724.80
Other expenses 21 21,655 34,827.57
Provision for Doubfull debts {Refer Note 32) - 1,090.35
Tatal expenses 522.44 50,245.64
Profit before tax 104,821.98 85,529.32
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 17,000.00 17,710.00
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year (864.40) 2,258.96
Total tax expense 16,135.60 19,968.96
Profit after tax 88,686.38 65,560.36

Other comprehensive income
fterns that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
ftems thot will not be reclossified to profit or lass - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 88,686.38 65,560.36
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 88,686.38 65,560.36
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1,103,600.00 1,103,600.00
Face Vaiue per share 10.00 10.00
Basic earnings per share 8.04 594
Diluted earnings|  share 8.04 594

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Charti  *° nt

Pradeep Kumar Hirawat

Yineet Khetan Director
Membership No. 060270
Kolkata
UDIN:
Date:
Director

DIN: 00501351



Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Built 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata 700001
{ U25209wWB1998PTCDBBOB3

Cash Flow 5t ‘or the year ended 3 March, 2023 i
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, cuee
A. flow fron gar ities:
Net profit befc per statement of Profit and Loss 104,821.98 B5,529.32
Adjustments for
Amorusation of prepaic e rental {1,541.07 {1,541.07)
interest ncome on Fixed Deposits pledged {849.51) {1,079.24}
Interest on Borrowed Funds 3,186.68 10,058.75
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 745.97 666.05
Privision for Doubrfull debts 1,090.35
Adjustments of Depasit in early refund - 16,013.72
Sundry Balances written off {net) 0.07 1,542.14 332.15 25,540.71
Operating Profit Before Waorking Capital Changes 106,364.12 111,670.03
{Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets - -
{increase) / Decrease in inventories - {42,301.97)
{Increase) / Decrease in Trade recevables {19.236.89} 16,315.86
{increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets {3.870.50) [3G.00}
{Increase) / Decrease in Other assets 7,404.14 (1,066.52)
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Liabilities 20,033.90 {238,000.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payahbles {255.33) 5,579.10
Increase / (Decrease} of Other Liabilities (24,733.56)f  {20,658.24) 9,237.19 | (229,866.35)
{Cash generated from operations 85,705.88 (118,796.32)
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds} including Interast (Net) 13,889.03 24,458 .81
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems 71,816.85 (143,255.13)
Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities 71,816.85 (143,255.13}
8. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Proceeds / (investment) from / in Fixed Deposits 85.95 13,030.78
Net cash from investing activities 85.95 13,030.78
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / {(Repayment} of Short Term Borrowings 169,219.58) 138,956.49
Interest Paid {3,186.68) {72,406.26) {10,058.75}) 128,897.74
Net cash generated/[used] in financing activities {72,406.26) 128,897.74
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C} (503.46) {1,326.61})
Cash and cash eguivalents -Openming balance 4,050.10 5,416.71
3,586.64 4,090.10
{ash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 3,547.39 3,8959.25
Cash on hand {As certified by the management) 39.25 90.85
3,586.64 4,090.10

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

The notes referred to above forms an integra! part of the Finanoal Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Assoriates
Ch, - te ant

Vil‘«:cu LATRL=T L TE ]

Membership No. 060270
Kolkata

UDIM

Date

For and cn behalf of the Board

Pradeep Kumar Hirawat
Nrartnr

Director
DIN: 00501351




Bhagwati Plasto Waorks Private Limited
1t Flear, ier Buiding, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street Kolhata 700001
CIN W25 2(MWE1S9SPTCORE0RS

Note: 1 Statement of Significant Ac 1ting Policies (SAP)

1

Company Overview

Bhagwati Plastowarks Pr vate Limited | the Compary”} s a subsidiary of a listed company  torpor 10 India hawving its
registered office at Bikaner Building, 8/ Lal Bazar Street 3rd Hoor, Room No. 10 Kolkata 700001 The Company is
principally engaged in the bus.ness developmant real estate projects (resigential and commerc.al) for renting, leasing
and further sale

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
a) Statement of Compliance

ihese (inancal statements are prepared in accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ["Act’) {to the

ey tnonfied) and Indian Accounting Standards {tnd AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
excepl for centain financal instruments which are measored at fair values The Ind AS are prescribed under secton 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended)

Accounting palicies have been consistently apphed except where a newly issued accounting standard is int.ally adopted
or a revision to an exsting standard requires a change in the account.ng policy hitherto 1n use.

b} Functional and presentation currency

4]

The firancial staterments of the Company are presemed n Indian Rupees I3 which s the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation cureency far the “inanc.al statements

Basis of measurement
Tne firanc.al statements have been prepared on historica, cost corvention an the accrual basis, except far the following
tems
i) Cenlain firanaal assets and financial habihties measured at fair value,
I Emp oyee's defined benefit plan as per actuariat valuat.on
Fair value 1s the price that wowd be received on the sale of an asset o1 paid to transfer a liability in an orderty t-ansaction
between market participants at the measurement dale under current market conditions, regardiess of whether that pnice
< directly nbservable or estimated using anather valuation technique In determining fair valiie af an asset or 3 Lability
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or hability f market particpants would take those
characternstics into account when pricing the asset or habimity at tne measurement date.

d) Use of judgments and estimates

tn prepar ng these f nancal statements. management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect tnhe
apphcaton of accounting policies and the 3t amourts of assets, liabilit es, mncome anc expe Actual resutts
may differ from these estimates £stmates and underlying assumpbons are reviewed on an ongoing basts Rev sions to
accoJnting esumates are recognized prospective'y

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions -

{i} Usetui li  of Property, plant and equipment

The Company uses 15 technical expertise alang with histoncar . industry trends for determiring the  nomur 1 fe of
an assetycomponent of an asset Tne useful hves are reviewed by management periodically ana reviserd f appropriate
tn case of a rewision, the unamortised depreciable amount s charged over the remaining useful hife of the assets

{ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
When the fair vatues of financial assets and financiat Liabilities recarded it the balance sheet cannot be measured

hasedl on quoted prices in active markets, therr fair value s measured using certain vaiuation techniques The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets whete possible, but where this is not feasible, 4 degree of judgement
is required in establishing faur values Judgements include consiaeratians of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit nisk ang

volatiliry
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Mote: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

{iii) Defined bene  plans:
Cost of defined beneft puan inciudes gratuity and the present vatue of the gratuity ob igation are determined usirg
actuanat valuatons using projected unit credit method An dactuanal valuation involves making varicus assumptions
that may differ trom actual developments in the future These include the determ.nation of the discaunt rate. future
sd ary increases and mortality rates Due to the cemplexities involved in the valuation and ts long-term nature, &
defined benefit cbligation s hig ensitive to changes m these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporl,ng date

{iv) rognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and megnitude of un outfiow of resources Prowision Is towards
known contractual obligatian, | igation cases ano pend-ng assessments in respect of taxes duties and other fevies,
any, nrespect of which management b ves that there are present obligations and the settement of such
obligations are expected to result ir outflow of resources, to the extent prowded for.

¢} Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting pohicies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, “or bath
financial and non financial assets and liahilities
Tae Company nas an established control framewotk with respect to the measureme o fan values

The management requiarly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuaton adjustments
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the vatuation

techniq.aes as follows.

- Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for ident cal assets ar habilities,

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included . Leve: 1 that are cbservable for the asset or hability, either directly
lie as prices) or indirectly (.e. denved fram prices).

Leve 3 inputs for the asset or llability that are nor based un observable matket data (unobservable inputs)
When measunng the far value of anasset ar @ lshility the Company uses observabie market date as far as possible If

the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a habulity fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, ther
the fair value measu  rent s categor zed wn 1ts entirety 0 the same lever of the fair va ue h erarchy as tne lowest level
npul that 15 sigrificant to the entire rreasurement

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value lherarchy at the end of the reporuing penod dunng
which the change has accurred.

3 Significant accounting policies
a) Operating Cycle

All assets and habubes have been classified as curient or nan current as per the Company s normal aperating cycle and
other cnter a set out In the Schedule Tl to the Companees Act, 20132 and Ind AS 1 Presentation of Finanaal Statements
nased on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition o* assets for processing and theirr real.sation in
tash and cash equivaients

b) Financial instruments

A financal instrument is any contract that gevas rise 1o a financiat asser of one entity and a financial liability or equity

nstrument of another ent.ty

Financial Assets

Initlal recognition and measurement
Al finantial assets are recognised tnit.ally at tair va ius, 1n the case of hinancia assets not recorded at fair value
througn profit or loss transaction costs that are attrbutable to the acquisiion of the financial assel However, trade
recewvables that do contain a sign/ficant fi easured at transaction price Reqular way purchase
and sa e of financial assets are accounted
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Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)
Derecognition

A finarcial lability (ot a part of a financial iabiltyt is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obl gation specified 1n the contracl s oischarged or cancelled or exprres,

iii. Offsetting of financial instruments
Hnangial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented n the balance sheet wnen, and only
when the Compary cutrently as a legaly enforcec + nignt to set off the amounts and it intends either to seftie therr
on a net basis or to realkse the asset and settle the habaity sumultaneously.

¢} Property. Plant and Equipment

i. Recognition and measurement
frems of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost which includes capitalised borrowirg costs less

accumuJlatea depreciation and accumulatec impawrment losses (f any The cost of an item of propeny, pant and
equipment comprises 1ts purchase price including import duties and nen-refundable purchase tarves, after deductng
trade discounts and rebates, any d-rectly attrbutable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended
use and € ated costs of dsmantling and remov ng the 1zem and restoring the site on which 1t s located Bor-owing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or constraction of these qu  /ing property, plant ard equipmert which
necessarily lake a substantia period of ime to get ready for the rintended use, are capitalised.
If significant parts of an stem of property, plant and equipmant have different useful iives, then they are accounteo for
as separate components of property plant and equipment
Assets retired from active ase and held for dispasat are stated at the lower of their net book value and net rzalisab e
vaiue and snown unger ‘Otner cJrrent assets’
Property, plant and equipment s eliminated from rhe financia: statements on disposal or when na further peneht 15
expacted from its use and disposal Any gamn or loss on disposal of an item of proparty plant and equipment is
recogriseo in profit or loss.
Expenses incurred relating to project. net rcome earned during the project deve opment stage pr or to its intended
Lse, are considered as ore - operative enpenses and disclosed L er Capital Woik 1in - Proqress

H. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure 15 capitalized only when 1t 15 probable that the future economic benehts associated with the
experditure will How to the Company Ongoing repars and maintenance are expensed as ncurrea

itfi. Depreciation and amortisation
Depreqiation and amortsation for the year is recognsed in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Depreciation on propedty, plant & eguipments are provided an straight ne method over the useful lives of assets. at
the rates ang m the mannet specified 1n Part C of Schedule |l of the Act
Freeroid land 1s not deprec.ated (easehoo land ncludes development costi s amorused on a straight hre basis over
the periad of respective lease except lano acquired on perpetual lease
Depreciation mathods. useful hves and residua values are rewiewed at each hinang al year end and adjusted as
appropriate

d) Intangible Assets
Intang:  assets with finite useful ives that are acqured separatety are carnied at cost ess accuruiated amortisation ard
any accumulated imparrment losses Amortisation is recognised on a straight tine basis over ther estimated useful hves,
Anintangible asset s derecogrised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected trom use ot disposal,
Estimated wsefu vfe of the Computer Software s 5 yea-s

e) Inventories
Iterns of inventories are measured at lower  :ost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence  iny Cost
of ‘nventories campr ses of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cosis ir erheads net
of recovera  taxes ncurred in bunging them o ther respective present locat on & matenals s
determined an FIFQ basis
Value of stores and spdres, packing matenals trading and other products are dete age basis
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h)

Impalrment

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company's non financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 15 any indication of

impa rment For impairment testing. assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash generating un ts [CGUs) Each CGU represents the smaltest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows ot ather assets or CGUs It any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to delermine the extent of impairment, if any When it 1s not possible to estmate the
recoveral  amount of an individie 1sset, the Compary est mates the recover: imount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs

Anunpairrmert 0ss s recogrised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carryt imount exceeds s
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use
Value n use s based on the estimated future cash tows, discounted to their present vaiue using pre-tax discount rate
that reftects cu t market a= iments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets

Tre impairment loss rec  nsed 1 prior aceounung perod sreversed f there has been a change n the esumate of
recoveraole amount

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of shart term employee benefits expec 1o be pad in exchange for 1he services rendered
by employees are recogmsed as an expense outing the petiod when the employees render the services

Defined contribution plans
A defined contributiun plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified monthly
conirbutions towards Prowdent Fund The Company’s contnbution 15 recogn sed as an ense In the Statement of
Proft and Loss during the pernod in which the employee renders the related service

Defined benefit plans
The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the
time of resignatian The gratuity s pard @75 days saiary for every comp’eted year of service ov per the Payment of
Gratuity Act 1972
The hablity in respect of gratuity and other post-employment oenefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit
Method and spread over the period during which the benefit 1s expecied to be derived from empluyees’ services
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive
Income

Provisions {other than for employee benefits)
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obiligauon (It | or constructive) as a result of a past evem,
it 15 probable that an outflow of resouices embodying economic benefits witl be required to sett e the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obigation
If the effect of the L.me value of money s matenal, provisians ate aiscounted Using & current pre tax rate that reflects
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabsity, When discounting 1s used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost
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i} Revenue Recognition

Revenue 1s recagnised to the extent it 15 probable that the economic benetits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliz  measJred regardless of when the payment s being made Revenue towards satisfaction of a pedormance
obligatan 1s measured at the amount of transact on pi.ce (net of var able consideratian) allacated 1o that perarmance
obligatan The transaction ptice ut goods sold ard services rendered 1s net of vasable consideration or account of
various discounts and schemes ofered by the company as part of cantract,

Revenue from t  .ale of goods is recognised when the gooas have  »n delivered and ttle have been passed No
revenue Is recognised «f there are significant uncertainties regard ng recovery of the amount due associated costs or the
possipie return of goods from date of imitial applicanon

i) Leases

«Ne company recognises a ngnt-of-Lse asset and a legse habihty at the tedse commencemeant gate. 1he nght of use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease hability adjusted for any lease
payments made al or before the commencement date, plus ary initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 10
dismantle and ove the underlying asset or to restore the un ¢ NQ usset or the s te on which it 15 focated, less any
lease incentives receved
The r ght-af-use asset 1s subsequent'y depreciated using the straight Line method from the cammencement date to the
carhier of the end of the useful ife of the right of use asset or the end of the 1ease term. The estimated useful lives of
right-of-use assets are determined an the same basis as those of property and equipment In addition, the nght-of-use
asset is periodically redL | by imparment losses if any ¢ adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease | abii ty
The lease tabihty 15 inthially measured at the present vatue of the lease payments trat are not paid at commencement
date. discounted using the interest rate imp'.cit in the lease or, f that rate cannot be read ly determined company's
incremental borrowing rate
Generally, the company uses its ncremental barrowing rate as the discount rate
Lease payments incluged m the measurement of the lease hability comprse the following
- Fixed payments, nclud ng in subsrance fixed payments;
- Vanable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, imitialiy measured Lsing the index o rate gs 4t the
commencement date.,
- Amaunts expected to be payabie under a residual value guarantee and

The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain t« rcise, |ease payments in an
aptional renewal period if the company 15 reasonably cerain to exercise an extension option, and penalttes for carly
rerr natinn of A lease unlass the comnany s reasans CRrTAIN NOt o terminate early

k) Recagnition of dividend income, interest income or expense

)

Drvidend mngome 15 recogn i profit or loss on the date on which the Company's nght to re /@ payment .5
establshed Interest ncome or expense 15 recognised using the effective interest method.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprses of current and oeferred tax Current tax and aeferred tax s recogn zed in the statement of
prof t o' loss exCept 10 the extent that it relates to a business combination, or itemrs recognized d rectly in equity or in
ol
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities a1e measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pad to the taxation
author ties, based on tax rates and laws that are eracted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date
Deferred tax
Deferred taw is recognised on temporary diffcrences between the carrying amounts ot assets and sabiities 11 the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
Deferred tax habilities 2nd assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period in which the
liabi ity 15 settled or the asset reahsed, based on tax rates (and t: enacted or substantively
enacted oy the end of tne repo-ting ger od The tanying amoar es and assets are reviewed at
the end uf each repoting period
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m) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred 1n connection with the borrowing of funds Borrowing costs directly

attributable to acguwssiion or construction of an asset which ~ecessanly take a substartal penod of time to get ready for
thar intended use are capitahsed as parl of the ¢ of that asset Cther borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period .n which they are incurred.

Where there 15 an unrealised exchange loss which s treated as an adjustment to mterest and subsequently there s a
reahsed or unrealised gain Ir respect of the settlement or fransfatior of the same barrowing, the gain to the extent of the
1088 prewigusly recogruised as an adjustment 15 recognised gs an adjustment Lo nterest

n) Foreign currencies transactions
T-ansactions in foreign currencies are recorded ar tne exchange rate prevailing on the date of transachon Monetary

assets and lighnlities denominated « foreign currencies are translated at the Exchange differences arising on settlement
or translation of maonetary 1 15 ore recognised in Stz 1ent of Profit and Loss

o) Govemment Grant
Grants ‘rom the go' wment are recognised at their tair value where there I1s a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Compe  mll comply with all attached conditions

p) Eamings per Share
Basic earmings per share 1s calcu ated by divid ng the ret profit or 'oss for the deriod attributaole to equity shareho ders
by tne weig! erage nLmber o ity shares outstanding durng the period
Far the pury caleulating diluted earnings par share, the net profit on woss for the period attributabee to equ.ty
sharehoiders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the perod are adjusted for the effecls of
all dilutive potential equity shares

q) HRecent Pronouncemen
Standard notfed but not yet eective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs [ A") notifies new standargs or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
{indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued fraom time to nme On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Comparies
tindian Accounting Standardsy Amendment Rules 2023 as fo lows

a) Ind AS 1 . Presentation of Finanaial Statements  This amendment requires the entinies to disclose their mater:al
accourting pol rather than ther significant accounting polic  The effective date for adoption of this amendmert
1s annuai per.ods beginning on or a‘ter Aprt 1. 2023 The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment 15 1nsignificant in the standalone financal statements

by Ind AS 8 Accounting Policres. Changes in Accaurting Estimates and Frrors  This emendment has introduced a
definit on of accourting estimates and included amendTents to Ind AS B to help entities distinguish cnanges n
accounting polives trom changes ir account ng estimates. The eflecuve date for adopton hus amendment 15 annua
periods beqinnimg on or after April 1 2023 The company has evaluated the amendment and there 1s no impact on its
standalone financial statements

ching AS 12 Income Taxes Tius amendment has narrowed the scmmn ~ vha misnl s nnentign exemplions s that it
does not apply to transacuions that give rise to equal ard offserning re efective date for
adoption of this amendment 1§ anrual periods beginn ng on or afte xny has evaluated the
amendment and there s no unpact on its stand«lone financal state
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A. Share Capital
Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting per.od
Changes in equity share capital during the current year

Add: Issue of Share Capital during the period

Less: Shares bought back/ forfieted during the peried

Net changes in Equity Share Capital during the year

Balance at the end of the current reporting period

B. Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributabie to Equity Share holders of the Company

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in accaunting policy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Add: Total Comprehensive income for the current year
Less: Dividend paid during the year
Less: Transfer to retaned earnings
Balance at the end of the current reporting period

Secyrities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the current reperting period
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Add: Recewed during the year
Balance at the end of the current reporting period

TOTAL OTHER EQUITY AT THE END OF PERIOD

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
110,360.00 110,360.00
110.360.00 110,360.00
110,360.00 110,360.00

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
B24,726.48 759,166.12
824,726.48 759,166.12

88,686.38 65,560.36
513,412.86 824,726.48
99,680.00 99,680.00
99,680.00 99,680.00
§9,680.00 99,680.00

924,406.48
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Notes to the financlal statements as on

Note: iancial Assets (Other financial assets)
Non Current (Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposit against electricity {(bearing interest)
Security Depasit against Annual fees for dematenalisation
Total
Current {Unsecured, considered good)
Advanced given to parties {(Refer Note No 33)
Advance to Staff
Total

Note 3 Inventories
{Ar lower of cost or Net Realisable value}
Work in pracess of Commercial P <t

Total

e 4 Financial Assets {Trade receivables)
Outstanding for a period -

Less than six months {Refer Note 32)

6 months 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Sub-Total
Less: Provision of Bad & Doubtfull debts
Total

Note 4{a) - Classification of Trade Receivables
Cansidered good — Secured;

Cansidered good - Unsecured;

Having significant incr 2 in Credit Risk;

Cr¢  impaired (Refer Note 32)

Note 4{b) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables

Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other person:

31st March, 2023

1,087.06
100.00
1,187.06

73,248.02

73,248.02

1,327,680.76

1,327,680.76

42,422 38

42,422.38

42,422.38

42,422 38

42,421.38

Debts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other person;

debts due by firms in which any director is a pariner.

debts due by private companies in which any director or a member.

Note 5 Financial Assets {Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks {Unrestricted in Current Account]
Cash an hand {As certif ied by the management)

Total

3,547.3¢
39.2¢
3,586.64

31st March, 2022

1 7086
100.00
1,187.06

69,319.27
58.25
69,377.52

1,327,680.76
1,327,680.76

24,275.84

24,275.84
1,080.35
23,185.49

23,185.49
1,090.35
24,275.84

3,999.25
50.85
4,090.10
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Notes to the financial statements as on 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

te & Flnancial Assets {Other Bank B  nces}
Terrn Deposits with Bank (including interest accured) 16,212.74 15,448.18
{pledged with Bank against bank guarantee issued)
Total 16,212.74 15,448.18
Note 7 Other current as

Unsecured, consideredy 3

Balance with Statutory Authanties 8B5.28
Prepaid Expenses - 2.,580.18
Interest accured on Security psits 58.70 58.70
Advances against expenses 3,928.75
Total 58.70 7,462.91
Note 8 Equity Share Capital {Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each) Number Amount Number Amount
alA ' rise’ "2 Ca! 1,250,000 125,000.00 1,250,C 125,000.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital 1,103,600 110,360.00 1,103,600 110,360.00

c]) Reconciliation of Number of § y Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 1,103,600 110,360.00 1,103,600 110,360.00

Note: No shares have aither been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d} Details of Sharehotders holding more than 5% shares with voting nght

wme of Equity Shareholders Holding {No's Holding (% Holding {No's} H g (%]
ROB Reafty & Infrastructure Ltd 562,870 51.00% 562,870 51.00%
Raj Kumar Jaiswal 104,500 9 47% 104,500 9.47%
fam Gopal Manpuria HUF 80,000 7.25% 80,000 7.25%
Shree Prakash Manpuria HUF 74,000 6.71% 74,000 6.71%
Arjun Patra HUF 61,800 5.60% 51,800 5.60%

e] Rights_preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distnbution of dividend & repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dwidend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of hquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholoers

f) Shares held by bolding, ultimate holdiog, or subidiaries or assoriates of halding
Name of Fquity Shareholders Holding [Nt Holding {Ng's! Halding (%)
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 562, 562,870 51.00%
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Notes to the financiat statements as on 31st March, 2023

gl Shares are reserved for issue under  tiens or cor s,

Humber of Shares & Amount

h} Shares issued within the perniod of 5 years

i) far consideration other than cash or
i) bonus to shareholders or

iii} hought back from sharcholders

1] Detards of Promoter shareholdmg as at the enc  ~ ear Holding {No's]  Halding {%}
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 562.870 51.00%
Note: there have been no changes in the promoter shareholding during the year.
Note 3 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Securities Premium
As at the beginning of the year 993,680.00
Add: Received during the year
As at the end of the year 99,680.00
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year B24.726.48
Add: Profit for the year 88,686.318
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end ot the year 913,412.86
Total J.m

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follaws:

J1st March, 2022

$achange
0.00%

99,6R0.00
99,680.00

759,166.12
65,560.36

824,726.48

924,406.48

Securities Premium: Securities premium account represents premium rereived an issue of shares aver and above face value of equity

shares. The account is available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Retained earnings: This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit

obligations. This Reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Note 10 Financial Liability {Other Financial Liability}

Non Current
{Unsecured, as per terms of agreement)

Advance against Property
Securily Deposits from tenant against lzase rent {discounted)

Total

6,216.43
6,216.43
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Notes to the financial staternents as on 31st March, 2023

w77 financial llabllities - Borrowings
Current

{Unsecured, Repayable on Demand, Interest bearing, including Interest}
Non Banking Financial Companies 79,238.82

From holding Company
Total 79,238.82

Note 11 .3 - Laan have been availed for general business purpose and have been used tor business purpose.

Note 11.b - Loan taken are in accordance with provisions of Section 73 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act.

Note 11l.c-The s nodefault as on the balance st date in repayment of loans or ir  est thereof,

Note 12 financial Jiabilities - Trade and other payables
Current

Others
icro enterprises and small enterprises;

Others 5,723.77
Total 5,723.77

Ageing schedule of Trade Payables

) ) ) Disputed
Qutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction

31st March, 2022

Undisputed

Others MSME Others

As at 31st March, 2023

Less than 1 year
Outstanding for a period from 1 year to 2 years _
Qutstanding for a period from 2 years to 3 years

Qutstanding for a perniod more than 3 years

2,198.98
352479

313541

14B,118.99
148,458.40

5.979 10

5,979.10

MSME

5,723.77

As at 31st March, 2022

Less tham 1 r

Outstandig for a periad from 1 year to 2 years
Outstanding for a period irom 2 years to 3 years _

QOutstanding for a period mare than 3 years _

5,978,310

5,879.10

Dues to Micro And Small Enterprises {as per the intimation received trom vendors)

The company has not received communication from any of wts supphers regarding applicabiity of "Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006", hence disclosure under Para K of “General Instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet”

regarding details relating to Micro, Smalf and Medium Enterprises t
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 13 Other Liabilities

Non Current
Unamaortised lease rant receivable (adjustable after next balance date)

Total

Current
Advances from Customer and Others

Statutory Payables
Other payabie

Unarmortised jease rent receivable {adjustable within next batance date)

Total

Note 14 Provision for tian
Current Income Tax

Less: Advance Tax & TDS

Total

31st March, 2023

16,951.786
16,951.76

218,691.21
1,529.51
3,523.06
1.541.07

227,284.B5

17,00

{12,218.15]

4,781.85

31st March, 2022

18,492.83
18,492.83

218,691.21
2,019 61
9,732.62
1,541.07

231,984.51

17,710.00
{15,175.72})
1,534.28



Bhagwati Plasto Warks Private Limited

1s! Floor, Bikaner Bulding, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN U25209WB19498PTLOSB0R3

Notes to the financic tements for the peried ended {Continued}

MNote i5 Revenue fri  Jperations
Sale af Sgrvices

Rental income

Amortisation af rentdl {embedded in interest free secruity deposit)

Maintenance & Other Charges
Qther Operating Income

Eleclricty Charges c ‘ted (net ol payment)
TOTAL

Mote 16 Other lncome
Interest Income on by Depasits pledged
Interest Income on Security Deposits
Total

Note 17 Construclion Activity Expenses
Manpower Expensey
Material Exprnses
Other Canstruction Expenses
Consumption

Note 18 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work m Propress
{ess Closing Inventory of Work in Prograss
{Increase}/decrease In [nventorles

ite 19 Employee Benefits Expense
Salares  apes and exgratia
Total

Mate 20 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund
Motional irnlerest on Secunty Deposits
Mther Borrowing € ost

Total

MNote 21 Other Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Muncipal Tax on Reated Fremiues

adiustment of Sacurity deposil on early retund of Depasit

sundry Balances written off {nel]

Bank Charges

Convayance

Fihmg Fees

General Expenses

Printing & Stationery

Telephone Expenses

Maintenance Charge

Watch & Ward Expenses

Site Expenses

Insurance

Profeszional Charges

Legal Cha

Lemateriahzation & Folho Maintenarce Charges

Brokerage Expinses

Auditor's Remuneration  Statutory Audit Fees
Total

(in Rupees hundreds)

31st Mar, 2023 315t March, 2022

124,457 52 118,383.91

1.541.07 154107

4,786.80 10.754.41

7,644.30 3,845.11

138,429.69 134,630.50

849.51 1,075.24

65.22 65.22

914.73 1,144.45

4,069.54

20.155.00

18,067.43

42,301.97

1,327 680 76 1.285,378.79

1,327,680.76 1,327.680.76

- (42,301,97)

8,934 66 3,602.92

8,934.66 360292

3,186 68 10,058.75

745 97 666.05

393265 10,724.80

47 50 7200

1,229.75 1.235.20

- 16,013.72

aor 33215

2942 47.06

498 86 4175

98.92 41.00

200.00 80.02

7.36 129.11

77.10 -
78214
7,656 1b
1,313.04
755.18 -

RGC.00 854.00

1,709.50 207330

100.00 100.00

13,657 67

1 150.00

|- 34,827.57




Bhagwati Mlasto Works Priv. 1r d
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, % 1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata 700001
CIN° U25209WB199R8PTCORBARY

Motes to the financial statements for the period ended |{Continued} 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

22 Income taxes
A. Amount recognised in profit or loss
Current tax

Current penod 17,000.00 17 710.00
Changes nrespect of current incarme tax of previous year {864.40) 2.258.56
A 16,135.60 19,968.96

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax 104,821.58 85,529.32
Tax rate 26% 26%
Tax using Lhe Indan Lax rate 27,254.00 22,235.00
Tax effects o n ‘not taxahle in calgulating taxable

Adjustment under IND AS, but not taxable under Income  x Act, 1961 1.00) {400.6&)
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income

Adjustment under IND A5, but not gllowabie under Income Tax Act, 1961 194.00 4,336.73

Others adjustments - 369.85
QOther differences

Other {10,047 00) {8.833.91)

17,000.00 17,710.00

23 Details of CSR Expenditure
The prov'sions of CSR ufs 135 are not apphcable to the

24 Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign Currency income - -
Foreign Currency Expenses - -

25 Segment information
The business of the company falls under a single operating segment. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.



Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
15k Flawr, Rikanee Building, 871, Lal Bazar strest, Kolkata - 700001
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Motes to the financial slatements

26

27

28

2%

Eli]

31

3z

33

Related Party Disclosure

fedated Party Relationship

Enterprises whare control exists 308 Heaity & Infrastructure Lun = Holdirg Campany
Enterpnses under cantrol - Ra, Construrttans Projects Private Limited Suhaidiary ol Holding
Enterprises with Cemmon KMP - YMS Finance Private Limited

Trarsacrions & Balances : 31at March, 3024 Jlst March, 2022
Urnsecured Loan Taken
- RDE Realty & Infrastruciure bimited 128 40000 181,500.00
Ra) Construcl ons Projects Priveta Lamited 148,000 8
Y445 Finance Private Limited 128,041 42 79403409
Repayment ot Lnsecured Loan Taken
RO Realty & Intrastrud ure Limited 276.118.95 41,500.00
Ra| Constructiars Projects Private Limited T4, RO
¥MS Fingrice Privale Hinited 52 (NN H) R9,500.00
Interest of Unserured Loan Taken provided
HOR Realty & ntrastructure Limited Qu2il .
Ry, Corstructiony Progedts Private Limted
- ¥YM5 Finance Private Lmited 3,1H6 bR 1.047 108
Tax Deducted on mturest provided {Lnder income Tax}
HDB Ruealty & Infrastructore Limieed 902,71
- Ra) Constracmons Projects Private Limited
YIS Firanize Private Limited 31¥.67 1371
Closing Halance 5f ansevured Loan Taken
ROQ Realty & infrastructure Limited 148 118 09
Raj Constructines Frojects Private Lumited
- YM5 Hinange Private bimited 79,238.82 33541

11 the gpirmon of the Board the Current Assets, Loany gnd Advances dre rot ress than the stared 2ot realsed in ordinary course m
business. The groviston for all known liabluties 1s edeguate snd not nexcess of the amount reasonably necessary There s na contingert
bty excepl steled anid informed by the Management

Contingent Llabilities
Ingome Fax Dermnand M LR Y. Nil)
Bare { cantee Bs.13 80 acs (P, - A5 2124 Lawsy to CESC Limeted tor Electric Supply at Companes Property

M proceeding hgs teen miated ar pending aga nst the company Tor iulding any Beoam praperty under the Benar Transacl ons
{Profubition) A, T9XE {45 ni 1988} and rules made thereunder

The company have not been decla-ea witful detawiter by any lender from whom funds have been borrowed

The company does not any knowledge of any transaclions or balances with Lomparies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or secuon 550 of Compdoes Acl, 1956, hence no dlclosure have peen made

During the FY 2021 22, company had an aqutslanding trade recewvabile of Rs. 1,389,035/ from onc debtoer, against which insolvency
proceedigs are at heanng stage As 2 tnatler radence provesior of doubtfoll debl was created for an gimoont re eivable st Uwe end of
the preceeding perind. Duning the current year entire amaunt was recewed and hence provivon createrd in #arhier year was reveryed
during the year.

The company Ras an ouistanding advance rocevable of Rs 38,6280 from few parties, against whor company Ras fied el surt m
Caleutta High Court for recovery of rd frorn parues. Pending [iigation the company has not made any provisian for amount pald to
parlics

The company coes npt Rave any subsidiary 35 Jefinad u/s 2(87) and henge question oy " ayers prescnbed under
lause (B7) of section 2 of the Act read with Comnpames [Restrction on number of Layer ot arise.



Bhagwati Plasto Waorks Prir Limited
1st Floar, Bikaner Bu ding, @71, Lak Sazar streer, Kolkata 700001
CIN- UZ52USWELASBP ICURRDS S

MNotes to the Nnancial statemenis

35  The fusds of the rampany {hon d furd, securit gy gremivem and share capita j bave b gt bised lor guipusition of land which has
heen transferred i developer {pursiant to joint development agreament) ang for acg.ostion of further and Inaccordanue wilh the
yam Development Agreement and also o starty COMMEeNLe Tew vontures

36 Financial Instrume ind Related Disciosures
Particulars at at 313t March, 2023

Non Caerest

Carrying Value Amprtised Cost Fair value

Other financal assets 1,187 {1 -
Current
Trade recevahles 42,422 38 -
Cash and cash eguivalents R
Other Hank Balances 1 212.74 - -
Other Financial Assets 7 3.02 - -
Total Financial Assets 1 3k, &5 H4

Finarcial Liahtl ties

M Cutredt

Other torancial ligo itnes R,Y9R4 A0
Cuarrent
Borrowings 708.238.82
Trage and other pa & 723 77F
Total Financial Liahilitkes 91,924 199
Particujars at at 31st March, 2022
Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
Finanoal &ssets
Non Corrent
Other finanoal gasets 1187 1k -
Current
Frade receivahies EER LY. - -
Cash and casn equivalents 4,060 10 -
Other Bank Balanogs 1C.a44 14
Other Financial Assels Ry . -
Total Financial Assets 113,288.35 -
Financial Liabitlibies
Non Current
Other hnonda 1 abibres 6,21R 41
Current
Borrowings 148,458 A0
Trade and ather payatiles P v I -
Tota! Financial Uabilities Y2 -

A. Capital Requirements

Fur the agrpose of The Campany’s capital manggement capal imududes issued equity raglal, stare premium and ol other aguity
reserves antributable 10 the equity nolders of the Camipany, The pri rary abjective of the Company < ragntal mar agement 1s o rigx.mise
the sharehiider value

The Company manages sts cagital structure and makes ad,ustments 11 hght of changes in econom c condibions and the requirements of
the financial rovenants. To maintaim or adjust the capitat structure, the Company may adjust the divdend payment to sharehalders,
retutn capital ta shareholders on ssue oew shares. The Company mamtors cepiial usine o deaning rotlo, which s net debt divided by total
capital plus net debite The Conpasny mcludes wothon net debt, cterest beanng logns .,
and cash eruivilents

1 ather payah P4 255 Cash



agwati Plasto Works Private Limited
15t Foonr Bikaner Filding, B/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolssta - AN UL
CiM UZ5209WB1998PTCOBRIE3

Motes to the Nnanclal statem

7

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Particutars (in Rs.) fin Rs.}
Other Financal b 5 9602 40 h 1643
Borrawings  |long tenn and  shon-term, ancloding  currant 79230 82 <38,458.90
maturities ut long term borrowings)
Trate paydbles 572317 237.963.61
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (3,586 b4} (4400 103
Net debt 28,338 36 3IBE,538.34
Equity share captal 110,300.00 110,260.00
Other pquity TTTTTTRA ~24,406 48
Tatal Capital wiveey s o BR 144, 760,48
Gearing ralig 12.72 2.66
11 order to achieve th.s averall objective, the Company's capital r amuongst uther things, aimis k3 ensure that (it meats
financial rovenants attached to the nterest bearing losns and burrowargs thal define capilal strurture requirements. Breaches in
- ng the tinanga. covenants would permit the bank tom ately call foans and borrewings. There have teen no breac ™ the

tinancisl Lovenants of any ieterest biearn g inaes and borrowing in the current pernod

No changes woere made mn the obyectives, polivies or prucesses for murag ng rapital duning the years ended Maroh 31, 2023 and Mar.h

31, 2022

Dhsclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and poli

The Campany’s pringipal financial lalmlinies comprise ioans and borrowings, trade and cther payables. The main purpose of these
financial tabilities is to finance and support Company s operations. The Company’s principal tinanoal assets include trade and other
receivables. cash and cash equivalents and toans and advances and retundable depos 1s that derive directly from its operations

The Company 1s exposed to market risk, cradit sk and hguidiey risk The Company's se-iar management overieaes the management of
tnese risks. The Company's senior management sees that the Sompary’s finanogl sisk 2ctvilies are governed by appropriate pohoes and
grocedures and that licang al risks are dentif-en, measured and ma aged i ac o rdance wish the Doampeny s g
The Board of Qirectors reviews and agrers policias tor managing €ach ot theee ricks, whick are summansea balow

“arket rsk:

woand Fise ndsechives,

MAarker risk s the risk that the fair va ue ol futore cash fwws of a iease b astrument wil fructuatebesagse of Changes in markel prices

Market rish campriscs two types of nok nterest rate nshand ather pnce risk, such s eguity prce sk and com mnghily/ real esiate nisk

The Compdny has not entered nte any foreign exchange or commuoding di

t1the market sk other than interest nsk

{1} Interest rate r ok

tive vontracts, Accordingly, there s nin significant prposure

Interedt rate risk s the e Rat the Faee vahse ar future cash fiows of a linanoai mstrument well Hlucraars becaose of changes in
market interest rates. The Lompany manages s interest raie nisk by accepting loans and borrowings of of fixed rare. Most of the

borrowings of the Company are unsae d and at fined rates,

fii} Price risk

The Company has not made any investments for tradmg porposes. The surphises have been deployed in hane deposits as

cxplaimed abowe

Credit rish

Credit risk 15 the sk that counterparty wili ngt meet s obligations wunder a firenoal insirument or customer contragt, leading 19 a
nd from its financing
1ancial nstruments.

financiat loss. The Company |5 exposed to credit nisk from its cperating actwines iphn
actvities, including rafundable joint develcpment depasits, secarity depostts, loans t
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Notes ta the financial statements

Trade receivables

Pecewvables resulting from saie of propertses Custormuer credit sk s managed by requinng custamers to pay advances bafgre transfer cf
cwnership, therefore, supstanbially elimimating the Company's cratit Fisk in thes respert.

hecewables resolting fram other than saie of properties. Credit nisk 1s managed by eack businass unit subject to the Company's
estatlished pobcy, procedures and controb relating to custamer credit rsh management. Quistanding customer recewables are regularly
monitored, The wmpairment analysis 5 pertormed at each reporting tate on 4r indwidyal basis for majer ol ents In adainion, a large
rumber of minor receivables are grouped into homageneous groups and assessed tor imparrment cotlectively The maxenum exposure b
credit risk al the reporting date 1y Lhe corrying walue of eailclass of finanoid assels The Company daves nat hold rallateral as seounty.
The Company's crecht penod genas ranges trer 34 &1 days.

The ageing of trade recaivahins are as follaws ar MNare 4 ba Finaneial Slatennents)

Deposits with banks and finanual nstiutions

Credt roak trom balanges w b banks dnd fipaac b msniibie ns s managed by e Company accorgance wath the Comaany's poacy.
Investments of surpius funds are made nnly with approved counterpartes and within credit limits assigned tn each counterpany.

Counterparty credit imits are reviewed by the Company's Boara of Directors on an 2nnual fass, and may be updated thraughout the
yeat subject to approval of the Board. The hmits are se? *6 mummise the concentration of nsks and therefore mrtigate financial loss
through a roorterpany's potential fakure to nake gayme-ts The Company 5 maxaimurm exposure to credit nsk tor the components ot
the statament of financal pos ton at 31 March, 2023 & 202215 the carmying amounts.

aidi
The Company's nvestment decisians relatng 1o geployment of surplas hguidity are guided by the tenets of satery, hguidity and return

The Company manages its hquidity risk by ensunng that it will always have sutticient liguidity to meet s ligbiities when due o tase of
short tarm regairements, it obtaing short-term loans from its Banhers.

















































































Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statemenis of RDB JAIPUR
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (the "Company”) which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement af Profit and Loss far the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2023, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities uncer those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficrent and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements penod These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the finant as a whole. and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepa 1 these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation ot the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Repert, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statemenis does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respons.tulity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information :s materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained during ttie course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work = have performed, we conclude that there 1+ & material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact We have rothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’} with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position ano Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets «f the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularites select:on and application of
appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing as applcable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management
either intends to liquidate the Company or tc cease operations. ar his o realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsibte for ove ipany's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether tne financial statements
as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fra.ud or error. and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasopable assurance 1s a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materiai if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of tne financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, desian and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material msstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud ncay inveolve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit precedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing cur opinien on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such contrels.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasenableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtamncd whether a matenal
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cas! significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in cur auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
te the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease te continue as a going concern

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial siatements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the finanrial etataments that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic d sonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced ' itative matertality and
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qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in avaluating the results of
our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstaterments in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. ainong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all refationships and other matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about tne matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shou!d not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Reporl) Order 2020 ¢ the Order"), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give In the "Annexure A a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further repor thal

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for tn2 purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books cof account as required by Iaw have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit ang Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

e. On the basis of written representations received frnm the directors as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on record by the | tors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31. 20z t appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.
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f.

Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs 25 Crores. the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13 2017; and

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2020:

i} The Company does not have any pending litigattons wnich would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon dees not arise.

i} There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report {o transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced cr loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person{s) or entity(les} including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shail. whether directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company {"Ultimate Beneficiaries } or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented. that. to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any personisy or entity(ies),
including foreign entites (“Funding Parties ). witn the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the company shail, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or cn behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the hke on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficianes, and

(¢) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances. no 0 therr notice that has
caused them to believe that the repi 2r sub-clause {a) and
(b) contain any material mis-stateme

v) The company has not declared or id during the year in
contravention of the provisicns of set ‘onpanies Act, 2013,
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h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 187 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration 15 not apphcable ta a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
{Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUII687 1
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(i

(ii)

(iii)

Annexure “A" to the Independent Auditor’'s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE

LIMITED of even date)

{a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property Plant ana Equipment;
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets,

{b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verfication.

{c} The Company does not have any immovable properly so this clause i1s not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment \inciuding Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prcohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988} and rules made thereunder.

{(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at rcasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such veriffication Ly the management is
appropnate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b} The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial irstitut:ons on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore this clause is not applicable

The company has not made any investments and not provided any guarantee or security or
has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
(a) The company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity

(A) As the company has not provided any loans anc advances to subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates so this clause is not applicabie.

(B) As the company has not provided any loans and advances to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates so this clause 1s not applicable.

(b) The investments made are not prejudicial to the company's intercst

(c} Since the company has not given any loars and advances tharefore there is no
requirement for preparing any schedule.

(d) Since the company has not given any ces therefore no reasonable
steps are required to be taken by the c
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(v)

(viii)

(ix)

{x)

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which ha< failen due during the
year, has heen renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

{f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or penod of repayment.

The company has not made any loans, investments guaranices and security, therefore the
compliance of provisions of sections 185 and 188 of the Companes Act, 2013 is not
required.

No deposits were accepted by the company or amounts  uch are deemed to be deposits,
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the orovisions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
are not applicable to the company.

Maintenance of cost records has been specfied by the Central Government under
subsection (1} of section 148 of the Companies Act and is naot applicable to the company.

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues mncluding Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax. sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a pericd of more than six months from the date
they became payable,

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the boohks of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

(@) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other boriowings. so this clause
is not applicable.

{b) The company has not applied for any term loans
{c) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes.

{d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person ot account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

{e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pleage of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies

{a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer ar futher pubiic offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application dues nol arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential al Jlacement of shares or

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally ¢« ] the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.
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{xii}

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(>vi)

{xvii)

{(xviii}

(xix)

(a) No fraud by the company cr any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

{b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of ieporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the Central
Govermnment;

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.
The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

There are no such transactions with the related parties hence the compliance of this clause
is not required.

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;

{b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Intemal

Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

{b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as

per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

{c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditers during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other inf panying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of anagement plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no matenal uncertainty e late of the audit report
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(09

(xxi)

that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance st cet date

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects. the company has nct transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Compames Acl within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;

(b) No amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to spacial account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the resnective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARQ) reports of the .ompanies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25™ Day of May 2023
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIIES7 1
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RDB laipur Infrastructure Private Limited {(Formerly RDBE Realty (P) Ltd.}

CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Regd Office. 15t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata- 700001

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2023
Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Froperty, Flant and Equiprment
Financial Assets
Cther financial assets
Deferred Tax Assels {Net)
Total Non Current Assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Cther financial assets {Advance)

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilitles
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial Liablities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

dues of Micro and Small Enterprises {MSME)

dues of other than MSME
Ot tinancial liabifities
Other current lizbilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total liabilities

Total Equity & Liabilities

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms anin ral pad of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chrotmend Ao s sant

Vineer nnetan & Assodates
Membership No, 060270
Kolkata

LIDIN

Date:

Note

oo = N

10

i1

12

13
13
14

15

31st March, 2023

315 reh, 2022

103.25 121.25
450.00 450.00
552.70 554,84

1,105.95 1,166.09

12,651,3596.92

13,332,898.9¢

37.292.14 -

2,626 24 29,529./0
453,000.00

249,473.33 245, 33
13,393,788.62 13,608,266.99
13,394,894.57 13,609,433.08
1.000,000.00 1,000.000.00
1126,344.15) (174,759.63}
B73,655.85 825,240.37
900.000.00 500,000.00
900,000.00 900,000.00
534,466.31 583,118.47
494,400.00 494,400.00
10,589,316.35 10,802,027.47
3,055 46 4,646.77

11,621,238.72

11,884,192.71

12,521,238.72

12,784,192.71

13,394,894.57

13,609,433.08

for and an behalf of the Board
2B Jaipur Infrastructure Pyt Lid

Director
Pradeep Hirawat
DIN: 00047872



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty {P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC 106328
. Regd Office: ist Floor, Bikaner Bulding, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Particulars Note
Income
Aevenue from operations 16
COther ncome 17

Total Income

Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 18
Changes in inventories of work-in progress 19
Employee benefit expense 20
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1
Finance costs 21
Other expenses 22

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax
- Tax Adjustment For Farlier Year
- Deferred Tax

Total tax expense

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income
fterns that may be reclussified to profit or loss
ftems that will nat be reclassified to prafit ar foss

Other comprehensive income for1  year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding
Face Value per share

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to ahove forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Charlered

Vineet Khetan m Assoriates
Meml  ihip No. 060270
Kolkata

UM

Oate:

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

778,198.47
778,198.47 -
34,440.55 37,939.79
6H1,502.04 {37,939.79)
7.678.60 6,714 44
18.00 60.60
6,101 1,401 68
¥29,740.84 8,176.72
43,457.63 (8,176.72)
42.15 {86.86)
42.15 (86.86)
43,415.48 (8,089.86)
43,415.48 {8,089.86)
48,415.48 18,089.86)
000,000 .0C 10,000,000.00
10.00 10.00
0.8 {0.08)
{ {0.08)

and an hehalf of the Board

aipur Infrastructure Pyt Ltd

tor

ma
DIN: 00570526

Director
Pradeep Hirawat

DiN: 00047872



RDB Jaipur infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

éash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 48,457 .62 (8,176.72)
Adjustments for
Loss of Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments -
Depreciation & Amortisation 18.00 13.00 £0.60 60.60
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 48,475.63 {8,116.12)
{Increase} / Decrease in Other financial assets {Non-Current) - -
{Increase) / Decrease in Gther financial assets {Current) {453,000.00) -
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 708,305.83 -
{Iincrease) / Decrease in Trade receivables {37,292.14) 37,292.14
{Increase} / Decrease in Other assets {3,645.00) {5.00)
Increase / {Decrease) in Trade Payables -
Increase / {Decrease) of Other financial liabilities (212,711.12) 15,250.39
Increase / {Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities {1,591.31) 66.26 1,807.29 54,344.82
Cash generated from operations 48,541.38 46,228.70
Less: Direct taxes paid/ {Refunds) including Interest [Net) - -
Cash Flow before Exceptional items 48,541.88 46,228.70
Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities 48,541.88 46,228.70
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activitles :
Sale / (Purchase) of Property, Plant & Equipments - -
Net cash from investing activities - -
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / {[Repayment) of Short Term Barrowings {48,651 .56) 18,819.64
Interest Paid {26,803.79) {75,455 .35) (37,939.79) {19,120.15}
Net cash generated/{used) in financing activities {75,455.35) {19,120.15)
Net increase/{decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {26,913.47} 27,108.55
Cash and cash equivalents Opening baiance 29,535.70 2,431.16
2,626.23 29,539.71
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 2,610.42 29,518.79
Cash on hand [As certified by the management;) 15.82 20,92
2,626.24 29,539.70

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartere " - e

Vineet Knetan & Associates
Membership No. 060270
Kolkat:

UDIN:

(VIR T P PR

For and on behalf of the Board
DB Jaipur Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

Director
Pradeep Hirawat
DIN: 00047872




ROE Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited {Formerly RDB Realty {P) Ltd.)

CiN: U70101WB2005PTC 106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata 700001

Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAF)
1 Company rerview

REB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited { the Company™ is a subsidiary of a listed company incorporated 1n
Inda having its registered office at Bikaner Building, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street 3rd Floor, Room No. 10, Kolkata-
700001. The Company is principally engaged in the business joint development of real estate projects {residential
and commercial). At presant, the company 1s a party {land-owner) to a project at laipur.

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
a) Statement of Compliance

These finar stalements are prepared in accordance with Lhe provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 { Act | 1to
the extent notified} and Indian Accounting Standatds {Ind AS) under the histonical cost convention an the accrual
basis except for centain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Compantes (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 tas
amended}

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
ador | or a revision to an existing standard reguires a change in the accounting policy hitherta in u

b) Functiona! and presentation currency
The financial statements of the Conipany are presented in Indian Rupees {2, which is the functional currency of
the Company and the presentation currency for the financia! statements

¢) Basis of measurement
The financial stateme  have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the
following items:
1) Certain tinancial assets and financial listzihties measuied at far value,
tiis tmployee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation.
Fair value i5 the price that would be received on the sale of an asset a1 paid to transfet a liability i an orderly
transaction bet  nmarket pamicipants att  neasurement date under current market conditions, regardless of
whether that price s directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique In determining fair
vatue of an asset or a liability, Campany takes inta acrount the charactenstics of the asset ar liahihity il market
participants would take those charactenstics into account when pricing the asset or liabiity at the nieasurement
date.

d) Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these linancial statements, management has made judgements, eslimates and assumplions that

affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabifities, income and expenses.

Actual results may differ trom these estimates. Eshimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions -

{i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:
The Company uses its technical experlise along with historical and industry trends for determining the
economic life of an asset/component of an assel. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically
and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamontised depreciable amount is charged over the
remaining useful life of the assets

(ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recor in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their tair value 1s measured using certain valuation
lechnigues. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possi but  are thisis
not feasible a degiee of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include cansiderations
of inputs such as liquidity nsk, credit nsk and volatility.



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limit  {Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)

CiN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata 700001

MNote; 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

{iii} Defined henefit plans:
Cost of defined benefit plan includes gratuity and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actua raluations using pro ed unit creditr 1od An actuanal valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount sate, future salary inctea  and morlality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuztion and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

(iv) Recognitiona measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about  : kkel hood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is
towards known contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and
ather levies, if any, in respect of which management believes that there are present cbligations and the
settlernent of such obligations are expected to result in outflow of resources to the extent provided

e) Measurement of fair vatues
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and nan-financial assets and liabilities
The Company has an established controt framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The management reqularty reviews significant unobservable mputs and valuation adjustments
Fair values are categonzed into different levels in a fair value hieiarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
technigues as follows
- level 1- quoted prices {unadjustedi in active markets for identical assets or habilities,
Level 2. inputs other than quoled prices included in Level 1 that are observable far the asset or liability, either
directiy (ie. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
When n suring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Comp v uses observable market data as far as

possible. if the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different tevels of the tau
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement s categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement

The Company  ogmises transfers helween levels af the fair value hierarchy at tt :nd of the reparting period
during which the thange has occurred.

3 nificant accounting policles

a) Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current ar mon-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of
Financial Statements based ont  nature of products and the tune between the acquisiion of as 5 for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents.

b} Financial
A tinancial instrument 15 any caontract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or
equity imstrument of anather entity
i. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Adl'inancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fau
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisibon of the financial asset.
However, trade receivables that do contain a sign ponent are measured at transaction
pice Regular way purch:  and sale of financial for at trade date.



RDB Jaipur infrastructure Private Limited (Forn  * RDB Realty {P) Ltd.)

CIN: U70101WB2C05PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Fioor, Bikaner Building, 871, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata- 700001

Note: 1 Statement of Significant A¢counting Policies (SAP)

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in three categories:

« Amarhised cost
« Fair value through other comptehensive income (FYTOCH
» Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
Financial assets are nat reclassified subsequent to their nitial recognition, except if and i the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financia®  sets at amortiscd
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it »s held wathin a business model whase objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractuai cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified d s to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

Financial assets at FVTOCK
A financial asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within a business tnodel whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractua  h fows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financal

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on-
grincipal amount outstanding
Financial assets included within the FYTOCH category are measured imitially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Finangcial assets at FVTPL,
A financial asset which is nol classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
financial assets included within the FVTPL cateqory are measured at fair value with ali changes recognised in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Other equity investments
All other equity investrments are measured at fair value with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss, except for those cqguity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes
in 'Other Comprehensive Income

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financia! asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

Fin. :ial liability

Initial recai on and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are
intially measured at fair value

Subsequent measurement
For purpases of subsequent measurement financial fiabilities are classified in following categories:
= Financial habihtses through profit or loss (¥
+ Financia! liabifities at amortised rost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL
A financial lability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a defivative o it is
designated as such on imitial recognition Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured ot fair value and net gains
and tosses, including any interest expense,  :recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabifities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest method.
interest expense and any gain ot loss on derecognition are recognised 1n protit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently r cosi using the EIR method
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the ised as well as through the EIR
amorhisation process For trade and other payables matur m the balance sheel date, the

carying amounts approximates fair value due 1o the shor ruments



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure  vate Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P} Ltd.}

CIN: U70101WH2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bixaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Note; 1 Statem ignifican ing Polici AP
Dierecognition

A tinanciat liabifity (or a part of a financial hability) is derecognized from the Company s Balance Sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting  financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when  d
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set aff the amounts and 1t intends either
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

¢} Property, Plant and Equipment

iil.

Recognition and measurement
lterms of propeny, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipmeni comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts  d rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing  » iten to its working
condition for its intended use apd estimated casts of dismantling and removing the item and restaring the site
or ich it .5 located. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those
quahfying property plant and  sipment, which nec  sanly tal 1 substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, are capitahsed.
if significant parts of an item of oroperty, plant and equipment have different useful lives then they are
accounied for as separate components of property. plant and equipment.
Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are sta  at the lower of their net book value and net
realisable value and shown under "Other current assets .
Praperty, plant and equipment 1s eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further
benefit is expected from its use and disposal, Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in profit or loss
Expenses incurred relating to project net of income earned dunng the project development stage prior to its
intended use, are considered as pre operabive expenses and disclased under € apital Work - in - Progress.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure 1s capitalized only when it 15 probable that the tuture economic benefits assoriated
with the expenddure will flow to the Cumpany. (Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation: | tisation
Depreciation angd amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Depreciation on property, plant & equipments are pravided on straight line imethod over the useful lives of
assets at the rates and in the manner specitied n Part C of Schedule 11 of the Act
Freehold land is not depreciated Leasehold land {includes development cost) 1s amortised on a straight line
basis over the period of respective lease, except land arguired on perpetual lease.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values aie reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as
appropriate

d) Intangible Assets

Int  yible assets with fimte usetul lives that are acquired scparately are carried at costless accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated usefut lives. Anintangible asset 11 derecognised on dienacal nrwhen nn fisture economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal Estimated vseful tife of the Comg £5.
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Mote: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

e} Inventories
Hems of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net reahisable value after providing for obsolescence, it
any Cost of inventonies comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including
manufacturing overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bnn g theimn to their respective present location
and condition. Cost of raw materials is determined on FIFO basis,
Value of stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are determined on wetghted average

basis.

fi Employee Benefits
.. Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid 1n exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised as an expense dunng the peniod when the employees render the
services,
ii. Post employment benefits - Defined contribution plans
No post empioy  benefit are payable to any employee at present,
iii. Post employment benefits - C ed benefit plans
No post employment benefit »ayable to any employee  present.

g} Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company s non financial assets are reviewed at each reportingda ode 7T wi the  sany

indication of imparrment. For impairment testing assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are
grov)  tagether inta cash-generating units (LGUs) fach ('GU represents the smallest Company of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs If any such
indication exists Lhe recoverable amount of an asset ot CGU is eslimated to determine the extent of impanment,
it any When it is not passible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs

An impanment foss is recognised in the Staternent of Profit and | oss to the extent, asset s carrying amaunt
exweeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount s igher of an asset's fair value less cost of dispasal
and vaiue in use. Value in use 15 based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate it reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the
assets.

The impairment loss recognised in pricr accounting petiod is reversed if there has been a change (n the estimate
of recoveralle amount.

h} Provisions {other than for employee benefits)
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present abligation flegal or constructive) as a result of 4 past

event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic ben s will be required to s » the
abligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ot tion,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ate discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lability When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

i} Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
cevenue ¢an be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction
of a performance obligatian is measured at the amount of tiansaction price tnet of vartable consideration!
allocated 1o that performance obligation The transaction price ot goods sold and services rendered is net of
variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offere 15 part ot contract,
Revenue from the sale of goeds is recognised when the goods have been ¢ 1ave been passed
Nuo revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertaintics regarding rec nt due. associated



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited {(Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)

CIN: U70101WRB2005PTC106 |
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Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies {SAP)

}} Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income rs recogmised in proht ar loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is

established. interest iIncome or expense 1s recagni using tl  ffectlive interest method.

k) iIncome tax
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business cambination, or items recognized
directly in equity orin QCI
i. Currenttax
Current tax . 'ts and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recavered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet

ji. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recogmised on temporary differences between the carrping amounts of assets and liabilities in

the financial staternents and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deter  tax liabiliies and assets are measured at the tax rates that ¢ 2xpected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reponing period. The carrying amount of De  ed tax liabilities and
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

I} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the barrowing of funds. Barrowing costs
directly atiributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessanly take a substantial period of nime
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where there ts an unrealised exchange Ioss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently theie
is a reahsed or unreahsed gam in respect of the se  :ment or translation of the same horrowing, the gan to the
extent of the loss previously recognised as an adjustment 15 recognised as an adjustment to interest.

m) Foreign currencies transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction,

Manetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Exchange differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Prafit and Loss.

n) Government Grant
Grants from the government are recogrised at their fair value where there is a reasonabie assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will compiy with all attached canditians

o) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is catculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attiibutabte to equity
shareholders by the v jhted averzs number of equity shares putstanding dunng the period.
Fot the purpose of calculating dituted earnings per share the net pro’ ttributable to
eguily shareholders and the weighted a  age number of shares outs 1 are adjusted fon
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Mote: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

p) Recent Pronot .em
Standard notifed but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™ notifics new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 1ssued from ttme to time On March 31, 2023, MCA ar  ded
the Companies 1indian Accounting Standards, Amendment Rules, 2023, as follows:

ayInd AS 1 - Presentation of i inanc:al Statetnents - This amendment requires the entities to disclose thern
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The el tive date for adoption of
this amendment i1s annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the
amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standaione financial staterments

b) Ind AS B - Accounting Pelicies, Changes 1n Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has
introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date tor
adoption of this amendment is annual penods beginning an or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated
the amendment and there 15 no impact on its standalone financial statements

cyInd AS 12 Income Taxes This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial  >gnition exemptions so
that it does not appiy to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective
date for adoption of this  endment 15 annual perioc after Apnil 1 2023 The company has
evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on Qal statements



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P} Ltd.)
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Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital
Equity Share Capital 31st March, 2023 A1st March, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting penod 1,000,000.00 1,000,000 00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -

Restared balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 1,000,00¢.00 1,000.000.00
Changes in eqguity share (apital during the curre  ‘edr
Add: fssue of Share Capital duning the period - -
Less: Shares bought back/ forfieted during the pericd - -

Net changes in Equity Share Capital during the year

Balance at the end of the current reporting period 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

8. Other Equity
Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company 315t March, 20232 315t March, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period {174,759.63) {166,669.77)
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - -

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reparting period {174,759.63) {166,669.77)
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the current year 48,415.48 {8,089.86)
Less: Dividend paid during the year
Less: Transfer to retained earnings

Balance at the end of the current reporting period 132 244 1ch {174,759.63)




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Reaity {P} Ltd.)

CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
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MNotes to the financial statements as on

MNote 1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant &

Furniture &

Particulars . i Vehicles Computers Mobile Total
Machinery Fixtures
Gross carrying amount
As on 31st March, 2021 75.00 71.00 540.50 583.65 525.99 1,796.14
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - -
As on 315t March, 2022 75.00 71.00 540.50 583.65 525.99 1,756.14
Additions - - - - - -
Disposals - - - -
As on 31st March, 2023 75.00 71.00 540.50 583.65 525.99 1,796.14
Accumulated depreciation
As on 31st March, 2021 49.74 64.49 445 98 554.39 499.69 1,614.29
Depreciation charge during the year 4.31 253 53.76 - - 60.60
Mirnasals - - - -
n 31st March, 2022 54.05 67.02 496,74 554.39 496 69 1,674.89
reciation charge during the year 4.31 0.43 13.26 - 18.00
wosals - - - - -
wn 31st March, 2023 58.36 67.45 513.00 554.39 499 69 1,692.89
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2021 25.26 6.51 94.52 29.26 26.30 181.85
MNet carrying amount as at 31st March, 2022 20.95 398 40.76 29.26 26.30 12125
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2023 16.64 3.55 27.50 29.26 26.30 103.25




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited [Formerly RDB Realty {P) itd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposit {(For dematerihsation of shares)
Taotal

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (nat}
On Depreciation Aliowance on Property, Plant & Equipments {net)
Total

Note 4 Inventories
{At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in process of
Total

Note 5 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured;
Qutstanding for a period :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total

Mote 5({a} - Classiflcation of Trade Recaivablas
Trade Receivables considered good — Secured;
Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured;
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk;
Trade Receivatles ~ credit impaired

Note 5{a) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other person;
Cebts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other person;
debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner
or a director or 2 member.

Note 6 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivatents)
Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
Cash on hand {As certified by the management)

Total

Note 7 Financial Assets - Other financial assets {Advance)
Unsecured, considered good
Adwvance to Developer {Refundable)
Total

Note B Other current assets
Unsecired, considered good
Advance to Staff
Advance against land [inventories} to vendors
Cther Advances against expenses

Total

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
450,00 450.00
450.00 450.00
552.70 594 84
552.70 594.84

12,651,396.92

i3,332,898.96

12,651,396.92 13,332,898.96
37.292.14
37,292.14 ;
37,292.14
37,292.14 ]
2.610.42 29,518.75
15.82 20.92
2,626.24 29,539.70
453,000.00 -
453,000.00 -
330.00 285.00
23,310.00 223,310.00
25,833.33 22,233.33
49,473.33 245,828.33




RDB laipur Infrastructure Private Umited (Formerly RDB Realty (P} Ltd.)
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Regd Office: 15t Floor, Bikaner Buiiding, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

MNotes to the financial statements as on

Note 9 Equity Share Capital {Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
2] Authorised Share Capita!
Number of Shares
Total Amaunt

b) Issued, subscribed and fully pajd Share Capiial
Number of Shares
Total Amount

¢t Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d| Details of Shareholders holding more than S% shares with voting right

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares

Percentage of total shares held
Saniay Surana

Number of Shares

Percentage of total shares heid
Gaurishankar Kothari

Number of Shares

Percentage of total shares held
Shyam Sunder Mchata

Number of Shares

Percentage of total shares held
Santosh Devi Dhoot

Number of Shares

Percentage of total shares held
Kedar Nath Dhoot

Number of Shares

Percentage of tatal shares held

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00
10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
13,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
$,363,045.00 5,363,046.00
53.63% 53.63%
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
10.00% 10.00%
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
10.00% 10.00%
933,477.00 933,477.00
9.33% 9.33%
600,000.00 600,000.00
6.00% 6.00%
540977.00 540.977.00
5.41% 5.41%

e} The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment

of capital

The Cnmpany has anly one class of equity shares. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will
be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

proportian to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f} Shares held by hotding, ultsimate holding, or subidharies ar associates of holding

Name of Equity Sharehalders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held

B} Shares are reserved for issue under aptions or contracts.
Number of Shares & Amount

h} Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus or bought back from sharebold

No shares have been ssued for consideration ather than cash

The compmany have not issued bonus shares nor have bought back any shares at any time.

5.363,046.00
53.63%

5,363,046.00
53.63%

period of 5 years
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CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd OFice: 1st Floor, Bikaner Ruilding, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Notes to the financial statements as on

1} Details of Promoter shareholding as at the end of year
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Goun Shankar Kothari
Sanjay Babulal Surana
Mohta Ventures LLP
Santosh Devi Dhoot
Kedar Nath Dhoot
¥MS Finance Pvt Ltd
Unigue Buildcon Private Limited
Land Mark Promotors Private Limited
Rajshree Promotors Private Limited
Vision India Private Limited
Sunder Lal Dugar
Land Mark Flaza Private Limited
Landmark Projects {India} Private Limited
Note: There have been no changes in the promoler shareholding during the year.

Note 10 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year

Dther Comprehensive Ingome
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Cornprenensive Income

Total

Note 11 Financia! Liability {Other Financial Liability)
{Unsecured, as per terms of agreement}
Refundable security deposit against project {interest free)
The above deposit have been recewed from Developers pursuant to Joint
Development Agreement between Landowner (RDB Jaipur) and Developers.
Total

Note 12 financiai liabilities - Borrowings
{Unsecured, Repayable on Demand, interest bearing, Including Interest))
From holding Company
Non Banking Financial Companies
Other body Corporates
Total

31st March, 2022

Number of Shares

31st March, 2022

% of shares held

5,363,046.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
933,477.00
600,000.00
540,977.00
325,000.00
72,500.00
32,500.00
32,500.00
32,500.00
30,000.00
25,000.00
12,500.00

{174,759.63)
48,415.48

53.63%
10.00%
10.00%
9.33%
£.00%
5.41%
3.25%
0.73%
0.33%
0.33%
0.33%
0.30%
0.25%
0.13%

{166,669.77)
{8.089.86)

" (126,304.15)

{174,759.63}

{126,344.15)

{174,759.63)

Note 12.3 - Loan have heen availed for general business purpose and have been used for business purpose.
Note 12.b - Loan taken are tn accordance with provisions of Section 73 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act.
Note 12.c - There is no default as on the batance sheet date in repayment of loans or interest thereof.

Note 13 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding of micra enterprises and small enterprises;
outstanding of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises,

Trade payables outstanding for a penad :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
Z2-3 years
More than 3 years

900,000.00 900,000.00
900,000.00 900,000.00

- 160,225.59
112,704 BS 72.00
421,762.06 422,820.88
534,466.91 583,118.47
494,400.00 494,400.00
494,400.00 454,400.00
494,400.00 494,400.00
494,400.00 454,400.00




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited {Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CiN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 14 financial liabilities - Cther Financial Liabilities
Advances from Joint deveiopers against share of Revenue

Advances against tand
Total

Note 15 Other Current Liahilities
Statutory Payabtes
Salary Payable
Pravision for expenses payable
Total

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

3,515,139.89 3,602,851.01
7,074,176.46 7,199,176.46
10,539,316.35 10,802,027.47
2,720.28 3,830.87
135.18 665.90

200.00 150.00
3,055.46 4,646.77




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P} Ltd.)
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MNotes to the financial statements

Note 16 Revenue from Operations
Sate of Construclign activities

Share of proceads from foint Venture {Revenue sharing moded)

TOTAL

Note 17 Other Income
Interest Income
Total

Note 18 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses

Interest & Other Finance Cost (in aconrdance with INL - -23)
Consumation

Note 19 Changes in it tories of work-in-progress
Opening inventory of Wark in Progress
Less : Closing Inventary of Work in Progress
{increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 20 Employee Benefits Expense
Salares, Wages and exgratia
Total

Note 21 Finance Cost
Interest on Loan
Total

Note 22 Other Expenses
Rates & Taxes
Annual Custodial and Others Charges
Fil “ees
Conveyance Expenses
Travelling Expenses
Bank Char
Profassional Charges
General Expenses
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments
Auditar's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit
Total

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

778,198.47 -

778,198.47 -

7,636.76 -
26,803.79 37,939.79
34.440.55 37,939.79

13,332,858.96
12,651,396.92

13,294,955.17
13,332,898.96

681,502.04 (37,939.79)
7,678.60 6,714.44
7,678.60 5,714.44

47.50 46.50
265.50 324.50
66.60 54.50
43.82 53.25
725.07 688.82
6.53 .
4,463.50 83.00
283.13 1.11
150.00 150.00
50.00 -
6,101.65 1,401.63
















RDB Jaipur infrastructure Private Limited (Formeriy RDB Realty {P] Ltd.}

CIN: U70101WB200SPTC106328

Notes to and forming part of the financial

1

OHlce: 1st Floor, 8ikaner Building, 8/1

'ments

Cash and cash equivalents
Other finannial assets {Advance)
Total Financial Assets
Financial Lighilities
Non Current
Other financial fiak 2
Current
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabitities

Capital Requirements

Bazar Street, Kalkata-700001

29.539 /0 .
29,989.70 .
300,600 -
583,118 583,118
454,400 454,400
10,802,027 10,802,027
12,779,540 11,879,546

Far the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premiwum and all other equity
reserves attributable to the eguity holders of the Company The primary objective of the Company’s capital management s to

maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requiraments of the financial covenants. 1o maintamn ar adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors caprtal using a gearing ratio,

which 1s net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. 1he Company mcludes within net debt, interest bearr  pans and
borrowtings, trade and other pay: s less cash and cash equiw 5
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Particulars . .
{in Rs.} fin Rs.}

Borrog\.rfngs {long-term  and _ short-term, ncluding  current 534 466.91 583,11¢
maturities of iong term borrowings)
Trade payables 494,400.00 494,400.00
Othe b t and - t ludi t

er F:a'.ra ; &5 ICUH’En an non-current, excluding curren 11,489,31635 11’702’02?47
maturities of long term borrowings)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents [2,626.24) (29,529.70)
Net deht 12,515,557.03 12,750,006.24
Equity share capital 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Other equity {126,344 15} {174,759.63)
Tatal Capital 873,655.85 §25,240.37
Gearing ratio 0.07 0.06

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets

financial covenants attached to the interest-t

ng loans and borrewings that define capital structure reguirements. Breaches in

meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in

s financial caven:

of any interest-bearing lnans and borrowing in the current penod.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and

March 31, 2022,

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial labiiies comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial iabilihes is to finance and suppart Company's operatinns, The Company's principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its

aperations.

The Comparny's activities expose 1t to a vanely of financial risks, incloding market risk, cre
ent focus s to mimmise potential adverse effects of market risk on
dual characteristic of
risk from the top few customers, The Campany’s risk management assessment and polici

primary risk man:

Company's osure to cn risk is influenced mainly by the ir

;k. The Company's
ce. The

- concentration of
stablished to




ROB Jalpur Infrastructure Pri
CIN: U70101WB200SPTC106328
Office 1stFloor  aner Buildwng, B/1, Lal Bazar Street, k

o and forming part of the financial statements
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113-700001

identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk timits and contrals, and to manitar such risks and

compliance
market conditions and the Company’s activities

1 the same, Risk assessment and management policies and proces

are rewiewed regularly to reflect changes in

This note presents information abeut the Company’s expasure to each of the above risks, the Company's objectives, policigs and

processes far measuring and managing risk,

The Company has exposure to the foliowing risks ansing from financial instruments.

(1) Credit risk, (1) Liquidity risk, and (ui} Market risk

i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk of financial loss of the Company «f a customer ar counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally form the Company recetvables from customers. Credit arises when a customer ar
counlerparty does not meetts obhgations under a financial instrument or custamer contract, leading to 2 financial loss. The
and from its financing activities,
including depasits with bank. The Company has na significant concentratian of credit risk with any counterparty. The carrying
amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit 115k exposure.

Company is exposed to ¢

Trade receivables

t risk from its operating actwities {pnmarily trade receivabl

Receivabies resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit nisk is managed by reguiring customers (o pay advances before
transfer of ownership, therefore, substantially ebminating the Company’s credit nisk in thes respect.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:
Particulars

More than & months

Others

it} Liguidity Risk

As on 31.03.2023
37,292.14

As on 31.03.2022

Liquidity risk 15 defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable
price. Prudent liquidity risk management impties maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities 1o meet obhigations when due. The Company's finance team s

responsible for liquidity, funding as

as settlement management In addition, Pracesses and policies refated to such risks

are overseen by senior management Management momitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the

basis of expected cash flows.

The Cempany's approach to managing Liguidity s to ensure, as far as possible, that 1L will have sufflicient liquidity ta meet its

liabilities w
damage to the Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table b + provides details regarding the rerm
based on cantractual undiscounted payments

Particulars
As at 31st
Borrowings

rch 2023

Trade payables
Other Fivancial abilties Mon Carrent

Ot Financial Liabilities - Current

As at 31st March 2022
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other Financial {iabilities - Non Carrent
Other Financial Liabihties - Current

ng contractual maturities of fi

they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withaut incurnng unacceptable la¢

or risking

sial latyhhes at the reparling date

Less than 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years
534,466.91
494,400.00
900,000 00
10,582,316.35 -
11,618,183.26 900,( 00
583,112 47
q494,400.00
[

10,802,027.47



RDB laipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN- U70101WB2005PTC106328

Regd Cffice: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal § Street, Kolkata- 700001

Notes to and formi  art of the financial statements

11,879,545.54

900,000.00 -

i) Market risk.

Market risk 15 the risk that the fair vatue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk. interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commaodity/ real estate nisk. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodsly derivative contracts. The
comapny has availed fixed rate borrowings and accordingly, there s no sigmificant exposure to the market risk

a) Interest rate nsk

Interest rate risk is t isk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financal instrument will fluctuate because of
changes i market interast rates. The Company's expasure to the risk of changes in market interest rates retates primarify

to the ( ompany’'s borrowings.

Company manages its interest rate risk by accepting loans and barrowings of fixed rate. Maost of the borrowings of the
Company are unsecured and at fized rates, The Company does not entar into any inlarest rate swaps.

k] Other Price risk - Company does notl have any exposure 1|

aity (nstruments or commodity, subject to price change

¢} Currency risk - The Campany does not have any exposure in foreign currency.

For Vineet
Chartered

Vineet Khetan & Associates
Membership No. 060270
folkata

UDIN

Date

For and on behall of the Board
for RDB laipur Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

Directar
Pradeep Hirawat
BiIN: DOD47872
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
RDE MUMEBAI INFRASTRUCTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RDB Mumbai Infrastructures
Private Limited (the “Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2023, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate o] * “yese matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Auw are not applicable to the
Company as itis an unlisted company.



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overs mpany's financial reporting
process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
proiessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staternents,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the finanrial «tatamantg that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisi iably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We ¢ ative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit w uating the resuits of



our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We alsc provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crger, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financia! statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31 ?"?2 #é~~ peing appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the A



Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company has pending litigations which would impact its financial
position,

Forum before which appeal is Year Amount(Rs.}
pending

Commissioner (Appeal) of Income | 2014-15 24,848,150
Tax

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.,

i) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The guestion of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
tn any other person(s} or entity{ies), including foreign entities
("intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on t 2 Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guare ity or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and



(c} Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
1897(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Assaociates,
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Reon No- RQAADBE)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kelkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023,
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIU4079



RDB Mumbaj Infrastructures Private Limited
L5t Floor. Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkma - 700001
CIN L'S1LO9WBI0OTPTC 114242

Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2023
{Currency: Rupees in thousonds)

Particulars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Npo-current assels
(a) Property. Plant and Equipment 3 16.23 23.69
vy Financial Assews
(1 Tnvestment E) 44,589 35 1,16,919 44
(dy Deferred tax assets (Wet} 3 4§1.33 2238
10y Other non-current assets - -
Total Non - Current Assets 45,016.90 1,17,166.50
Current assels
(a) Inventories ] 27392597 26337324
(b Financial Assets
(1) Trude receivables 7 16,674 17 821923
11} Cash and cash equivalents & 287 30 144596
(it (xher finzncial assets 2 38750 387504
{e) Curtent Tax Asseis (nel) 1 6,536.33 6.516.33
(dy Other current asseis I 3245072 3240287
Tolal Current Assets 1,33, 749.54 3.15,834.48
Total Assets 3,78,766.43 4,33,000,98

EQUITY AND LTABILITIES

Equity
{a} Equity Share capnal f2 10,000 .60 10,000 00
{b) Other Cguity i3 (3.32397) {2.807 78}
Total equlty 6,676,403 7.192.22
Liabilities

Mon-current lighbilities
{a} Financial Liabilities

(1} Borrowings id 19,964.95 8435610
{11} Other financial liabilities I5 - -
Total non-current liabilities 19,964.08 §4,396.10

Current Lablitties
{a) Financial Liabilities

1) Dotrowings 16 43,163 490 52.941 15

tny Trade and other payables i7 28582 847.7%

tin) Other finaneial habiliues i8 350.74 331 55

{&1 Other current hiatnitdies iy 3,08.325.00 3 R7.292 20

{c) Provisions 24 - -

Total Current Liabitities 3.,52,125.46 341,412,866

Total Habilities 3,72,00).41 4,25.808.76

Totnl Equity & Liabilities 3,78,766.43 4,33,000.98
Significant accounting policies f-2
Nates to the accounts 3.4

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per vur report of even da
For Yineet Khetan & Associ Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charmerad Accountants

¥inece suavian

Praprietwr

Membership No Q60270 DIN UUUGS 6894y DIN 0003106868
3B.1Lal Bacar Street,

Kalkata - 700 001

The th dav of 2023




RDB Mumbsi Infrastructures Private Limited
I's1 Floor, Bikaner Building, $/1, Lal Bazar Strect, Knlkats - 700001
CIN US1109WB2007PTC114242

Sdatement of proflt and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Rupecs i theawsands)

Ax per aur report of even date
For Vineet Khetan & Assaciates
Churtered dccoumtanis

Vineet Khetan

Proprictor

Membership Mo 060270

3B.Lal Bazar Sireet,

Kolkata - ToU 001

| The hday of 023

Phe accompuny g nutes form an integra! part of the financif siatements

Particulars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue
Kevenue [rom operations 24 17.68 VITAILS
Cther 1Acoine 22 497 37 172,59
Total Revenue 515.0% 1,77.883.79
Expenses
Construetion Actvity Expenses 23 10,713 73 7895345
Chanpes 1n inventones and work-in-progress 2 {10,550 73) 95.027.39
Empluyes benefit expense 23 1400 ]
Deprzciatron and amortisation expense 1 7.47 |4 6t
Finance costs 26 196,57 38975
(nher expanses ke B42.17 1,514 06
Total expenses 1,219.21 1,76,198.97
Profit before tax (704.16) 1.684.82
Less: Income 1ax expenses
- Cumrent ax -
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year - {729 381
- Detemred Tax {187.96) 437 63
Total tax expense {187.96) {2491.73)
Profit alter tox (516.20) 1,976.55
Uther comprehensive income
fremy that wmony be reclassified e profit or toss - -
Itemms that will not he reclavsified 1o profit or toss
i1) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income * -
(i1} Remeasuremeants of the defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {516.20) 1,976.55
Earningy per equity share
Profit availeble for Equily Sharcholders (516.20) 1,976.55
Weiphied average number of Equity Shares outstunding 1,000.00 1 .000.0u
Basic earnings per share {In Rs) {052y 1.93
Diluted sarnings per share (In Rx) (B52) 1938
Significant accounting policies i-2
Notey 10 the accounts J-4t!

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

BTN Mumhai Infrectructnree Preivata 1 imirad

DIN 0069368949

DIN: DD03 LD6B6E




RDB Mumbal Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Strect, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: USL109WB2007PTC 114242

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

Currency: Rupees w thousands)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A, Cash flow from operating activities -
Net profit before tax as per Statemnent of Prolit and Losy {704.18) 1.684.82
Adjustments far
Sundry Balances written back
Depreciation & Amorusation 7.47 1461
Interest Paid 196.57 389.75
Operating Profit Befure Working Capital Changes (300.12) 1.089.18
t[ncrease) / Decrease in Invenwaries (10,325.05) 1.01.870.20
tlerease) + Decrease in Trade receivables 18,454 94) 19.462.97
{[ncrease} / Decrease of Advances - -
{lncrease) / Decrease of Other Mnancials assets - 3,000,00
{Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assels 148.05) 1.925.02
Increase / { Decrease) in Trade Payables {56154) {9.021.61)
Increase / {Decrease) of Other Nnancial liabilities 1919 48.28
Increase / { Decrease) of Other Current Liabafities 21,032 80 (17,194.23)
Cash generated from operations 1.161.89 1.04,280.80
Less: Direct tases paid/ (Refunds) includimg Enterest (Met) (20.00) {1.231.74H)
Iet cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 1,141.89 1.03,049.06
B. {lash Flow lrom Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets - {18.60)
Changes of Investment 72330 10 (36.238.88
beet eash from investing activities 72,330.10 (36,277.48)
C. Cash flow from (inancing activities :
|ssne of Shares
Proceeds / {Repayvinent) of Long Term Borrowings (64.431.14) {82.807.22)
Proceeds / {Repayment) of Shon Term Horrowings 19,777.25) 23.656.89
Interest Paid {422.25) {7.333.56)
Net cash generated/{used) in nancing activities 174,630.64) (66,483.89)
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and cash eqnivalents (1,158.66) 2R7.69
Cash and vasit equivalents -Opening balance 1,445 96 1.158.27
Cush and rash equivalents -Closing balance 287.30 1.445.96
Significant accounting policies f-2
Notes o the accounts 3-40
The uccompunying notes form an wnegreal purt of the finuncial staiements
As per gur report of even date
For Vincel Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants RDB Mumbasi Infrastructures Prive® ™~

Yineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270 DIN: 00069368959
3B.l.al Bazar Street,

Kolkata - 700 001.

The th day of 2023

Kir
Direcror
DIN: 0003106868




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited

Significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2023

2.1

1.2

Company Information

RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (Formerly Maple Tie Up Private Limited) (The Company) is 2 deemed Public
limited company. private company being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a
pert of a Compay leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1,
Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, | Floor, Room No. 10, Kolkata-7T0080 1, The principle business activity of the company is
Real Estate Development,

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

Basis of preparation

The financial statements (Separate Nnancial statements) have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with [ndian
Accounting Standards {Ind. AS} notified under the Companies {Indian Actounling Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
thine to time) and presentalion requirements of Division 11 of Schedule [11 t> the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliani
Schedule (1), us applicable 1o the standalone financial statements.

Basis of messurement

The lnancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Further, the Minancial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities which have been measured ot fair value as explained in relevant accounting policies.

Operating Cycle

An asset is considered as ¢urrent when it is;

*Expected te be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal aperating cycle,

*Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

*Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

»Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least iwelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets arg ¢lassified as non-current,

A liability is considered as current when;

*1t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

*[t is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

*It is due to be settled within rwelve months after the reporting period, or

*There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve months after the reporting period

All other ligbilities are classitied as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are ¢ irrent assets and liabilities.



RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited

Significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2023

2.3

The Company’s normal operating cycle in respect of eperations relating to the construetion uf real estate projects may vary
frem preject to preject depending upon the size of the project, type of development, project complexities and related
approvals. Accordingly, project related assers and liabilities have been classilied in to current and non-current based on
operating cycle of respeclive project. All other assets and liabilities have been classilied into current and non-current based on
a period of twelve months.

Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS reguires
management to meke judgments, estimales and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues. expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimales could result in outcotnes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets ar }abilities affected
in luture periods.

i} Key estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporling date, that have a
significant risk of causing 4 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
are described below. The Compuny based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the [inancial statemnents
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about futurs developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contro of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

ii} Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage ol-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for unbilled revenue and
contract cost thereon for its reul estute und contractual projects. The percentape of completion is measured by reference to the
stage of the projects and contracts determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date
bear to the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to estimate the
efforts or costs expended to daic as & proportion of the totl ¢Morts or costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are
required in determining the stage of completion. the exient of the contract ¢ost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue
and contract cost and the recoverability of the contracts. These estimales ure based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects execuled through joint development arrangements, refer clause (i) below as regards
estimates and assumptions involved.

iii} Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)
Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV),

NRYV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date
and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identilied by the Company for properties in the same
geographical market serving the swmne real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for
siinilar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the
date of completion,

With respect to Land advance given, the net """ is based on the present value of future cash flows, which
depends on the estimate of, among other thi that a project will he completed, the expected date of
completion. the discount rate used and the ¢ rices and construction costs,
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as folluws;

i. Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method. Revenue recognition starls
when 23 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the salzable project area is
secured by contracts or agreements with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any
other legally enforceable documents are realised af the reporting date in respect of each of the contracts and it is reasonable to
expect that the pariies to such contracts will comply with the payment terms as delined in the contracts.

il Reverue from Construction Contracts are recognised an "Percentage of Completion Method" measured by reference to
the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts,

lii. Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales retum.
iv. Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services 1o customers except otherwise stated

v. Rental income from assets is recognised tor an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered
doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

vi. Income from interest is uccounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable rate of interest.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price. any costs directly attributable to its
acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
localed, the obligation for which the company incurs when the item is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate assel, as apprapriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item ean be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of un item of property. plant ani equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the ilem is
depreciated sepurately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When signifieant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be repluced at intervals. the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its eost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition crileria are satisticd. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or fuss as
incurred.

An jten of property, plant and equipmenl and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognised upon disposal or when
ne future eeconomic benefits are expected {rom its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and he earrving amount of the asset) is ineluded in the income
statement when the Property, plant and equipment is derecognised.

(n transition to Ind AS. the company has elected to continue with the earrying value of all its property, plant and equipment
recognized as at 1st April 2016 measured as per the prev’ " *7 14 use that earrying value as the deemed cost of the
property. plant and equipment,
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2.10

Intanpible assess

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assels are carried at cost less any accumuiated amortization and accumulated impnirment loss.

The amortisation period and the wnortisation method for an intangihle asset with a tinite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reponting period.

On transition to Ind AS, the compuny has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its inlangible assets recognized is
at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previcus GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs aftributable to the ucquisition or construction of a qualifving asset are carried as pari of the cost of such asset.
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time tu get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the vear they are incurred.

Depreciafion and amortization

Depreciation on properly. plant and cquipment is calculated using the straight-line method 1o allocate their cost, net of their
residual values. over their estimated useful lives.

The usetul lives estimated for the major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on written down value method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the
management and as given in schedule Il of The Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a perivd
is proportionately charged.

Suflwares are amortized over the cstimated useful life of 5 years.

The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at ¢ach tinancial
vear end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an iodication that both tangible
and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds 118
recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if. the reversal can be related objectively to an
event veeurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Conslructed propertics. shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land {in¢luding development rights and land under
agrezments to purchase), internal developinent costs, external development costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing
costs. vonstruction materiuls including material fving at respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute
1o bring the inventory Lo their present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realicable
valye.
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On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head “Inventory™ and the same is
carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is Jess.

Finished Goods — Flais: Valued al cost and net realizahle value.
Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for absolescence in inventories is made. wherever required.
Retirement Benefits
Short Term employee benefit

Short term employee benelits such as salaries. wages, bonus. expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recagnised in the period in
which the emplovee renders the related service

Long Term and Post—employment benefits
No such benelits are payable to any employee.
Provisions, Coantingent Liabifities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilitiey that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation if the company
has a present obligation us a result of past event and the amount of ebligation can be reliably estimated.

It the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounfed using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of

time is recognised as a finance cosl.

Passible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outllow of resources or where (be same cannot be
reliably estimated is disclosed as comingent ljability in the financial statement.

Tuxes on fncome

i Tax expense conprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of taxable income for the yeur
based on applicable tax rates and {aws.

1i. Deferred tax Assel/liability is recognizizd, subject 10 considerntion of prudence, on timing differences being the
Jifferences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in one year and is capable of reversal in one or

more subsequent vear and measured using tax rate 7 " " ave been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheer date. Deferred tax assets are not recognized rtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets cz :ferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to

reassess their reliability.
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ii. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid
under MAT are available as 2 set olf against regular corporate tax payable in subsequent years, as per the provisions of
Income Tux Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence thar the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, te., the period for which MAT credit is aliowed to be camried forward. In the year in
which the Campany recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance

Nate on Accaunting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said
asset ts created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company
reviews the "MAT credit entitlement™ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does
not have convincing evidence that it will pay normat tax during the specified period.

Forefgn Currency Transactions

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effzct at Balance Sheet date.
The gains or fasses resulting from such translation are included in the Statement of Profit und Loss. Non-monctary assets and
nonmonetary liabilitics denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the

date of transactions.

Revenue. expense and cash Now items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on
the date of transaction.

Segiment Repariing

ihe company has identificd that its operating activity is a singlc primary business segment viz. Real Estate Development and
Services carried out in India. Accordingly. whale of India has been considered as one geographical segment.

Eurnings Per Share

Buasic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year atiributable to cquity shareholders by the
weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding during the yeur.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the vear attributable 10 equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the vear ure adjusted for the effects ot all dilutise potential
equity shares.

Cash & Cash Equivalenrs

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The Company considers all highly
liquid investments with a remainiog maturity af the date of purchase of three months or less, which are subject o an
insigniticant risk of changes in value, net of putstanding & ey are considered an integral pan of the
Company's cash management and that are readily convent ints of cash to be cash equivalents.
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Financial [nstruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial position when the company
becomes a party 1w the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the classification of its financial
wisets and liabilities at initial recognition, All financial assets are recogrized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fuir value (hrough profit or loss, transaction costs that are aftributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Financial assets -Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent meusurement ol financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financtal assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the near term and those designated
upun initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans and receivables are non derivative [inancial assets with fixed or determninable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at thelr nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance
for estimnated irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally, a
large number of minor receivables are Compayed into homogenous Cumpays and assessed for impairment callectively.
Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible,

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cosl if both the folluwing conditivns ure met:

1.The asset is held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets far colleeting contractual cash flows, and
ii.Contractuul terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pringipal and interest
{SPPI) on the principal amount ouistanding.

This category {s the most refevant to the Compay. After initial measurement. such financizl assets are subsequently measurad
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or casts that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is ingluded in

finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from {mpairment are recognized in the prefit ar loss. This category
generully applies to trade and other receivables.

Debrt instrument at FVTOCI
A *debl instrument” is classitied as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met;

i.The objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash fJows and selling the financial assets,

and
il. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL. Debt inst d within the FV'TOC] category arc measured
inftially as well as at each reporiing date ut fair value, Fair valy re recognized in the other comprehensive

income {OCT.
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is 4 residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria lor categorization as
at amorized cost or as FYTOCL. is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair valug with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In addition, the Compay may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amontized cost or FVTOCT criteria,
as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only it doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognilion
inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’). The Compay has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. falling within the scope of Ind AS
109, are measured al fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {OCl). The company makes an irrevocable election on
an instrument by instrument busis to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initia! recognition and is irevocable. 1f the company decides to designate an equity instrurnent at fair
value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends. are recognized in the OCIL.

Financial assets -Derecognition

The compans derecognizes a financial asset when the contraclual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers
the finuncial assel and substantially atl the risks and rewards of ownership of the asser. Lipon derecognition of equity
instruments desipnated at fair value through OCL, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument i< lransterred
trom GO o Retained Tamings,

Financial liabilities - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are clussified, al initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings. or as payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s lnancial liabilities include trade and other payables, Joans and borrowings including bank o crdralts.
Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of tinancial labilities depends on their classification which is as follows:

Financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss

FFinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include fnancial Habilities held for trading, if any, and (inancial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recg 35
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Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effeclive interest rate methed (EIR), Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fee or ¢osts that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in tinance costs in the
statemnent of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities —Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liabilily is discharged or expires.

Fair Vufue measurement

The company measures ¢erlain financial instruments at fair value ar ¢ach reperting date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

a. In the principal market for the assets or liability or

b. In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market tor the asset or liabiliny,

The principal or the most advantageous market mnust be accessible to the company. The company uses valuation technigue that
arg uppropriate in the circumstances and for which sufiicient data are available to measure fair value. maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which tair value is measured or disclosed in the linancial slaternents are categorised within the fair
value hicrarchy. described as follows, based on the howest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thar is significant to the fhir value measurement is dicectly
or indirectly observable, or

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signilicant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transiers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

Impairment of financial assers

The Company assesses at cach date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind

AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measuge” *--~e~ b~ '~ -llowance, The Company recognizes lifetime expected
losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receival astitute a financing transaction. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amo -month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to

the life time expected credit losses, if the credit risk ¢ et has increased significantly since initial recognition,
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Statement of changes in equity lor the year ended 31 March 2023

A. Equity Share Capital
(Currency. Riupees in thousands)

Particulars Amount (Ks.)

Balance as at 1 April 2021 10,000.00
Chanpes in equity share capital during the vear -
Balance s at 31 March 2022 10,000.00
Chanpes in equity share capital during the vear -

Balance as at 31 March 2023 10,000.00

B. Other Equity

{Currency. Rupees in thousands)

. Retained
Particulars .
Eurnings
Balance at | April 2021 (4.784.33)
Transfers -
Profit for the vear 1.976.53
Other comprehiensive inepme -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,976.55
Balance at 31 March 2022 {2,807.78)
Transters -
Profit for the Year (516.200
Other comprehiensive inceme -
Tetal comprehensive income for the period (516.20)
Bulance at 31 March 2023 {3.323.97)
Significant accounting policies ]2
Notes ie the accounly 3-40
The accompamying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants RDB Mumbai Infrastructures P-isesn I iniend
Yineer nneran
Proprietor e LArELIOr
Membership No. 060270 DEN: 00069368949 DIX: D003 106%68

11, L.al Bazar Street.
kolkata - 700 001,
The th day of 2023
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 3: Property, plant and equipment
(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

Particulars Office Equipment Computers Total
Gross Block

Balance as at 1 April 2021 69.63 178.23 247.86
Additions during the year 18.60 - -
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 §8.23 178.23 266.460
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 88.23 178.23 266.46

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2021 61.83 166.32 228.15
Depreciation charge during the year 11.79 2.83 14.61
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 73.62 169.15 242,77
Depreciation charge during the year 7.29 0.17 7.47
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 80.91 169.32 250.23
Net Block

Balance as at 31 March 2022 14.61 9.08 23.69

Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.31 8.91 16.23
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{Currency. Rupecy i thovsands)
Nates to the finuncial statements 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Mote 4 Financial Assets (Investment)

A} Investments in Equity Iastruments
{E!} In Associates (Unquoted)

Cityhife Realty Private Limited 43 00 43.00
fFigusty share with foce volue of Bs I per sharve)

B) Investments in Purtnership Firm

Regent Associates (51% share in Profit) 43,529 28 1,16.364.495

Diselosure of Investment in Pannershup Firm {Regent Associates)
Name of Parner and Share of Investment

RDH Mumbai lofrasiruciures Private Limited {51%% 4352928 1,16,364.95
Dhammendra Lalchand Jaun (11%) 15,803 73 13, 806.03

Lalchand Pannalal Jain {1 1%} 501549 5719

Lezla Lalchand Jain {11%) 5,797.44 5,799.74
Mahendra Lalchand Jain (8%} 9,459.31 336098

Pravecn Lalchand Jain (8%) 11.804.17 11,805 85
91,409.42 1,64,255.35

Repgeat Developers & Builders (60% share in Profii) (5745 157.25)

Disclosure uf Investment 1n Parinership Fimm
Name of Paniner and Share of |nvestmem

RIJB Mumbm Infrostructures Peivate Limited (60%) 157.45) 15725

Keshulal Mehia (40%) 5814 5827

Mazhendra Bokadia (15%) - 180
0.69 3.91

C) Investmenis in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)

RDAB Mumbai Houasing LLP (67% share in Profit) 0.64 4.97
[hsclasure of Invesiment in Pannership Firm
Name of r and Share of Inveslment
RDB Mumbar Iafrastructures Povate Limued {67%) 0.64 457
Shashank Bansode {33%) 296 25 298 38
296,90 303.34
RDEB Mumbai Realty LLP (90% share in Profit) 4715 5774
Dhsclosure of Investment in Partnership Firm
tame of Partner and Share of Investmenl
RD¥E Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (50%) 4715 5774
Harish Mali {10%} {6.86) (5.69)
30,2¢ £2.08
Fixed deposit with JCIC] Bank - -
Fixed deposit wilth Kenak Bank 102672 508 14
44,589,35 1,16.919.44
Note 5 Deferrad tax assels (net)
Deferred Tax Assets on
- Un Fixed Assets 443 4,88
- On Brougit Forward Losses 406,90 21849

Total 411.33 223.37
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MNotes to the financial statements

Note & Inventories

AL lpwer of cost or Net Realisable value)
Unsold Flat - Hema Niwas CHS Lid
Work 1n process

Tartal Inventories

™ote 7 Financial Assels (Trade receivables)

Trade receivables- considered pood

Trade receivables from related parties - considered good

Less. Allowance tor doubtful debts

Taotal

Dreak up of security details:

Trade receivables

tay  Secured, considered good

tivy  Unsecured, considered good

ey Doubtful

Less Allowance for doublful debis

Taoal

Trade receivables apeing schedule

Particulars

fUurrency. Rupues in thousgnds)

31 March 2023

173492587

31 Murch 2022

26337524

2,73,925.97 2,63,375.24
16,674.17 821923
16,674.17 8.219.23
16,674.17 821923
16,674.17 8,21%.23

W urrency, Bupees o thausends)

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

t1) Undisputed Trade Recgnvables - Considered goodCutsianding for the following periods from the due date

of paymenis

Less than & months
A months - 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 vears
Total

Note 8 Financial Assets {Cash and Cash Equivalents)

ta) Balances with banks (Unrestnicted m Cument Account)
b+ Cash in hand

Total
Note 9 Financial Assets {Other financial assets)

Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposil

Tatal
Note 10 Current tax assets and labilities
Current tax assets (Advance Income Tax and TD%)

Tatal

- 328250
11,737.44 493673
4.936.73
16,674,17 8216923
2468 1,195.63
26233 15033
287.30 1,445.96
387504 387504
387504 3,875.04
6,536.33 651633
5,536.33 £,516.33
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{Currency. Rupees in thonsands)
Motes o the fingncial statemenis 31 March 2023 3 March 2022

Note 11 Ocher current assets

Advance o suppliers against Material 3891 1031 81
Advance to suppliers against Expenses - 32
Balznees with government autharties - -
Pre pard 2xpenses - -
Other Advances 3241181 31349 54

Tatul 33,450.72 32402.67
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MNotes to the nancial statements

Mate 17 Equity Share Capital {Equity Shares of Ba.10/- each)
&) Authotised Share {'amital

Number of Shares

Total Ameunt

by Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Cagtal
“utnber of Shares

Tolal Amount

¢] Reconeiliation af Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As al the beginmng of the year
Add: Issued dunng the vear
As at the end of the year

dj Detarls of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with vating right
Nume of Eguity Shareholders
Sty & Inftgstruciure Lid

Mumber of Shares

Percentage of Tolul shares held
Kiran Ponngmchand biall

Number of Shargs

Percentage of Toral shares held
Vikush Mohan Thanwar

MNumber of Shares

Percentuge of Total shares held
Wasge] Ehan

Mumber of Shares

Pereentage of Total shares held

&) The nphts_preferences & restnetions attaching o shares and restrictions on distribution of
drvidend and repayiment ol capitul

f urrency . Rupees i ilousaedy)

31 March 2023

31 March 2021

10.000.00 10,0000
1,006,000, 08 1,00,000,00
1,000,600 [REL IR
10,000,080 10,000,085
1,000.0¢ F,000.00
[RDXEH 1.050 00
510,00 51008
5100%% 51 00%
163,33 i63.33
16.33%0 i4.33%
163.34 163.34
& 334 16 33%
163,33 163 33
16.33% 16.33%

The Company has only one class ol equity shares. Each holder of equity shares 1s enitled to one vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends
Indian rupees. The disidend proposed by Lhe Board of Duectars is subjec! to the approval of the shareholders in the emsuing Annual General Meeting o the event

of hquidation of the company, the holders of eyuity shares will be entitled to receve r
ampunts The distribution will be in propartion to Lhe number of equity shares held hy the shareholders

N fE
RDB Realty & Infrastructore Lid
MNumber of Shares
Percentage of Total shares held

ity Sh

hol

gt Shares are reserved for issue under aptions or contraces

Numnber of Shares & Ampunt

h) Shares issued for gonsiderapon gther than cagh or bots to sharcholders or bought back from
sharehalders witin the period of € years
Mo such shares have been issued nor there bas beeo any buy-back

Slhypon
51%

2 assets of the company, after distribulion of all preferentizl

R LR
51.00%

i} Shares beld by Promotoers
As at 31 March 2023 fCurrency” Rupees o dionsands)
Mo, pf Shares at Mo of Shares st
the [ ' |Change during the end ufshe | %o of1onal shares | % change duning,
Presnoters Narme the vear the ¥eur vear {In Rsl the vear
HDB Realr & Entrosiruciures Lid 510.0u0 - 540000 51.00 -
Kiran P Mali 163333 - 163.333 16.33 -
Waseen J Khan 163,334 - 163.334 16.34 -
Wikash M Jhanwer 163,333 - 163.333 16.33 -
Total 1,{0{.00:0 1,046,000 100.00 -
Asg at 31 March 2021 {Currency: Rupees in thousonds;
Mo of Shares at N, h L
the begning of | Change during | the epd ofthe | %hofiota] shares | 26 chauge during
Promoters Maine the vear the Year year tin Rs} tlig venr
RDB Realyy & [nfrastructures Ltd 510 000 - 510.00¢ 51.60 -
Kiran P Mali 163 333 - 163.333 16,13 -
Waseain J khan 163 334 - 163 334 16,34 -
Vikash M Jhanwer 163333 - 163 333 16,33 -
Tata| } 1,000,000 10014 -




RIDH Mumhai Infrastructures Private Limited
15t Floor, Bikaner Bullding. 871, Lal Bazar Sweet, Kolkata - 700001
CIN DSTICYWRNKTPTC 14242
(Cwrrency, Rupees in thousands)
MNotes to the Minancial statemenis 31 March 2623 31 March 2022

Note 13 Other cquity

Reserve & Surplus
Surplus Irem Stutement of I'rofit & Loss

As at the hegsnning of the year {2.807.78} (4.754.33)
Add Profi for (he year {516 20} 1970 53
Add: Ind AS Adjustments - -
As at the end of the yvar {3.323.97) {2,807.78)

{Other Comprehensive Income
Eguity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Cither items of Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total (3.323.97) (2.507.78)

Mate 14 Financial liabilities - Barrowings
MNon-currend
Secured - at amortised cosi
Term Loans from Dank / Frnancial institution 1.612.95 263104
Noture of lourts including securily and ¢ or Guaranive
WCTL by way of Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line {GRCE.} under TICLGS Scheme by creating second charge on fixed assets of the Company as primary security

and collateral secunity as extension of mengage on land

Payment details
The repayment will be done 15 30 manthly installments of Bs. 101,611 ending on | August 2024

Rate of interest
Rawe ot interest 15 9.25% p.a.

Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued

From Promaolters 18,352.00 78,997.00
Fram Others - 2.768.06

Tatal 19,964.95 84,396.10




MNaotes ta ihe {inancial statements

RI}B Mumbai fnfrastructures Private Limited

CIN-USTI0OWR2007PTC 114242

Loan and Advances io Pramoters,Directors, KMPs and related parties

{a} Repayable oo Nemand

15t Floor, Dikaner Buitding. 871, Lal Bizar Siuecet, Kolkata - 200001

{Currency, Rupees i thousands)
31 March 2023 3 March 2022

{Currency: Rupees 1 thousards)

Type of Borrower
| Promaoter
2 Directors
3 KMPs
4 Realted Parties

I'ercentage (o
Amousl of loan the Total Laoan
or advance in the and Advances in
nature of loan the nature of

oufstanding leans

Nate 15 Financial Lishility {Other Financiat Liability)

Interest accrued and due on borrowing
Total

Note I6 financial lisbilities - Borrowings

{Secured. repayable on Demand, including interest acerued)

Uverdralt facility From Banks

Total

Note 17 Financial liabilities - Trad¢ and olher payables

Outstanding dues ol micto & small entrepnses
Other than above

Total

43,163 90 52941 15

43,163.90 52,941.18

285.82 847 76

2R5.82 847.76




RDD Mumbai infrastructures I'rivate Limited
st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1. Lal Bazar Streel. Kolkata - 700007

Maies to the [inancial stetements

Trade I"ayable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Pamculars

MSME

{Hhers

Misputed Nues - MSME
Ihsputed Dues - (hhers

Particulars

MSME

hers

Disputed Dues - MSML
[sputed Dues - Others

MNote 18 Fiaancial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities

Otiher payable
Book Debl Fram Bank

Taolal

Note 19 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customers / Rooking
Total

Naote 20 Provisinns

Provision for Laxes
(net olt wdvace tax and TS Rs Nil (P F Rs. Nif}

Tatal

CIN USILO9WDB2007PTC114242

{Currency. Rupees in thousands)
31 March 2623 31 March 2022

(Currency, Rupees i thonsands)
Qutstanding for following pecinds from due date of payiment

Eeyy than | year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 years Telal
236.87 - - 4594 28582

{Currency. Rupees in thousards)
Qutstanding, lor following, periods from due date of paymen|_

Lss thun | ycar 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mare Than 3 years Tuoial
73816 66.60 4300 847,76
350.74 33155
350,74 331588
3.08.325.00 2.87.292.20
30832500 287,292.20




RDB Mumbsi Infrastructures Private Limited
1st Floor. Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Dazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN:USHHOOWB2007PTC1 14242

Notes to the linancial statements
Note 21 Revenue from Operations

Sale of Construction Activities

Other Income of Construction Activities

Share of Profit from Investment in Firm (Non Current. Trade)
TOTAL

Note 22 Other lncome

Miscellaneous Income
Sundrs Balances writien back

Total
Note 23 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses
Interest & Other Finance Cost {in accordance with TnD AS-23)

Consumption

Mote 24 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening [nventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Unsold flais

Less : Closing Inventory of Wark in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of unsold flals
{Increase)/decrease in inventories {A-B)
Note 25 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives

Total

Mate 26 Finance Cost

Processing fees for OD & BG

Total

(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

- 1.74.012.15

17.68 3.699.04
17.68 1,77,711.19
20.68 22.68
476.70 149.91
497.37 172.59
10,488.05 72,009.64
225.68 6.943.81
10,713.73 78.953.45
2,63,375.24 3.44.929.27
- 13,.473.36

(2.73.92597)

(2.63.375.24)

{10,550.73) 95,027.39
10.00 299.70
10.00 299.70

196.57 389.75
196.57 189,75




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limiled
Lst Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bezar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2007PTC114242

Noles to the linancial statements
Note 27 Others Expenses

Rates & Taxes
Rent
Electricity Expenses
GST Paid
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Other Repairs
Travelling & Conveyance Expn
Pastage, Telegraph & Telephones
Printing & Stationary
Share of loss from Investment in Firm (INon Current, Trade)
Interest on late payment of statutory dues
Miscellaneous Expenses
Buad Debts! Advances Written QIT
Protessivnat Charges
Bank Charges
Staff welfare & Tea & Refreshment expenses
Other Sales Expenses
Society Maintenance Charges
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees
Total

(Currency: Rupees in thousaneds)

M March 2023

31 March 2022

5.90 40.93

. 52.54
604.00 §2.86
- 71.36

5.78 21,70

. 107.65

- 19.11

. ¥2.54
25717 133,85
0.85 53.tt

- 59.01
149.07 229.93
15.81 22.07
- 88.19

- 8033

- 337.88
20,00 16.00
15.00 21.00
§42.17 1,514.06
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ROB Mumbsi Infrastructures Private Limted
I3t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Sireer, Kolkata - 700001
CTN: USNO¥WBZ00TPTC1 14242
Additional notes to the financial statments for the year ended 31 March 2023

Reconciliztion of EfMective Tax Rate

e moonme s expense [ e vean wan be reconaibed s the aconamting peolin as fablows

{Currency: Rupees in tiouwsands)

Particolars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prafin hefiee 1as (704 16) Q671221
Ingoing 1an espense valoulated @ 0% (2019 26% R -
Onbhwer hitferencues - -
Tmal - -
Adjustments recogmaed m the current year in relation 10 the current taw of pnor vears - (729.38)
Tngome tax recopnised in profit or koss - {729.38)

Tha tas rate used for the year 2003-22 and 2022-21 reconciliations above 15 the corpomte tax payable on able profits under the [ncome

Tax Act, 1961

Abuve workangs are based on provisions) computation of s expense and subjed (o finalisalion ncluding that of tax audit or
atherwise in due course.

Operating Lease

Asper Ind AS -17 ‘Leases”, the disclosure of transactions with [he respect to tease of premises is disclosed as follows.

Asgsets taken gon Operating Lease :

The Company has taken cominercial premuses oo Operating Lease and lease rent of Rs. MIL (Previous Year Rs NIL)

has been detuted to Statement of Prafit and Loss and Rs. NIL {Previous Year Rs MIL) has been inventorised for Lthe current ycar
The Company docs nor have any conlinpent lease rental expenses: incoms.

Helated Party Disclosure

Dizclosures as required by the Indian Avcounting Standard 24 (Ind AS-74) “Relatod Party Disclosures™ are given below:
Related Party Retutpinsh

Iinterprises wheve contrel ¢xists - RDD Realty & [nfrasmucture Lid - Holding
Trangactions & Balances

fCurrency: Rupees i thou vands)

Farticulars 31 March 2023 31 Murch 24122
Trangactions

Loan Taken 6, 16000 31.491.00
Refund of Loan Taken 6674500 1.03.816.10
Interest provided on Loan Taken . P16
Invgstment in parmership firm Hr 235
Balances

tcan Taken 1835100 18,997 0
Interest acerued on Loan Taken - -
Investment i pacinership [irm 4151963 1.16.364.55

.oan and Advances 1o Promoters,Di s B

(&) Repavable on Denand iCurrency Rupees in thousands,

Ampunt af Prreentage to
loun ar the Total Loan
mdvance in the) and Advances
nature of loan | In the nature of

Tvpe of Borrower putstanding 1pans
Promoier
Diceclors - -
KMPs - -

Realted Parlies - -
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RDB Mumbai lnfrastructures Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building 8¢1. Lal Barar Sireel, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: USTIO9WBI0HPTC 114242

Additional notes fo the Anancial statments for the year ended 31 March 2023

19} Withgut specifying any terms or peripd of repayment

Amount of
Toan or
advance in the

Percentspe (o
the Total Loan
and Advances

nature of loan | in the nature of
Type of Borrawer di laans

Promoter - -

LHreciors - -

KMPs - .

Reuited Parties - -

Fingncial lnstruments and Related Disclasures

The sigmificant accounring pohicies, meludmp the criterta of recopnution, the bans of measurement and the basis on which
incone andexpenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial nssets and financial liabilines are dasclosed in nate

115 ofthe lnd A% financial statements.

The carrying value of financial instruunents by cutegones as of March 31, 2023 were as follows

Fair Value

{Currency. Rupees v thousands}

Carrying amount

Particutars through profit l::;:g‘;znglél Amn;t:s:cfls‘(_osu as at 3| March
and luss 2123
1oy Fimancial Assets
{1} [oveshmenls - - 44 589 35 44,5859 35
1) Trade receivabies - - 16,674 17 16,674 17
{uiy) Cashand cash equivalents - - 187 30 287 30
{ivs  Other Anancial assets - - 3875 4 387504
Toral Financial Assery - - £5,4335 88 6542586
{a) Financial Liablines
1) Borrowings . - £3,128.85 £3,128.85
iy Trade and nther payables - - 28582 2R3 82
i) QOther finangial Liablities - - 35074 15074
Total Financial Lialkilities - - 6376541 63,765 41

The carrving vadue of financal mstruments by categories 8s of March 31, 2022 were as fallows:

fCurrency: fupeey m thotsareds)

. Fair Value Fair Value Amortised Caslf Carrying amouni
Parricalars through profif through OC At cost as at 31 March
and logs 022
18] Financr} Assers
{1 lsvestiments - . 116,519 34 11651934
i1y Trade recervables - - 8.21913 821323
iy Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,445 56 1 43596
vt Other financial assets - - 3815 387504
Total Financial Assets - - 1,30,45% 67 13045267
{a} Financial Liabilities
() Horrowangs - - 1,37,337.24 FA7337 2
(b} Trade and other payables - B47.76 817 76
filiy  Other financial ligbilines - 331.5% 33155
Totak Finsncinl Liahilities - 1,38,516.55 135,516 55




RDB Mumbaj lefrastructores Private Limiled
15t Floor. Bikener Building. 81, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkaw - 700001
CIN USLTG9WBRZ00TPTCT 14242

Additional notes ¢o the Minancial statments for the vear ended 31 March 2023

31 Disclosure of Finaneisd Insiruments

Finaneizl rsk maoagement ohjectives and pullcies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrgwings, wrade and other payables The main purpose of these Fnancial
liabilities 1s to finance and suppert Company's eperations The Company s principal financial assets inclede trade and other recevables,
cash and ¢ash equivalents and loans and advances and refindable deposits thar detrve directly Brom ils operations.

T'he Company is eaposed tu market risk, credit nisk and liguadety nisk. The Company’s sendor management oversees the menagement of
Ihese sks The Company's senior management 15 supparted by a financanl rish comuttee that advises on financial fsks and the
appropnale financial risk gavemance framework for the Campany  The financial risk committee provides agsurance to the Company’s
seor management thus the Company's financial nsk activilies are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and tha financial risks
are ideniified, measired and menaged in sccordance with the Company's policies and risk obiestives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees pobcies for managng each of these risks, which are summansed below

Market nsk:
Market nsk 1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrument will flucmatebecause of changes i market prices
“turker sk comprises twa types of nsk: inleresi rate nskand other price nsk, such as equity price risk and comunodity” real estale risk The
Company has not entered mto uny foreipn exchange of commodiry derivative conracts. Accordingly, Ihere is ne sipnificant exposure to the
markel risk other than interest nsk,
tn Interest rate nsk
Interest cate fisk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash Hows of s financi] instrument will fluctuate because of changes
markel interest rates. The Company's ¢xposure t the risk of changes m market interest mies relates prunanly 1o the Company's
fong-tenn debt obligations with floating interes! rates.
The Company manages its interes! rate nsk by having & balanced partfolio of fixed and vanable rale loans and borrownngs. Most

of the borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates The Company has oaly one cash crednt account which i3 linked
to the Pnme Benk Lending Rate, The Company does ool enter into any IteTast rate swaps

(i) Price msk
The Compeny has not made any investments for rading purposes The surpluses bave been deployed wn bank deposits as explained
above

Credit nsk

Credit nisk is the nsk thae counterpany will nos meel its obligations under a financial nsirument or cusienter conlract, leading to a fnancial
loss. The Company 1s exposed to credil risk from its oprraling activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities,
including refundable joint development deposits, secunty deposits. luans to employ ees and other financial mstruments.

Trode recervahles
Receivables resulting from sale of properties Customer credut risk is managed by requining cuslomers to pay adsances befure wunsfer of
owrkersting, therefore, substantially etimimaning the Company's cradit nisk m this reapect,

Receivables resulting From other than sale of propenies; Credir risk ts managed by each business unil subject to the Company's
established policy, procedures and control relaung to customer credit nsk management. Outslanding customer recéivables are regularty
monitored. The impairment analy 15 is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for majer clients In additian, 3 large
nuwmber of minor recelvahles are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impmrment collectively The masumum exposure fo
credil risk at ihe reportng date is thie carrymg value of each class of financial assers. The Company doss not hold collareral as secunry
The Coinpany's credn period generally ranges Tronn 30-60 days.

The ageing of rade receivables are as follows: Curreney: Rupees in thousonds
Particulary 31 March 2023 31 Mayvch 2022
Maore than & monihs - -
Dihers 1567417 821923
Deposits with bank i instimutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institunons 1s managed by the Company's ireasury depariment in accordance with the
Company’s pulicy. Investments of surplus furids are made only with approved counterpartivs and within credit kimits assygmed to each
counierpary

Counterparty credi limits are reviewed by the Company s Board of Directors on an annual basis. and may be updated throwghat the veal
subject to approval of the Bowd. The limits are set to minimsse the cancentation of nsks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a
counterparty's potential failure to make payments The Conwpany’s maximum exposure to credit nsk for the components of the staement of
financial pasition at 31 March 2022 and 2021 is the camying amounts

iguidity Rigk
The Company’s investment decisions relanng t ded by the Lenets of safery, liguidity and reum The
Company imanages ils liquidity risk by ensuring ty (o meet its habilities when due. In case of shor

term requirements. it ohtains shar-term loans {
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RIB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited

ist Floor, Bikaner Bulding, &1, Lal Bazar Streer. Kalkata - 700001

CIN: USFIDOWR2007PTC ] 14242

Additienal notes to the financial statments for the year ended 31 March 2023

Capital Management

oz the purpuase al the Cranpany’s capial management, capital wcludes ssued equity capital, share premuum and all other equity reserves
attributable 1 the equiry holders of the Company. The pmnary nhjecnve of the Company 's capital management ks 1o manimise the

shareholder value

The Crimpany mranapes its capital structure and makes adjusiments in fight of changes in economic conddions and the requirements of the
financial covenanls To maniaun or adjust the capilal stuclure, the Company may adjust the divedend payment to shargholders, return
capital o shareholders or 1ssue new shares The Company monitors capital vsimg a gearing ratio, which 15 net debt divided by total capital
pius net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interes beanng loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash

aeuivalenls

fCnrrency. Rupees wr thowsands)
Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Borrowings {long-term and shod-term, including curreni maturilies of long term bomowings} 63 12885 137337 24
Trade payables ZB5 83 84776
Oiher payables {current & non-current, excluding curren marunibies of long téem barrowingst 350,74 33133
Less Cush and cash equivalenrs (387.30) 1144596}
Net debt 63.478.11 1,37,070.59
Equiiy share capital 10,000.80 10,41 1
Orher equity (33239 69 489 15
Total Capical 6,676.03 79,489,048
Gearing ratio |In Rs) 018 0.5%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital managemem, amongst other lhings, aims (@ ensare that it meets financial
coverants srachid 1o the iterest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements Breacles i meeting the finangal
covenanls would permit the bank 1o immedistely ¢all loans and bomrowings There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any

interest-pearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

o changes were made 1n the objectives. policies or processes for managng capival dunng the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,

2022,

Disclosure ps per ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contarcts with Customers

{Currency Rupees i thaeionds)

Particnlary

31 March 223

31 March 2022

The amount of project revenue recognized as revenue during rhe year
The amount of advances received
The amount of work 1n progress

1768
10832500
2,73.925 97

RERTINE]
287292 20
163375 2

Contingent Lipbtlities and comntitments

(Currency. Rupees m thorsanis

Particulars

31 March 2023

3 March 2022

Cantingent Liabilities
Claims against the company not #cknowledged as debd:

Dispuled demand of income 1ax for Ass Yeur 2014-13

24,948 15

24948 13

* The Company s under appeal before Commiuaoner (Appead) af Incame jax

Disclosures required under Sec 23 of MSMED Act, 2006

The amuunts due 0 Micta, Small and Medim Enterprises supphiers defined under “The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Develapment Agl 2006™ have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company

fCurremncy, Rupees i twusorids)

Particulars

31 March 2033

31 March 2012

The principal anount and the interast due thercon (to be shown separatcly) remaining unpaid o
any supplier as at 1he end of accounting year,

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 alonyg wath the amounls of
ihe payment made to the supplier beyond the due date dunnp esch accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period [where the principal has been pard bu
interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not pad),

The amount of inerest accrued and remaining wnpaid ap - ~d o cnmcsnren e g

The amount of further interest due and payable ¢venin| hdate
when the interest dues uy ubove are actually paid to the! wige of

disallowance s a Jedustible expenditurg under sectivn

* Interest paid or payable, if any have been waived by w
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RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
151 Fleor, Bikaner Building, 81, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: USTI09WB200TPTC1 14242

Additienal notes to the financlal statments for the year ended 31 March 2023

Other Statutory Information

The Campany dees not have any Benami property. wliere any procesding has been inidased or pending agaunst the Company for
halding any Benami property.

The Company dees ot have any transactions with companies struck off,
The Company does not have any charges or satisfachion which is yei to be repsiered with ROC beyond the reparting year
The Company has not traded or invesled in Cryple currency or Vinual Curmency during the reporting year

The Company has not advanced or loaned ar invested funds 10 any other personis) ar entitviies), including forelgn entiries
(Intermediaries ) with the understanding that tie Intermediary shall.

1a) directly or inderectly bend vr invesi i otber persons ot enlities identifisd i any manoer whatsoever by ar on bahall of (he
company {Ultimare Beneficianegs) or

by provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has ool received any fund from any person{s] or entity(ies?, including foreign entties | Fundiog Parmv) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that (he Company shall:

1a) directly or indurectly lend or invest i other persons of enhities 1dentifed m any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Uliimate Beneficiaries) or

th; provide any guarantee, security or the lke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Figures of the previous vear have been reprouped. reciussified wherever necessary lo conform (o the presentation of the
CUTTeNt year

Significant accounting policies i-2
Noies to the accounts 3-4
Fhe aveampenyiny autes fure an ilegral paer of the fingncial starements

As per our report of even date
For ¥Vineet Khetan & Assoclates For and on behalf of the Doard of Directors of

{harlered Acconnlanis

v

Proprietor

SMembership Mo 060370

3D, Lal Bazar Street.,

Kolkata - 760 001

The _ thdayel 2023
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Met Feolit Katw

Returm on Capital Employed

Retum on [nvesiment

Proht afier Tax

EBIT

Interest {Finance Income

|Revenue from operations

Capital Fmployed = Net worth +Total
Dwebt+ Deterred tax Liabihigy

[nvestment

(2914 O -3a2965 12
(0.01) 0.0 -1 5066
(ALY D] {U.00095) -B7 48

Lunng the FY 2022-23 no revenue generated
from the operation kence there s a loss m
e current Brnanaial year as compared o he
last year _

Dunng the 'Y 2022-23 no revenue gencrated
{rom: the operation due le which EBIT is
nzgative as comapred ¢ the last year Due
less in the current year Capral employed

alsa decreased as compared 10 last year

Inicrest from fixed deposit reduce by Rs
2000 in current vear as well us there 1s a loss
in the cumrent year from investment 1o

parineeshin (irrss,




Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

RDB REAL ESTATE CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RDB REAL ESTATE
CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED (the "Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statemenis give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2023, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional iudament, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 25€ matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial stz 2, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate o) ters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Informnation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other formation.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’'s Beard of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘'the Act’} with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
inciuding the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant {o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overs y's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are aiso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underiying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in tt = T 7 ‘ements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic reasonably knowiedgeable
user of the financial statements may be influencec quantitative materiality and
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qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
penod and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement th the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on record b+ *~~ B~~~ of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 3 T being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the ;
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f. Since the Company's turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2020:

i} The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

iy The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any matenal
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii} There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of deiay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv} {a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (“*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalif of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause {a) and
{b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The company has not declal Wy dividend during the year in
contravention of the provision: 3 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn Nn- 324428F)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25% Day of May :
UDIN: 23080270BGTUIO4365
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(i)

(i)

(i)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report”

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB REAL ESTATE CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

of even date)

{a) (A) The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment, so this clause is not
applicable.
{B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) Since there is no Property, Plant & Equipment, so the point of verification does not arise.
(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, hence revaluation is not required as this
clause is not applicable.

{e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The company does not have any Inventories, therefore this clause is not applicable

{b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets, therefore this clause is not applicable.

The company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties
{a) The company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security o any other entity [not applicable to companies
whose principal business is to give loans],
(A) No such loans or advances and guarantees or security has been provided
to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates:

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is mentioned:

Individual Opening Receipt Payment Closing
Balance Balance
Sri. Vinod Dugar - 62,00,000 1,82,14,952 | 1,20,14,952

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and a the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the terest;
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(iv)

(v)

{vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

{c) In respect of loans and advance n the nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments or receipts are regular;

(d) Since Loan is repayable on demand so the point of overdue of ninety days is not
applicable.

(e) Loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year,
has not been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(A The company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on
demand, to related parties as defined in clause (78) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees, and security, therefore the
compliance of provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
required.

No deposits were accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be deposits,
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
are not applicable to the company.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

The company has no loans or borrowings, therefore question of default in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender does not arise.

{a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.
(b) The company has made no preferent rivate placement of shares or

convertible debentures (fully, partially or opt ) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.
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(xi)

{xii}

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

{xvii)

{xviii)

(xix)

{a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b} No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Govemment;

{c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

There are no such transactions with the related parties hence the compliance of this clause
is not required.

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;
(b} The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal

Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

{b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as

per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

{c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the critena of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial

assets and payment of financial liabilities, accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the E ind management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material unct ' the date of the audit report
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(xxi}

that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(a} In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;

(b) No amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of secticn 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act,

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Ren~n Na: 1244728E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25™ Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIO4369
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RDB Real Estate Constructlons Umited
ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata 700001
CIN: U70200WB2018PLC227169

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Note 315t Mar, 2023 31st Mar, 2022 ist Apr, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
[a) Other Assets 1 - 702.00 1.404.00
Tatal Non - Current Assets - 702.00 1,404_00
Current assets
(a} Financial Assets
i) Cash and cash equivalents 2 1,139.47 2,692.83 533.660
{ii} Loan given 3 120,148.52 112,712 24 106,379.34
(a) Other Assets 702.00 702.00 702.00
(b} Currant Tax Assets 4 eemon 1, 65 8§74 04
Tatal Current Assets R —— 117,248.32 108,489.64
Tatal Assets 123,456.37 11%,950.32 1045,893.64

EQUITY AND LLARILITIES

Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 5 101,000.00 101,000.00 101,000.00
{b) Other Equuty & 19,622.57 14,165.22 5,393.14
Total equity 120,622.57 115,165.32 107,393.14

Current liabilities
{a) Fingncial Lisbilities

(i Other financial liabilities 7 35.00 30,00 50.50

{b} Provisions 8 2,799.40 2,755.00 2,450.00

Total Current Liabilities 2,834.40 2,785.00 2,500.50

Total Equity & Liabilities 123,456.97 117,950.32 109.393.64

This is Lhe Balance Sheet referred (o in our regort of even date,

Far VIMEET XHETAN & ASSOCIATES Fer and bahalf of the Board
Charterad Accountants ROB Real Estate Construqtlons Ld

B kO~
Rali Prakash PT{
Director
DIN: Q0094635
Vineet kheten
Praprietor
Membership No. 060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street . -
Kolki T Director
Date DiN: 00501351



RDB Real Estate Constructions Limited
15t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70200WEB2018PLC227169

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Particulars
Revenue
Revenue from operations
Dther income
Tatal Incame

Expenses
Finance costs
Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before tax
Less: Income tax expenses

- Current tax

- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year
Total tax expenses

Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income
Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Less: Tax impacts on above items

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or toss
Less: Tax impacts on above items

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share

Profit availabie for Equity Sharehalders
Weighted average number of Equity Shares autstanding

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata

Date:

Note

i0

11
12

31st Mar, 2023 J1st Mar, 2022
8,402.85 11,646.40
8,402.85 11,646.40
1,095.60 1,023.88
1,095.60 1,023.88
7,307.25 10,622.52

150,00 755.00

- 95.34

1,850.00 2,850.34
5,457.25 7,772.18
5,457.25 7,772.18
5,457.25 7,772.18
1,010,000.00 1,010,000.00
0.54 0.77

0.54 0.77

For and bebalf of the Board
RDB Real Estate Constructions Ltd

o i

Ravi Prakash Pincha

Director
DIN: 0({194695

TERLWET NE T D We TS

Director
DIN; 00501351



RDB Real Estate Constructions Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70200WB2018P1LC227169

Cash Flow Statement for the year  ded 31st March, 2023

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 7,307.25 10,622.52
Adjustments for
Interest Income on Loan given (8,4 135) {11,646.40)
Priliminary expenses written off 702.00 {7,700.85) 702.00 (10, )]
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes {393.60) {321.88)

{Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets - Non Current -
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets - Current - -

Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 5.00 5.00 {20.50) {20.50}
Cash generated from operations {388.60 (342.38)

Less: Taxes paid/ (Refunds) [Net) 2,130.93 2,811.95
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities (2,519.53) (3,154.33)

B. Cash Flow from Investing /  vitles:
Loan given / {Refunded) 966.17 5,313.50
at cash from investing activities 966.17 5,313.50

C. Cash flow »m financing activities :
Net cash generated/{used) in financing activities - -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {1,553.36) 2,159.17
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 2,692.83 533.66
1,139.47 2,692.83

Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :

Balances with Banks 1,139.47 2,662.83
Cash on hand {As eertified by the management) - 30.00
1,139.47 2,692.83
This is the Cash Flow Sta treferred toin our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Beard
Chartered Accountants RDB Real Estate Constructions Lid

\M; quLl"/
Ravi Prakash Pincha
Director
DIN: 000 )95
Vineet Kheten
Proprietor
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, La} Bazar Street e L e ug U

Kolkat ~—~ "7 Director
Date: DIN: 00501351



RDB Real Estate Constructions Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, B/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kaikata - 700001
CiN: U70200WB2018PLC227169

Note: 3 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies {SAP)

1 Company Overview

RDB Real Estate Constructions Limited { the Company"! is a subsidiary of a listed company incorporated in India on 27th
July, 2018 having its registered office at Bikaner Building, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, 3rd Floor, Room No 10, Kolkata-700001
The Caompany is principally engaged in the business of Real Estate

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) {to the
extent notified and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Comparues {tndian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended)
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard s inttially adopted
or a revision to an existing standard reguires a change in the accounting palicy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees ("7, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency far the financial statements.

¢} Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the following
items:
(i} Certain financial assets and financial habilities measured at fair value;
tiy Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation.
Farr value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market panicipants at the measurement date under current market canditions, regardiess of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining fair value of an asset or a liability,
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

d} Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions -
{i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with histarical and industry trends for determining the economic life of
an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management perniodically and revised, if appropriate.
in case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining usefu! life of the assets.

{ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets. their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these
maodels are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and
volatility

{iil) Defined benefit plans:
Cost of defined benefit plan includes gratuity and the present value of the gratuity abligatian are determined using

actuarial valuations us lit method. An actuarial valuation involves making varigus assumptions
that may differ from a the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, futute
salary increases and rr ne complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature a

defined benefit obliga to changes in these assumptions All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date.



{iv) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magmitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards
known contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if
any, in respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the seftlement of such obligations
are expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for

&) Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both finangial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has an established contro! framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The management requlary reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarctiy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows

- Level 1. quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for wentical assets or fiabilities.

- Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable far the asset or liability, either directly
ti e. as prices) or indirectly ;i.e derived from prices)

- Leve! 3' inputs for the asset or hiability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability the Company uses observable market data as far as possible If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a hiability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. then
the fair value measurement 1s categarized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred

3 Significant accounting policies

a} Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
based on the nature of products and the ttme between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equwvalents.

b} Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financral asset of one entity and a financial hability or equity
instrument of another entity.
i. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All finangial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, 1n the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attnbutable to the acguisition of the financial asset. However, trade
receivables that do contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price Regular way purchase
and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets arc classified in three categones:
« Amortised cost
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI)
» Fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their inital recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets,

Finangial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
n order to collect contractual cash flimws and tha rontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely paym terest un the principal amount outstanding




Financial assets at FVTOCI:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets inciuded within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as welt as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income [QCI).

Financial assets at FVTPL:
A financial asset which is not ciassified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vaiue with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Other equity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 108.

Financial liability

tnitial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recogmised at fair value ptus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
vaiue.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are ciassified in following categories:
+ Financial fiabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)
» Financial fiabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL
A financial fiability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financia! liabilities at amortised cast

Other financial iiabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and any gain or loss on derecognition are recognised in profit or lass.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EiR method. Gains and
losses are recagnised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts

approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
Derecognition

A Ninancial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
abligation specified in the cantract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Oftsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enfarceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



¢) Property, Plant and Equipment

. Recognition and measurement
[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less

accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates. any directly attributabte cest of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the itern and restoring the site on which it is located. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those qualifying property, plant and equipment, which
necessarily take a substantial penod of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitabsed.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as sepatate components of property, plant and equipment.
Assets retired from active use and held for disposat are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable
value and shown under ‘Other current assets.
Praperty, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is
expected from its use and disposal. Any gain of loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and eguipment is
recognised in profit or loss.
Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended
use, are considered as pre - operative exoenses and disclosed under Capital Wark - in - Progress.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when 1t is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred,

ili. Depreclation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on property. plant & equipments are provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at
the rates and in the manner specitfied 1n Part C of Schedule Il of the Act

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land tincludes development cost) is amortised on a straight line basis over
the period of respective lease, except land acquired on perpetual lease.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as
apprapriate,

d) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their eshimated usefu! lives
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Estimated useful life of the Computer Software is 5 years.

e} Inventories
Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence f any. Cost

of inventories compnses of cost of purchase, cost of conver  n and other costs including manufacturing overheads net
of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost of raw matenals 15
determined an FIFC basis.

Value of stores and spares. packing materiais, trading and other preducts are determined on weighted average basis.

f) Employee Benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.
ii. Post employment benefits - Defined contribution plans
No post employment benefit are payable to any employee
iii. Post employment benefits - Defined benefit plans
No post employment benefit are payable to any employes



g)

Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs) Each CGU represents the smaliest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk speaific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

h} Provisians {ather than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructivet as a result of a past event. it
1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ohiigation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

1} Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of variable consideration| allocated o that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of
various discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of contract,

Revenue from the sale of goods s recognised when the goods have been delivered and title have been passed. No
revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovety of the amount due, associated osts of the
possible return of goods from date of initial application.

i} Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is
established. interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

k) Encome tax

Incarne tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or itemns recognized directly in equity or in
odl,
Current tax
Current tax assets and habiities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authonties based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on termporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
hability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates fand tax lawsi that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reparting period. The carrying d tax liabifites and assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period
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m)
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o)

p)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred 10 connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing ¢osts directly

attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Gther borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the pericd in which they are incurred.

Where there is an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there is a
realised or unreatised gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same borrowing, the gain to the extent of the
loss previously recognised as an adjustment is recognised as an adjustment to interest.

Foreign currencies transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in Staterment of Profit and Loss,

Government Grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
recewed and the Caompany will comply with all attached conditions.

Earmings per Share
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the penod attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributs  to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Recent Pronouncemse
Standard notifed but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA") notifies new standards or amendrnents to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as follows:

a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting palicies rather than their significant accounting policies The effective date for adoption of this amendment
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1 2023 The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is insignificant in the standatone financial statements.

b} Ind AS B - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Frrors - This amendment has introduced a
definition of 'accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 The company has evaluated the amendmeni and there is no impact on its
standalone financial statements.

¢t ind AS 12 Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemnptions so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and oHsetting temporary differences. The effective date for
adoption of this amenament is annual periads beginning cn or afler April 1 2023, The company has evaluated the
amendment and there i1s no impact on its standatone fir o ’



ADB Real Esrate Constructions Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Buidding, B/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kotkata 700001

CIn: U70200WB2018PLC227169
Notes to the financial stalements

Note 1 Other Assets

Nan-Current
Preliminary Expenditure (ta the extent not wntten afj
Sub Total

Current

Preliminary Expenditure (ta the extent not writden off}
Sub Total

Total

Mote 2 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalants)
Balanres with banks
Cashn hand

Total

Note 3 Financial Assets (Loan given)

315t March, 2023

Repdayhale on Demand, tnterast beanng, including inlerest accured

To Campanies
To Lmited Liatyiity Partnership

702.00
F02.00

702.00

1,135 47

1,139.47

To Dthess 120,149.52
Total 120,149.52
Mate 341 Loan on the bases of Security

Secured, ronsidered good

Unseeuted considered goad 120149 52

Having signticant increase mn credit nsh

Credit Impaired -
hole 3 101 - All Lbe |oans are repayable on demard, wathoul specidying any leims of penad af regeyment
Hote | Lisclosure of loan of advance in the nature of Ipan have been gronted to and ¢« o~ oulitanding Ty

Natare of Gorrowers
Pruinolers

Diectars

KMAP 5

Retated Parties

Note 4 Current tax assels
Advance Income Tax and TDS
TOTAL

Mote 5 Equity Share Capital
{Equity Shares af Rs.10)/ earh}
4] Authorised Share Capital
B lssued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital

¢} Recanailiation of Equity Shares Dutstanding

Batance [As |
120,149 52

Shares {No's)

3,250,000
1,010,000

1.010,000

di Detals of Sharehoiders holding more than 5% shares with voting nght

Name quity Shareholders
RDB Reaity & Infrastructure Lid
vinod Dugar

Sheetzl Dugar

Yashashw Dugar

Shares {No's
1,010,000

" Dutstanding
1M O
[PREv ]

{1 (0%

AR+ AN

+ are nn

Amount

325,000.00

101,000.00
101,000 00

% Hold

31st March, 2022

Balance (Rs |
112 /12 Ha

Shares [No's)

3,250,000
1.010.,000

1,010,000
Shares [No's)
TT2.500

2,500
1,000

702.00
702.00

702.00
702.00

1404.00

2,662 83
30.00

2,632.83

i11,866.37
B4b 47

112,710 84

e Autetanding
10G Nk
0 Qi
Q0o

[+ RILPE)

1,140.65

4 aan rr

H

Amount

325,000.00

101,000.00
101,000.00

* Holding,
0.00%
20 05%
44 B0%
10.00%

Shares {No's)

3,250,000
1,010,000

1,010,000

1st Apr, 2022

1,404.00
1,404.00

702.00
702.00

2,106.00

503 bR
30.00

533.66

106,379 94

106 °7 ©°

106,379.94

87404

Amount

10 ouw v

Ty

W

101,000 0O




RDB Real Estate Constructions i ad
1st Floor, Bikarer Building, B/1, Lal Bazar Street Kolkata 700001
CIN- UZ0200WB2018PLC227 109

Nates to the financial statements i1st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 1st Apr, 2022
Veekay Apdrtments Private Limited - 0.00% 104,004 5.90%
Soman: Estates Private Limited 0 00% 150.000 14.35%

e) The righls, preferences & restrichigns atachung 1 shares and restrictions on distribubion of
dwidend a nent of capital

The Company nas only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares 15 entitled to ane vote per share, The company dectares and pays dividends in indian rupees. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Diractars s ect te the appraval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeling In the event of igudation of the company, the halders ol equity shares will be entitled to recetve
remaiming assels of the company, afer distnbution of all preterentral amounts. The distribution will be in proportion
ta the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Shares heid by halding, ultimate helding, or subidiaries ar assouates ot holding
Name of Equily Sharehoiders Shares (No's] % Holding Shares (No's) % Holding
ROB Realty & Inirastructure Ltd 1,010,004 100.00% 0.00%

gl Shares are reserved for issue under pptions or contracts.
Number of Shares

h) Shares ssued for consideration other than cash ar bonus to sharehoiders or bought back fram
shdreholders wit  t d ol 5 years
NG <uch shares have peva maied nor there has bren any buy-back

1] Shatcholding of Promoter s 4f the end ot year
Mame of Equity Shareholders Shares ¥ Holding % Changes in

Shares
{No's) sh: alding {NG's)
ADB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 1010,000 1,00% 100.00%
vimod Dugar (.00% -20.05% 202,500
Sheetal Dugar 0.00% 44.80% 453,500
vashashw Dugar 10.00% 101,000

% Holding

20.05
44,80
10.00



ADB Real Fslate Constructions Limited

ist Floar, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70200WB2018PLC2I7169

Motes to the financiai statements
Note & Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus fram Statement of Profif & taoss
As at the beginning of the year
add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As ol the end ol the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through ather comprehensive income
Other tems of Other Comprehensve Incame

Total

Naote 7 financial Habilitles - Other Financial Liabllitles
Other payable
Total

Mote B Provisions
Frovision tar Income Tax
Total

31st March, 2023

14.165.32
5457 25

19,622 57

19,622.57

35.00
35.00

R LTS

—fr =

31st March, 2022

6,393.14
7,772.14

14,165.32

14,365.32

30.00
30.00

g -

1st Apr, 2022

{88.42}
6,481 56

6,393.14
6,393.14

50.50
50.50

©T50.00
~,~50.00




|RDB Real Estate Constructions Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70200WB2018PLC227165

Notes to the financial statements

Note 3 Revenue from Operations
Sales of Construction Activities
Sales of Services

TOTAL

Note 10 Other Income
Interest Income of Loan given
Total

Note 11 Finance Cost
interest on Borrowed fund
Total

Note 12 Others Expenses
Filing Fees
Rates &1 s
Bank Charges
Professional Charges

Annual Custodial & Share Transfer Expenses
Preliminary Expenditure amortised

Auditor's Remuneration
Total

Note 12{a} - Auditor's Remuneration inciuded

Statutory Audit Fees
ifitcate Charge

31st Mar, 2023 31st Mar, 2022
B,402.85 11,646.40
8,402.85 11,646.40

259.00 74.00
21.50 -
2.10 9.88
3.00
113.00 118.00
702.00 702.00
165.00 120.00
1,095.60 1,023.88
30.00 3000
135.00 S0.00
16500 120.00




RDB Real Est  : Constructions Limited
st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lai Bazar Street, b ta - 700001
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MNotes to and forming part of the financdial statements

i3

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

22

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows

Particulars 3isth  h, 2023 31st March, 2022

Prafit before tax 7.307.25 10,622 52
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (2020 21: 26.00%) 1.839.09 2,673.48
Qthar differences 1091 B1.52
Yotal 1,850.00 2,755.00
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 95,34
| -fome tax recognised in profit or loss 1.850.00 2,850.34

The tax rate used far the year FY 2022 23 and 2021 22 for reconciliatrons above 1s the corporate tax payabie on taxable profits under
the Income Taa Act, 1961,

Rela  Party Disclosure
Reiated Party Relfationship
enterprises where control exists- R Realty & Infrastructure { imited — Holding {from 28.09.7022)
Transactions with Related Party
Thera were no transactions with related parties {at the time when party was related) during current or preceeding period

Balances gutstanding with Related Party

There dare no balances outstanding from/ to related parties at the end of curre  w preceeding penod.

In the opinian of the Board the Current Assets, | oans and Advances are nat less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
busi .. The prowision for all known liabilities 5 adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There 1s no
contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. ¥ Nil}

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami properly under the Benami Transactions
{Prohiition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder.

The company have not been declared wilfut defaulter by any lender from whom funds have been borrowed.

Thecom yd  notany knowledge of any transactions or balances with compares struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, hence na disclasure have heen made.

The rompany does not have any subsidiary as defined ujs . ] and hence guestion of violation of number of layers prescribed
under clause {87} of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 does not arise.

Company has not taken loan from any banks, hence it is not required to submit/file any quarterly returns and statements.

The funds ot the company (horrawed fund, securities premium and shai r utilised for acquisition of land which has
been transferred to developer {pursuant to joint deveiopment agreeme on of turther land i accardaace with the
igint Nevelopment Agreement and a2lso ta ¢ / commence new ventu



RDB Real Estate Constructions Limited
1st Floor. Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

23

24

25

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

A The company has neither advanced or nor loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or sh:  sremium ar any other sources

or kind of funds] to any other personis} or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Intermedranes) with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or otherwise} that the intermediary shall

1} directly or indirectiy lend or invest in other persons or entities wentfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company {Ulimate Beneficidries} ur
it} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalt of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
The company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entitres (Funding Party) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or atherwise] that the company
i} directly or ind Ay lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatse by ar on behalf of
the Funding Party {Uitimate Beneficiaries} or

i1} provide any g ntee. secunity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefi  ies

The project of the company, in which RDB  sur is a party {owner of tand) is delayed by around more than 3 years. The developmenl
agreement dated 23.11.2010 provi | for completion of project within 7 rs plus 1 year as grace penod from the date of joint
development agreement. The owner and developer have mutually agreed to carry the waork and complete the project at earliest to
maximise revenue and mimmise losses due to delay the completion of projects.
Finandal instruments and Related Disclosures
Particulars at at 31st March, 2023 Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
Financial Assets
Current
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,139.47 - -
Loan given 120.149.52
Total Financial Assets 121,28B.99
Financial Liabilities
Current
Other financial liabilities 35.00
Total Financial Liabilities 35.00
Particulars at at 315t March, 2022
Particulars at Carrying Value Amartised Cost Fair value
Finantial Assets
Current
Cash and cash equive  ts 2,692.83
Other financial assets {Advance) 112,712.84
Total Finandal Assets 115,405.67 - -
Financial Liabilities
Current
Other financial liabiities 30.00
Total Anancial Uabilities 30.00 - -
Capital Requirements

Far the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes .ssued equity capital, share premium and all other  Liby
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The prim, ompany's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments i conomic conditians and the reguirements
of the financial caovenants. Te maintain or adjust the capital structure djust the dividend payment to
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Notes tc and forming part of the financial statements

26

sharehoiders, return ci 3l to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company moritors capital using a gearing ratio, which s net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt The Company includes within net debt, nterest beanng loans and horrowings, trade and

other payables less cash and cash eguivalents

) 31-Mar-23 31-Mar
Particulars . )
{in Rs.) {in Re}

Qther Favables {current and non-current, exciuding current 3500 30.00
maturtties of long term borrowings}

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,139.47) {2,692.83)
Net debt 11,104.47} {2,662.83)
Eguity share capital 101,000.00 101,000.00
(ther equity 19,622.57 14,165.32
| To Capital 120,642.57 115,165.32
Gearing ratio {109.21) | {43.25)

n order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial cavenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately catl loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financia!l cavenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period

No changes were made in the objectivas, policies or processes for man
March 31, 2022.

£ capital duning the years ended March 31, 2023 and

Disclosure of  anclal Instruments
Finandal risk management objectives and policies

The Company's prinoipal financial liabilities comprise Inans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and suppor Company's operations. The Company’s principal financiai assets include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive direcily from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of finanoal risks, including market risk, cre nsk and kguidity risk, The Company’s
premary risk management focus 1s 1o minimise potential adverse effects of market nsk on its financial performance  The Company’s
exposure to credit nsk 15 influenced mainly by the individual characteristicof € 1 customer and the concentration of risk from the
top few customers. The Company's risk management assessment and pelicies and processes are established to identify and analyse
tha risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and cantrols, and 1o monilor such risks and comphance with the same.
Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condrtions and the
Company’s actiwities.

This note presents information about the Company's expasure tn each of the above risks, the Company’s abjectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments,

{i} Credit risk, fu} Liquidity nisk, and {iii) Market risk

i} Cred

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss af the Company if a customer nr caunterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual cbligations, and arises principally form Lhe Company receivables Irom customers. Credit anses when a customer or
counterparty does nat meet its obhigatioas under o fimancial instrument or customer contract, leading to a linanoial loss. T
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities [primarily trade recewvables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with bank. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty. The carrying
amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposun

Trade recawvables

Thecompanyd  not have any trade recevables,
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Notes to and farming part of the financial statements

ii] Liguidity Risk
uguidity nsk is defined as the risk that the Company witl not be to settle o meel its obligations on time or at reasonable
price. Prudent higudity risk management s maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availlabuhity of
funding thraugh an adequate amount of ¢ facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's finance team 15

responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement manegement. In addition, Processes and policies related to such risks are
overseen by senior management. Managemeant monitors the Company's liquidity positian through rolling forecasts on Lhe basis
of expected cash flows.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity 1s to ensyre. as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are dug, under both normal and stressed canditions, without incurring unacceptable 1osses or risking
damage to the Company's reputation

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below provides detaits regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial Liabifities at the reporting date
based on contractual undiscounted payments

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years
As at 315t March 2023
Other Financial Liabilities - Current 35.00
35.00 - -
As at 315t March 2022
Other Finanuial Liabilities - Current 30.00 -
30.00
0} Market nigk:

Market risk 15 the risk that the fair value ot future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price r1sk, such as equity price risk and
commodity/ real estate risk. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derrvative contracts. The
comapny has availed fixed rate borrowings and accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the market risk

g} Inty  tratensk
Inlerest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 1lows of a hinancial instrumr will fluctuate because of changes
n market interest rates The Company's expasure to the risk of changesin market interest rates relates primanly to the
Company's barrowings.
Company manages its interest rate risk by granting loans at fixed rate, Most of loan granted by the Company are unsecured
and at fixed rates. The Company does not enter into any in{erest rate swaps.

b} Other Price nsk - Caompany does not ha ny exposure in eqinty instruments or commodity, subjecttopn han
¢| Currency risk - The Company does not have any exposure In foreign currency.

27 First time adoption
These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with ind AS. Far the year ended 31 March 2022, the
Comparny had prepared its financial state 5 in accordance with Companies {Accounting Standards} Ruies, 2006, notitied under
Section 133 of the Act and other relevant prowvisions of the Act |'previous GAAP').
The accounting policies set out in note have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31
Mareh 2023 including the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the apening Ind AS balance
sheet on the date of transition ve 1 Apnil 2021

ing aringits Ind AS balance sheet as at 1 April 2021 and in ve information for the year ended 31 March
2022, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previousl repared in accardance with previous GAAP
This hote explains the principal adjustments made by the Corr ctal statements prepared in accordance with
previous GAAP, and how the transition from previous GAAI the Company's finanual pasition, financial

performance and cash flows
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es to

| forming part of the financial statements

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exception

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned aptional exemptions and mandatory
exceptions.

a} Optionai exemptions

i) Praperty plant and equipment  1here are no Property plant and equipment, hence exemption not applicable
i) Fair value measurement of financial assets ar Liabilities at initial recognition- The Company has applied the rec :ments of
Ind AS 109, “Financial tnstrurments: Recogmition and Measurement”, wherever applicable.

b} Mandatory exceplions

1] Estimates

The pshimates at 1 Apni 2016 and at 31 March 2017 are consistent with those made far the same dates in accardanre
withIr 1 GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart from the following iterms where
applicatron of indian GAAP did not require eslimation
- Fair valuation of financial instruments ¢carried at FVTPL and/ ar FYOLI

Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit lass mocdel.

Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments cars it arnortised cost,
{he estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with ind AS reflect conditions at 1st April
20721, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of 31st March, 2022

i) Derecngnition of financial assets and liabilities

As per Ind AS 101, an entity should apply the derecognition requireme in Ind AS 109, Financial instruments,
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of derecognition requirements retrospectively from a date
chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial habilities derecognised as a
result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions

The Campany has elected to apply the derecognition principles of Ind AS 109 retrospectively as reliable information was
available a e of initially accounting for these transactions

iti} Classilication and measurement of financial assets

Ing AS 101 requires an enfity to assess classificatron of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as
on the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurerment of financial assets accounted at amortised cost
based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable.
accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist
on the date of transition. Measurement of the finanrial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively
except where the same 1s impracticable.

w) Reconcihation  rquity and statement of profit and loss.
{Hact of Ind AS adoption on the standalone balance sheet as at 315t March 2022 and Ist April 2021 - Nil

Reconciliation of total tomprehensive income tor the year ended 31st March, 2022 - Ni
Reconcitiation of Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2022 Nil

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSQOCIATES For and behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants F Real Estate Constructions Ltd

“mi QMUV

Ravi Prakash Pincha

D tor
DIN: 0DO94695
Vineet Kheten
Proprietor
Membership Na.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street . -
Kolkat Director

C

DIN: 00501351









independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of

RDB BHOPAL HOSPITALITY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RDB BHOPAL HOSPITALITY
PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2023, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs} specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilifies for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in ou judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements « eriod. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financi s a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separ: ‘hese matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the weork we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of efror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

either intends to liquidate the Company or {o ceas " * has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Boeard of Directors is also responsible for ove mpany’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the eccnomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The nsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may invoive collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If e conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our auditor's repont to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ mannar that arhiayes fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements tements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the econ | reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influe - quantitative materiality and
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qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (i} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compilied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other mafters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and 1ere applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report} Order, 2020 {“the Order™), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of written representation the directors as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on record E rectors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March & ting appointed as a

director in terms of section 164(2) of the
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f.

Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2020:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

i} There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The guestion of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person{s) or entity(ies},
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Uitimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonabile and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the renracantatinne 1inder sub-clause (a) and
{b) contain any material mis-staten

v) The company has not declared o d during the year in
contravention of the provisions of s .ompanies Act, 2013.
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h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA.VINEE nnci1AN
(Proprietor)

Membership No, 060270

Piace: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIR9568
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(i}

(ii)

(i)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB BHOPAL HOSPITALITY PRIVATE LIMITED

of even date)

{a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets;

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

{a) Physical verification of invento has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore this clause is not applicable.

The company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, o companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties
{a) The company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity [not applicable to companies
whose principal business is to give loans],
(A) No such loans or advances and guarantees or security has been provided
to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates:

{B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or secunty to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates;

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and

guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the r~=r=amis inbneant.

{c) In respect of loans and advances in the natu ayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulat and so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments ¢ ar,
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(iv)

(v)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(d) Since Loan is repayable on demand so the point of overdue of ninety days is not
applicable.

(e) Loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year,
has not been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

{f) The company has not granted loans or advances !n the nature of loans repayable on
demand, to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

In respect of [oans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act have been complied with.

No deposits were accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be deposits,
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
are not applicable to the company.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

{a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

{b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

{a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b} The company has not applied for any term ans.
(c) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes.

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates 1 joint ventures.

{e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companie
{a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial put public offer (including

debt instruments) during the year, so the question of ot arise.
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(xii)

{xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(b) The company has made no preferentia! allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

{c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.
The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;

(b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

{(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA 1  the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b} The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934;

{c} The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CiC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the fii n the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors di
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(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(a} In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a penod of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;

(b) No amount remaining unspent under sub-section {5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act;

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Compa s (Auditor's Report} Order {CARQO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,

Chartered Accountants
{Firm Renn Nn- R24428F)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIRS568
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RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
ON: U552 B2022PTL252022

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2023

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata 700001

ASSETS
kB current assets
{a) Praperty, Plant and Equipment
{b} Intangible
{c} Deterred Tax Assets
{c} Financial Assets
{i} Other Financial Assets
Tota Non - Current Assets
Current assets
{a) Inventaories
{b) Financial Assets
{i) Trade receivables
{n} Cash and cash equivalents
{in) Other financial assets
{c) Current Tax Assets
{d) Other cu s
Totaf Current Assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share capital
{b} Other Equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liahihties
{1} Borrowings
fii) Other financial liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{1 Borrowings
{ii) Trade and ot  payables
{ri1) Other financial habulities
{b} Other current liabilities
[c) Pravisians
Total Current Liabilities
Total liabilities
Tatal Equity & Liabilities

Partic+!=e

Note 31st M---+, 2023
1 224.79
2 141,53
3
4 100.00
466.32
5 102,695 68
&
/ 1,057.05
8
g -
10 113,161 30
216,914.02
217,380.34
11 10,000.0¢
12 (468.95)
9,531.05
13
14
15 197,260.95
16 7,610.00
17 .
18 2,978.34
19 -
207,849.29
207,849.29
217,380.34

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vineet Kheten

Proprietar

Membership No 060270
Place: 38, Lat Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700001,

Date:

This s the ca Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and behalf of the Board

ERREIFLECATRNVIDRE-TRE T ¢, TT- ]

Pyrrertnr

Director
Din Ne.DO04 7739



















¢} Property, Plant and Equipment

i. Recognition and measurement ) )
lterns of property, plant and equipment are measured at cast, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, ncluding impaort duties and non refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bt Jing the item to its working condition for its intended
use and estinated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those gualifying property, plant and equipment which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
It significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different uselul lives, then they are accounted for
as separate components ¢l sperty  nt and equipment.
Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable
value and shown under Other current assels
Property. plant and equipment s eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is
expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an itemn of property, plant and equipmi 3
recognised in prolil or loss.
Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended
use, are considered as pre  operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in - Proaress.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expendituie s capitalized onh en it 1s probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will  w to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

iii. Depreciation and amaortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Lass.

Depreciation on property, plant & equipments are provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at
the rates and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule il of the Act

Freehald land is not depreciated. Leasehold land (includes development cost) is amartised on a straight line basis over
the period of respective lease, except land acquired on perpetual lease

Depreciabion methads, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as
approptiate.

d} Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite usetul lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impawrment tosses Amartrsation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lves.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benehits are expected from use or disposal
Estimated useful life of the Computer Software is 5 years

e} Inventaries
Iterns of inventories are measured at lower of cost snd net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any Cost
of inventonies comprises of cast of purchase, cost of conversion and otl  ¢osts including manufactunng overheads net
of recovera  taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present !ocation and condition. Cost of raw materials is
determined on FIFO basis
Value of stores and spares. packing materials, trading and ather products are determuned on weighted average basis

f} Employee Benefits
i. Shart-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by ermployees are recognised as an expense during the period whan the employees render the services.

ii. Postemploy ntbenefits - Defined contribution plans
Mo post employment benefit are payable to any employee at present.

ili. Post employment benefits - Defined benefit plans
No post employment benefit are payable to any employee at present.



g} Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each repoiting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment Forimpairment testing assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU 1epresents the smaliest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
targ  independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs If any such indication exisis the recoverable amount af
an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, it any. When it is not pussible ta estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent. asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use, Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present vaiue using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised In prior dccounting petiod is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
tecoverable amount.

h) Provisions {other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present abligation {legal or constructive} as 2 result of a past eve it
ts prabable that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the cffect of the tme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects
when appropr the risks specific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, the in¢rease in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised a5 a finance cost

iy Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue

¢ be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is g made. Revepue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of vanable consideration) allocated to that parormance
abligatian. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variahle consideration on accounl af
various discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of conti«

Revenue from 1  sale of goods is recogmised when the goods have been delivered and title have been passed. No
revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs or the
possible return ot gnods trom date of initial applicatian

j} Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

k)

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company s right to receive payment is
established. interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

Income tax

income tax ex  secompri ofcurrent:  deferred tax Current tax  d deferred tax s recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity of in
Qci
Current tax
Current tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount experted to be recavered from or paid to the taxation
authgrities. based on tax rates and laws that are enacted of substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date
Deferred tax
[ :rredtaxis ognisedan  porary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiilies in the
tinancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Dalarred tax hahilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability 15 settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates [angd tax laws ed or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of De id assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporling period.



[} Borrowing costs

m)

n)

o)

p)

g costs are interest and other costs incurred in connectior  th the harrowing of funds. Borrowing casts directly
sle to acquisition or construction of an asset w 1 necessatily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
thelr intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred
Where there 1s an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there 15 a
realised or unrealised gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same borrowing, the gain to the extent of the
loss previpusly recogresed as an adjustment 1s recognised as an adjustment to interest.

Foreign currencies transactions
Transactians in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement ot Profit and Loss.

Government Grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company v comply with all attached conditions,

Eamings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
For the purpose of calculating diluted 1ings per share, the nct profil or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharehalders and the weighted average number of shares putstanding during the peniod are  isted far the effects of all
dilutive patential equity shares

Recent Pronounceme
Standard notifed but not yet efective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards under Companies
{indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time On March 37, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
(indian Accounting Standards: Amendment Rules, 2023 as follows:

ayInd AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significc  3ccounting policies The effective date for adoption of this amendment
15 annual periods beginning on or after Aprd 1 2023 The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

bl Ind AS 8 - Accounting Palicies. Changes in Accounting Fstimates and Frrors - This amendment has introduced a
definition of accounting estimates’ and included amendments to It 45 8 to help entities distingutsh changes in
accounting policies fraom changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning an or after April 1, 2023 The company has evaluated the amendment and t i no impact on its
standalane financial statements.

¢l Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope:  he initial recognition exemptions so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporarv ditterences. The effective date for
adoption of this atnendment is annual pericds beginning on or after wpany has evalu  d the
amendment and there is no impact on its standatone financial statemr



RDB Bhopal Hospitality Priy L ed
ist Floor, Bikancr Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Strect, Kolkata 700001
CIM. U55209WR2022PTL252022

Notes to the flnancial statements

{In Hundreds)

Note 1 & 1 - Property, Plant and Equipment

31st March, 2023

1) Office

Particulars ‘ ]_ {2) intangible

Equipment
Gzross carrying  ount
Clasing gross carrying amount as on 31.03,.2022 - -
Additions 27000 170.00
Disposals
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.2023 2/000 17000
Closing accumulated depreciation as an 31.03.2022 -
Depreciation charge during the year 45.21 28.47
Disposals
Closing accumula®~- ~~~=~gigtion as on 3 ~* 273> 45,21 28.47
Met carrying amount as at 31.03.2022 -
Net carrying ap—-"=* == 7t 31.03.2023 224.79 141.53




RDB Bhopal Hospltality Private Limited

1:t Floor, Bikaner Buiiding, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700

CIN: US1109WB2005FTC104548

Notes to the financial statements

Note 3 Deferred tax assets {net}
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets
TOTAL

Note 4 Financlal Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits for Dematerialisation of shares
TOTAL

Note S Inventories

{At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in Progress

Total Inventories

Note 6 Financial Assets [Trade receivables)
Qutstanding for a period :
Less than six months
& months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total

Note b(a) - Classification of Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables considered good — Secured;

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured;
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk;

Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Note 6(a} - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other
Debts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other
Debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any

director is a partner or a director or a member,

Note 7 Financial Assets {Cash and Cash Equivalents}

Balances with banks
Cash in hand
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

{In Hundreds)

31st March, 2023

100.00

100.00

102,695.68

102,695.68

1,057.05

1,057.05




RDB 8hopal Hospitality Private Umited
1st Fioor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, La! Bazar Street, Xolkata - 700001
CIN: US13109WRB2005PTC104548

{In Hundreds)
Motes to the financial statements 31st March, 2023
MNote 8 Financial Assets {Other financial assets)
Other Advances .
TOTAL -
Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilitles
Current tax assefs
Advance Income Tax and TDS
TOTAL -
Note 10 Other current assets
Advance to contractor for construction activities (Holding Company) 101,853.02
Balance with Revenue Authorities ,30B.28
TOTAL 113,161.30
Note 11 Equity Share Capital - (Equity Sharas of Rs.10/- eath) Shares (No's} Amount
a) Authorised Share Capitat 100,000.00 10,000.00
b} Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital 100,000.00 10,000.00
¢} Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning of the year -
Add: Shares issued during the year 100,000.00
As at the end of the year 100,000.00
d} Betails of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name af Equity Shareholders Share held {No's)  Shareholding (%)
ROB Realty & infrastructure Ltd 57,000 57.00%
An  lain 18,000 18.00%
Vingd Yaduvanshi 20,000 20.00%

e} The rights, pre v & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions an distribution
of dividend and repayment  capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Fach holder of equity
shares s entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Direciors is subject to the approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equrty shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after tion of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

fi Shares heid by holding, ultimate b ing, or subidiaries or associ

Name of Equity Shareholders No's)  Shareholc 2 (%')
RDB Realty & infrastructure Ltd 7,000 57.00%




RDB Bhopal Hospltality Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WR2005PTCL104548

Notes to the financial statements

gl Shares are res~—~ 7r issue under options or contracts.

Number of Shares

{In Hundreds)
31st March, 2023

h} Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

tholders within1®  eriod of 5 years - Nil

i) Details of Promoter shareholding as at the end of year
RDB Reaity & infrastructure Ltd
Ankit fain
Kuldeep Mathur
Vinod Yaduvanshi

Note: Changes in promaoter shareholding bave heen calculated from

Note 12 Other equity

Re & Surplus
Surplus from  tement of Pr¢ % Loss

As at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Add: ind AS Adjustments

As at the end he year
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other iterns af Other Camprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amartised cost

Loan from Bank

toan from NBFC

Loan from holding company

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability {Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits
Total

Note: Company was incorporated in the current year and 5 years have not elapsed since its formation.

oo fig's) Shareholding (%)

57,000 -13.00%
18,000 18.00%

5,000 5.00%
20,000 -10.00%

shareholding of incorporation.

(468.95)

(468.95)

/8.95)




RDB Bhapal Hosy ity Private Lir ed
1st Floor, Bikaner Buil g, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, K afa - 700001

CIN: U51109W82005PTC104548

Notes to the financi statements
Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
{Unsecurcd, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From other than body corporate
From other than Related Parties
From Non Banking Finance Companies
From other than body corporate
Total
Note:

have been used for business activi

with banks or financial institutions does not arise

d} No loan have been guaranteed by directors or other.

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above
Total

Trade payables outstan g for a period :
Less than six months
6 manths -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
Maore than 3 years

Mote 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Other payable

Total

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others

Other payable
Statutory Liabilitics
Total

Note 19 Provisions
Prevision for Income Tax
Total

{in Hundreds)
31st March, 2023

21,094 80

64,882.59
111,283.56

197,260.95

2] There have been no default in the payment of Interest or principle amount whenever called.

b} The bori 1ng was availed for the purpose of generai business purpose without any written agreement, and the funds

¢) The funds borrowed are not secured, hence f g of quarterly returns or statements of current assets by the Company

7,610.00

7,610.00

7,610.00

1,758.39
1,219.95

2,978.34




RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1,{  3azar Street, Kolkata
CiIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Qperations
Sales of construction activites

Sales of services
TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest Incor
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Interest Paid in accordance with IND AS-23
Ca 1ption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Less . Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
{Increase}/decrease in inventories

Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund
Other Borrowing Cost
Total

Note 25 Qthers Expenses

Filing Fees

Finance Charges

Repairs & Maintenance

Professional Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration - Audit Fees
Total

- 700001

{In Hundreds}
315t March, 2023

98,997 .82
3,697.86

102,695.68

102,695.68

{102,695.68)

22751
21.06

96.69
50.00

395.27







RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
1st Flaor, iner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: UBS209WB2022RTC252022

Notes to the financial statements {in Hundreds)

EES

a5

36

37

38

EL]

Relatad Party  closure

Helated Pady Helationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & intrastructure Lirmited - Holding Compary
Enterperses with Cammen KMP ¥MS Finance Private Linnted

Transactions B Balances 414t March, 2023

hearme of farty and Nature uf Transgctions Transacrion Ralances

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Linsecurad short term loan taken 38,342 9n )
Unsecured short terer loan repard 38,332 96
Interest on Loan prowided 743,74 )
Interest on Loan pad 24374
Advange to cantractor for constructiGn activitigs 104 500 O 101,853 107
Brlis adjus tor construction activities 2,646.08

Vinod Yaduvanshi
Unsecured shart term loan taken 200, (K[ 100K 00
Unsecurad short term .odr repad
Ikerest an | gan provided 1,216.44 1094 80
Interest on Loan paid 12164

17 the vpenian ¢ 1 the Board Ine Currend Assels, Leans and Advances are nal 1ess than the stated vawe f realsed in ordinary rourse of
busimess, The provision for all known habilimes 5 adequate and not in excess of the amount reasenably necessary, “hers s na contingent
lakulity except stated and informed by the Management

Mo preceeding has been initiated or pending aganst the comrpany far bokdieg any benamn gropeny wnder the Benam Transachions
{Prohubntion} Act, 19AE {45 ol 1988) and rules made Thereusder.

The rompany have not been declared wilful defaulter by any lender from whom funds have been borrawed

Thie company 1ot any knowledge of ary transactions or balances with campanes struck off under section 248 nf the Companies, Act,
2013 or section ShU of Compames Act, 1956, henee no disclosura hawe been made.

Company does not have any sobsdiary as defimed ofs 2187 and hene question of violation of number of layers presenibed under clause
187) of section 2 of the Act read with Compames {Restrichon on number of Layers) Rubes, 2017 does nul anse

ancial instrur s and Related Qisclosures

Partlculars &t at 31st March, 2023 Carrying Value Amortised Cost Falr Walue
Mon Currend
Jther financial assets 101N}
Current

Trage redeivabley
Cask and cash equivalents 1,057 0%
Othear Finanoa Ausets

Total Financiat Assets 1,157 05
INnancidl Liabihties

Nonr Current

Borrowings
Other hngnoal iabiites -
Current
Barrowings 157 dpttys
Trade and other poyables 761 -

Jther Hinanciatb sdacilities
Total Financial Liabilities e BT




BE al Hospitality Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazat Street, Kolkata - 700001
UBS5208WRB2022PTC 252022

Notes to the financlal statements

A, Capltal Requirements

For the purpase of the Company’s tal management. caprtal wncludas issued equity captal, share premium and all ©

[in Hundreds)

Ceguity

reserves attributable to the equity halders of the Company. The primary objective o} the Campany’s capitsl management s to maxlmise

the shareholder value

The Company manages its capita structure and makes ad,ustments m hght of changes in economic cond Lions and Ihe requirentents of

the finanogr covenants To mamtan or 3djust the rapital structure

Compdny may adyust the dividend payment to shareholders,

return e apital o sharehulders o6 saae new shares The Company momiors caprtal s o gednng ratis, wioch s net dect fnaded oy tota

v amral plus net debt The Company includes withun net debt, interes! treanng ks and borrowings, trade and other payabies less cash

and cash equwvalents

Particulars 31st March, 2023

Rarrowings ) {long term  and  short-term, 1Mcuding  current 197,261 95
maturties of leng term borrawengs)

Trade payables 461000
Less Cash and cash eqg nts

Net debt MM, B70.95
Equity share capita TR0
Other pquity {468,951}
Total Capital 4,541.05
Gearing rabio 0.05

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s cap tal managerment, amongst other things, auns to ensure that 1 meets
financiat covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital strumure requirements. Braaches in

meeting the tinanciat covenants would permit the bank to 11 medistely Call louns and Borrowings There have been no broaches nthe

financial covenants of any Interast bearing logans and borrowing in the current pericd

40 Disclosure of Financial Fnstruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

Tne Company's principal finantial labilities comprise Inans and borrowings, trade amd athier payobles The mam purpose of these
financial 1abilities 1s te finance and cupport Company's operations Tne Company's porn pal tnannal assets inchude trage and other
recervables, cash and cash eguivalents and loans and advar ces and refundabl deposits that denve Sirectly from s operations,

The Company 1s exposed to market risk, credit risk and hgurdity nsk “he Company’s sermdr managrmen: oversees the managemnnt of

thaese risks. The Compi  » SERIOT MNadnd st sees that the Campany’s bnannal nsk activities are govesned by appropniate poliows and
procedures anad thal linangial nsks are identified, measared ang managed i aceorddnes with the Campany's palinies and niskh Shpecrives

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees pohicies for managing each ul these nisks, whivh are cummarised below

Markeat rish:

rikat tisk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash tiaws ab g hingnoial mstrumient w i fluctuatebecause of rhanges in miarkat prices.

Market risk comprises two types of r sk: imterest rate -lshantl ather pone tisk, such as equity price <isk and commodity/ real estate risk.
The Company has nat enlered into gy foregn exchange or vommadiy der valive rontracts. Accordingly, there 15 no significant exposure

tovthe market ek other than pterest nsh

(1} Interest raka risk

interest rate risk s the nisk that the fair valoe or future cash flows of a financa instrument wirt fluctuate becausa of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the nisk of changes in markel interest rates relatas primarity to the Campany <

leng-term debt obhigations with floating interact razes

The Company manage interest rate sk accapting Ipans and borrewings of ot faed rate. Most of the bor
Company are unsecured and at fixed rates. The Compeny does rot enter into any interest rale swaps,

(] Price rigk

5 of the

The Company has not made any investments tor trading purposes, The sirpluses Rave been denloyed in bank deprsits as

paplained above




RDB Bhopal Hos| ity Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikener 8widing, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Xolkata - 700001
CIN: USS209WB2022PTC2520322

Notes to the financlal statements (In Hundreds)

Cradit risw

Credit rise 15 the nisk that counterparty will nol meat its obligations under 3 hnangial instrument or customer contract, leeding to a
findngis The Campany ts axposed 1o credit sk from ts opersting actwities [pam antly trade recervables) and fromoits finaning
a nwvities, including refundable jornt development deposits, seCirity ceposts, Fians to ermployees and other Yinanoal instruments.,

Trade recewvab

Re eivables resulting fram sabe of properties Custores crerdit nsh s managed by requirng yuslan vry 1o pay advsnees befora transfer of
awnershio, theretore, substantally eliminating the Corapany’s credit rish o this respect,

Recevables resulting fream other than <ale of praperties. Credil nsk s managed [y #ach hasiness ot subyect ta the Company’s
estabushed policy, proceds and cantrol relating to custar credit risk management. Dutstanding customer recel edare regularly
monitored. The impairment analys:s 15 performad at each reporting date on an ndwadual Brasis fer major chents. In aoditron, a large
number of miror recewvables are grouped nio homogenesoas greups amnd assassed Far mpawrment cotfecuvely. The maximum axposure to
credit nisk at the reporung date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Compary does rot hold ¢ T3 5 SeILMTY.
Trne Company's credit period generallty ranges from 20-50 days.

The againg of trade rer ablesareast  we [Refer Noto 4 1o Finana) Stater ty)

Deposits with banks and firaocal nstitubions

Credit risk tram bolances with b and tinantial nstitutions s rmanaget oy the Compsnyin accordance wilh the Company's prbcy
fovestents of stirplus fends are made only wath gpproved rnunterpart es and nn rredit limits gssigned tn each rounterparty,

Counterparly credit limits are reviewsd by the Company’s Beard ot Dirertors nn an anneal basis, and may be updated throughoot the
yrar subpot to approval of the Boarg The Lmits are to mrmise the cancentrateon of nishs and th ger mitigate tmanoial loss
through o counterparty’ polential failure (o mnake payments, The Company’s masenwm exposore to credit 1 sk for the components of
the statement at finanoad positior At 315t March, MI12305 he rasrying amounts

Liguidity Risk
The Compdny's investment degsions relaling to depuoynient of surplas bgudity are gunded by the tenets of safety houidily 2nd retuen

The Company manages s igurhty nisk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient hguidity to meet its halulibes when due. in case of
snart term requirements, it chtains short-term loans fram ts Bankers.



opal Hospitality Private ~“mited

15t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 001
CIN: US55209WB2022PTC252022

Note

a1

» & forming part of Flnancial Statements
iancial Ratios:
31st] ch, _31sf March
Mature of Ratio Mumerator Denominator % Change
. i 2023 2022 #

Current Ratia Current assets Current liabilities 1.04 NA NA

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are

not available for average.

Total horrowings
Debt Equity Ratio L Total equit 20.70 NA NA
quity and lease liabilities quity

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are

not availabie for average.
Ret Equity Ratio {in %) Profit for th A e NA NA NA

eturn on Eguity Ratio {in rofit for the year .
quity B Y Shareholder’s Equily
Reason for Deviation of maore than 25%: This is the first financial statement afler incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.
Gross Revenue from
Inventory turnover Ratlio {in time' sale of products and  Average inventories NA NA NA
services
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first linancial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available far average.
Gross Reve e from
) . Aver - Trade

Tri  Receivables turnover ratio sale of products and NA NA NA

. receivables
services

Reason for Deviation of more thar  %: Since the company was formed during the year, previous ligures are not

Trade Paya sturnover ratio (in Total Purchase Average Trade NA NA NA
Reason for Deviation of mo  han 25%: Since the company was forr  during the year, previous figures are not

. L Gross Revenue from Working Capital
Met Capital turnover ratio {in tim 0.00 NA NA
sale of praducts and {Curre  assets-

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available far average.

Gross Revenue from

Net Profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year  sale of products and NA NA NA
SEIVILES
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: The company does not hav- —— -~~~ -~ “-~— -perations

. X Profit before interest
Return on Capital employed {in % Capital emg NA NA
and taxes



~~ 3 Bhopat Hospitality Private ited
1st Floor, I 1ner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U55209WB2022PT(C252022

Notes to & forming part of Financial Statements

42

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%. This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

Income from Time weighted

Return on investment (in %) 0.00 NA NA

investments average Investments

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

Note : The company does not any fixed inst.  nents repayment ioan outstanding, hence Debt Service Coverage Ratio in
not reported.

The ligures of reporied have been rounded off in hundreds in accordance with the amended mandatory requirements of
Division Il of Schedule 11} except Number of Shares, Number of units, Earnings per share and Ratios

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board
Chartered Acco ~*~ ~*- For RD'R Rhanal Hacnitalite Dut | #d

M ouccp nuilgl rugona

Vineet Kheten Director

Proprietor Din N0.00501351

Membership No.060270

Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700001. AN RUITHAE ApdL

Date: Director
Din No.00047739



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

RDB BHOPAL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RDB BHOPAL
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2023, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiat Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, - ° 7 nal judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial stater nt period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the ts as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generafly accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management

either intends to liquidate the Company or 18, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible e company'’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. Ve also:

Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, ort  override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disciosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a geing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements atements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the econ a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be infiue 'r quantitative materiality and
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qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of cur audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued
by the Ceniral Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representat-—- ----*~~ “-= the directors as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on recon Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on Marcl being appointed as a

director in terms of section 164(2) of {
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f. Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2020:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

i} There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that. to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or investad {either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person{s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s} or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the re~-~~~=*~*~~~~der sub-clause (a) and
{b) contain any material mis-staterr

v) The company has not declared © end during the year in
contravention of the provisions of s Companies Act, 2013.
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h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opwicen and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applica ' to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIN2545
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(i)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB BHOPAL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE
LIMITED of even date)

(a) (A) The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment. so this clause is not
applicable.
{B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) Since there is no Property, Plant & Equipment, so the point of verification does not arise.
(¢} The Company does not have any immovabie property so this clause is not applicable.

(d} The company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (inciuding Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, hence revaluation is not required as this
clause is not applicable,

{e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prchibition} Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

{b} The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financia! institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore this clause is not applicable

The company has not made any investments and not provided any guarantee or security or
has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties,
(a) The company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity.

(A) As the company has not provided any loans and atc inces to subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates so this clause is not applicable.

(B) As the company has not provided any loans and advances to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates so this clause is not applicable.

{b} The investments made are not prejudicial to the company's interest;

(c) Since the company has not given any loans and advances therefore there is no
requirement for preparing any schedule.

{d) Since the company has not given any loans and =2dvanrac therefore no reasonable
steps are required to be taken by the compa

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan 1as fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or no f >een granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

{vii})

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

() The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees. and security, therefore the
compliance of provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
required.

No deposits were accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be deposits,
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
are not applicable to the company.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

{a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they becarme payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1861).

The company has no loans or borrowings, therefore question of default in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender does not arise.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (inciuding
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014 with the Central

Govemment;

{¢) There were no whistle-blower complaints, receive 1e year by the company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the cc if this clause is not required.
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{xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

{xvii)

(xviil)

{xix)

{xx)

There are no such transactions with the related parties hence the compliance of this clause
is not required.

{(a) The company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;

{b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Intemal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

{a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of india as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of india, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

{d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of t : Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Companies Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compli ond proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;

{b) No amount remaining unspent under sub-secti on 135 of the Companies

Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been trar cial account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 ¢

Page 9 of 10



(xxi) There have been neo qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023.
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIN2945
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RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Buillding, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kalkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{In hundreds

Particulars

31st March,2023

A, Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Lass
Adjustmaents for
Depreciation & Amortisation
nterest Pad
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
{increase) / Decrease in Inventories
{Increi  / Decrease of Other Non Current Assets
{Increase} / Decrease sn Trade recevables
{Increase) / Decrrase of Other Current Assets
Increase / {Decrease) of Other financia! fiabilities
incraase / {Decrease) in Trade Payables
increase / [Decrease) of Other liabitities
Cash generated from operations
Less' Direct taxes pasd/ {Refunds) including Intercst {Net}
Cash Fiow before Exceptianal ltems
Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities

B. Cash Flow from Investng Activitles :
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Met cash from investing activities

C. Cash flaw from finan:
Share Capital taised

activities :

Proceeds / (Repayment} of Short Term Barrowings
interest Paid

Met cash generated/(used) in financing activities
Wet increase/(decrease) inc:  and cash equivalents (A+B+L)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opering balance

Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance

55,791 32

{506.06)

55.781.32

{103.350 12)
(860,000.00)

(38,585 83}

8,280 00
6.810.38

55,285.26

(987,845.57)

10,000.00
924,192.97

(932,560.31)

{932,560.31)

{932,560.31}

934,192.97

934,192.97

1,632.66

1,632.66

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Bafances with Ranks

Cash on hand {As cerufied by the management|

1,632.66

| 1.632.66

This s the Cash How Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

Charrarad Aeemaneaptg

Vineat Kheten

Broprietor

Membership Mo 060270
Place: 38, Lal Bazar Streat
Kolkat

BATE:

For and behalf of the Board

ForR™ T

Fragegp Kumar FLUgana

Diractor

LT =S

Din No.0792938




|RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner B.  ng, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata 700001

CIN: US1109WB2005PTCI04548
i

MNote; 3 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

1 Company Overview

RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited 1" the Company”; s a subsidiary of a listed compadny incorporated in India un 3rd
March 2022 having its registered office at Bikaner Building 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, 3rd floor, Rooim Na. 10, Kolkata- 700001
The Company 1s principally engaged in the business of renovation and operation of Hotel  3hopal "Sadar Manzil®

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions ol the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act ] (to the
extent notified! and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cast convention on the accrual basis
except for centain financial instruments which are measured at farr values e Ind AS are prescrnibed under section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended}.
Accounting policies have been consister applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the eccounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and presentation¢  ency
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees {"¥ ), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements

¢) Basis of measurement
The financial staterments have been prepared on histarical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the following
items
(i) Certain financiat assets and financial hdbilities measured at fair value,
(i) Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation.
Fair valye is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market canditions, regardless of whether that price
15 directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In determining fair vatue of an asset or a liabihty.
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or habnlity «f market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or lfability at the measurement date.

d} Use of judgments and estimates
in preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reporled amounts of assets, liabiities, iIncome and expenses Actua results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to
accounting eslimates are recogni.  prospectively.
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: ¥ assumptions -
{i) Useful lives of Property, plantand e ipment:

Tl “ompany uses its technical expertise along with histonical and industry trends for determining the economic life of
an assct/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate.
In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amounl is charged over the remaining useful life of Lhe assets,

{ii} Fair value measurement of financial instrume :
When the fair values of finanoial assets and finanoal kabilities recorded 1n the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted pnces in active markets, their fair value s measured using carlain valuation techmgues. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets whete possible, but where this is not feasible, a degtee of judgerent is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and

volatihty.

(ii7) Defined benefi 5
Cost of defined be flan includes graturty and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuanial valuations using projected uni arial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developmer clu he  rmination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Dus olved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit cbhgation is hughly » assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at pach

reporting date.



{(iv} Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumpttons about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow ot resources. Provision s towards
known contracts bhgation, itigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes duties and other levies, if
any, in respect ¢ ith management believes that there are present abligations and the seitfement of such obligations
are expected to result in outflow of resources to the extent provided for

e) Measurement of fair values
Anum  oftt  lompany's accounting policies and disclos.  require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.
T Zompany has an established control fram  ark with respect 1o the measurement of fair values

The management reqularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustmentis.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 1n the valuation

techniques as follows.

- Level 1- quoted prices junadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habihities.

- Level 2! inputs other than quoted prices included in L evel 1 that are observabie tor the asset or hability, either directly
(1.e. as prices; or indirectly (Le. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs.

When measuring the fair value of an asset ot a liability, the Company uses observahle market data as far as possible If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement

The Company recognises trar  rs between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

3 Significant accounting policies

a) Operating Cycle
All assets and liabihties have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
ather criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Comparies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financiat Statements
based on the nature of products and the tirme between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents

b) Financial instruments

inancial instrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financal asset of o entity and a financial hability or ~ uity

instrument of another entity

i. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised inttially at fair valoe plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade
receivables that do contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase
and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date,

Subsequent measurement
for purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in three categories:
+ Amortised cost
+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (F VT
= Fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL}
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to therr initial recagnition, except if and in the peniod the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financia  ots at amorlised cost:
A financial asset s measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business mudel whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to co contractual cash flows and 't -antractual terms of the financial assel give rise on spec dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal an principal amount outstanding



Financial assets at FVTOCI

A financial asset s measured at FVTQCLif it 1s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
callecting cantractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specitied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
Financial assets included within the FYTOC | category are measured initiatly as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Farr value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income 1OCH.

Financial assets gt FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categaries are measured at FVTPL.
Finangial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all thanges recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss

Other equity investments
All other equity investments are measured at fair value with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
except for those equity investments for which the Cumpany has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Camprehensive Income’.

Derecognition
The Company dereccegnizes a linancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel
expire or it transfers the financial assct and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,

it. Financial lability

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are nitially recogmised at tair value plus any transaction cost that are atiributable ta the acquisition
of the financial rabilities except f nancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
value.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement. finanaial liabihittes are classified in foliowing categories:
= Financial fiabtities through profit ar loss (FVTPL)
= Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Finarcial labilities thraugh FVTPL
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPLU if it is classified as held -far-trading, or it is a derivative or it s designated as
such on Initial recogmtian Financial labihties at FYTPL are measured at farr value and net qains and losses including
any interast expense, are recognised v profit of loss

Financial habilities at amortised_cost
Other fin:  al liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised caost using the ettective interest method interest
expense and any gain or loss on derecognilion are recogrised in profit or loss,
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at aniortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or toss when the liabiiities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
precess For trade and ather payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts

approximates fair value due to the short matunty of these instruments
Derecognition

A financial liability (or apart o wnandial hability) is derecognized from Lhe Company s Balance Sheet when the
obligaticn specified in* contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

fii. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and linancia! liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a logally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle thermn
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultanecusly



¢} Property, Plant and Equipment

d)

e)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment tosses, if any The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment ¢comprises its purchase price. including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its woiking condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restaring the site on which it is Incated Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition ot construction of those qualitying property, plant and equipment, which
necessarily take a substantial period of time ta get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

if significant parts of an item of property plant and equipment have different useful lives, then ¢ are accounted for
as separate components of praperly, plant and equipment.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the fower of their net book value and net realisable
vajue and shown under Other current assets’

Property, plant and equipment s elimmated trom the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is

& ted fromits use and disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an ilem of property, plant and equipment s
recognised in profit or loss.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of incor  :arned during the project development stage prior to its intended
use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in - Progress.

Subsequent expenditure
Sub  uent expendilure is capitalized only when it 1s probabte that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repaits and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Prolit and Loss.
Depreciation on property, plant & equipments dte provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at
the rates and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule Il of the Act.
Freehold land is not depreciated. L easehold land (inciudes development cost]  imortised on a straight hne basis over
the penod of respective fease  cept land acquired on perpetual lease.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as
appropriate.

Intan te Assets
intangible assets with fii  useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-linc basis over their estimated useful lives.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expe  d from use or disposal.
Estimated useful hfe of the Computer Software is 5 years.

Inventories

iterns of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence if any, Cost
of inventonies comprises of cost of purchase, cost ot conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads net
of recoverabte taxes incurred 1in nging them to thewr respective present lacation and conditton. Cost of raw materials is
determined on FIFD basis.

Value of stores and spares, packing rnaterials, trading and other products are determined on weighted average basis.

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised as an expense dunng the period when the employees render the services.

Post employment benefits - Defined contribution plans

No post employment benefit are payable to any employee at presen!
Post employment benefits - Defined benefit plans

No post employment be t are payable to any employee at presen|



g) Impairment

Impairment of non-fir  rial assets

The Company's non-finantial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of
impairment. Far impairment testing, assels that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash generating units {CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or (GUs If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU 15 estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possibte to estimate the
racoverable amount of an individuat asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU ta which the asset
belongs.

An impairment foss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carnying amount exceeds its
recoverable amaunt. The recoverable amount 15 higher of an asset s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value
in use 15 based on the estimated fut:  -ash flows, discounted to their present value using pre tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the tirne value of maney and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change int  »stimate of
recoverahie amount

h) Provisions {other' n for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Campany has a present obligation (legal or constructive) a+ asult of apast e ot
15 probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discountec  ng a current pie-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate. the risks specific to the liability When discounting is used the increase in the provision dug to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Iy Revenue Recognition

n

Re ueisrecognised tothe er  tilis probable that the ecanomic benefits will flow to the company and the reveriue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made, Revenue towards satisfaction ot a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of varial  consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered 1s net of vatiable consideration on account of
various discounts and schemes offered by the company as parl of contract.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods have been delivered and title have been passed. No
revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due associated costs ar the
possible return of gueds from date of initial application.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend inco 5 recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to re. e payment s
established. Interest income or expense .5 recagnised using the cHective interest method.

k} Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current ¢ deferred tax, Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, ot items recognized direcly in equity or in
oclL.
Current tax
Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary ditferences between the carrying amounts of assets ¢ liahilities in the
finantial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
Deferred tax liabilities and  =ts are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pariod in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws} tha*“ -~ - - -~ d or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period The carrying amount of Deferre | assels are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period



) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing ot tunds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost ot that asset Other borrowing costs are recogmsed as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred
Where there 15 an unrealised exchange loss which is Ireated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there 1s a
realised or unrealised gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same borrowing, the gain to the extent of the
ioss previously recogmised as an adjustment is recognised as an adjusiment to interest

m} Foreign currencies transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recogmsed in Stalerment of Profit and Loss.

n) Govermment Grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditians

o) Earnings per Share
Basic earmngs per share is calculated by dividing the net profit ot foss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted aver.  number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For 2 purpose of calculating diluted earmings per share, the net profit or loss for the pertod attnbutable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

p} Recent Pronounceme
Standard notifed but not yet effective:

Ministry ot Corporate Aftairs ("MCA") nutifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
tindian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
iindian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2073, as follows:

a)Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendinent requires the entities to distlose their material
accounting policies rather than ther significant accounting policres The effective d. for adoption of this amendment
is annual periods beginming on or after April 1, 7023 The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is nsignificant in the standalone financial statements

b) ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting | nates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a
definition of 'accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind A5 8 to help entities distinguish changes in
accounting policies fram changes in accounting estirnates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 The company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
standalone financial statements,

o) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemptions sa that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary diferences The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after Aprit © NP2 The ~~myany has evaluated the
amendment and therc is no impact on its standalone financial statements






RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Li ted
1st Floor, aner Bu  ng, B8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

{in Hundreds)
Notes to the financial statements 31st March, 2023

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets
TOTAL -

Note 4 Financial Assets {Other Financial Assets)

Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposit against Tender for development 860,000.00
TOTAL 860,000.00

Note 5 inventories

{At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Work in Progress 103,350.12
Total Inventories 103,350.12

Note 6 Financial Assets {Trade receivables)
Outstanding for a period .
Less than six months
6 months -1 year -
1-2 years -
2-3 years -
More than 3 years -
Less: Allowance for douhtful debts -
Total -

Note 6{a} - Classification of Trade Receivables
Trade Receivatiles considered good — Secured; -
Trade Receivables considered goed — Unsecured,
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk; }

Trade Receivables - credit impaired -

MNate 6{a) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other -
Debis due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other -

Debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which -
director is a partner or a directar or a member.

Note 7 Financial Assets {Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks 1,632.66
Cash in hand B

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 1,b3.2.66




RDB Bhopal rastructure Private Limited
1st Flo  Bikane ulding, B/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 7 201
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548
{In Hundreds)
Notes to the financial statements 31st March, 2023
Note B Financial Assets [Other financial assets}
Other Advances to holding company -

TOTAL -

Note 9 Current tax assets and llabilities
Current tax assets
Advance income T ind TDS -

TOTAL -

MNote 10 Other current assets

Advances for expenses for project {(Hol g company) 22,003.23
Advances for expenses far project 1€ 3.00
Batance with Revenue Autharities 7,383.60
TOTAL 39,585.83
Note 11 Equity Share Capital - {Equity Shares of As.10/- each) Shares {No's) Amount

a} Authorised Share Capital 100,000.00 N Ann na

«d, subscribet’ iid Share Cap™™ ° 100,000.0Q 10,000.00

c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity  ares Qutstanding

As at the beginning of the year -
Add: Shares issued during the year 100,000.00
As at the end of the year 100,000.00

d) Details of Sharehalders holding more than 5% shares with voting right

Name of Equity Sha  olders Shares {No's) Shares (%)
RDB Reafty & Infrastructure Ltd 85,000 85.00%
Vinod Kumar Yaduvanshi 15,000 15.00%

e} Shares held by halding, ultimate he' * 2, or subidiaries or assocates of halding
Name of Equity Sharehoiders Shares (No's] Shares (%)
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 85,000 85.00%

fi The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions ondi  bution

of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par: 0 per share. Each halder of equity
shares js entitled to one vote per share. The company declar ids in Indian rupees. The dividend
proposed by the Roard of Directors is subject to the apprava rs in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of ligwdation aof the company, the holt 's will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential a ution will be in proportion to the

number af equity shares held by the shareholders.




(RDB Bhopal infrastructure Private Limited
t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CiIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

{In Hundreds)

Notes to the financial statements 31st March, 2023

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.

Nurmber of Shares )

h] Shares issued for consideration other than cash ar bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years - Nil

Mote: Company was incorporated in the current year and 5 years have not elapsed since its formation,

Shares (No's)

i} Details of Pramaoter sharehoiding as at the end of year Shares {No's)
RDB Reaity & Infrastructure Ltd 85,000
Vinod Kumar Yaduvanshi 15,000

Note: Promoter shareholding have not changed from the date of issue of shares,

Note 12 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through cther comprehensive income

Cther items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings {Mon Current)
Secured - at amortised cost

Loan from Bank

Loan from NBFC

Loan from holding company
Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability [Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits
Total

85.00%
15.00%

(506.06)

(506.06)

{506.06)




RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

MNotes to the financial statements

MNote 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
{Unsecured, repayable on Demand, inctuding interest accr 1)
From Related Parties
From holding company
From ather than Related Parties
From Mon Banking Finance Companies
From other than body corporate (LLP's)
Total

Note:

{In Hundreds}
I1st March, 2023

36,000.00

390,325.27
553,659.02

979,984.29

a) There have been no default in the payment of interest or principle amount whenever catled.

b1} The borrowing was availed for the purpose of general business purpose without any written agreement, and the

funds have been used for business activities.

¢} The funds borrowed are not secured, hence filing of quarterly returns or statements of current assets by the

Company with banks or financial institutions does nal arise.

d) No loan have been guaranteed by directors or ather.

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above
Total

Trade payables outstanding for a period :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Mote 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
0Otl payable
Total

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

Note 19 Pravisions
Provision for Income Tax
Toatal

8,280.00

8,280.00

B,280.00

8,280.00

50.00
6,760.38

6,810.38




RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaners Buddii  B/1, Lai Bazar Street, Kotkata - 700001

CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548
Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Rewvenue from Operations
Sales of construction activites
Sales of services

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
interest Income
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses

Inte  tPadin atcordance with IND AS-23

Other Borrowing Cost in accordance with IND AS-23
Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Invenl ¢ of Work in Progress
Less - Closing inventory of Work in Progress
{Increase)/decrease in inventories

Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund
Cther Borrowing Cost
Total

Note 25 Others Expenses

Filng Fees

Travelli % Conveyantce

Bank Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration  Statutory Audit Fees
Total

{In Hundreds)
31st March, 2023

41,884.15
55,791.32
5,674.65

103,350.12

103,350.12

(103,350.12)

232.59
170.10
15.06
34.31
50.00
506.06




RDB Bhapal Infrastructure Private Limlted
1st Flaor, Bikaner Bi  ing, B/1, Lal Bazar Street, K ta - 700001
CIN: US1105WRA2005PTC104548

Notes ta financiai statements {in Hundreds}

26 This is the first financial statement after incorporation of the company, hence previous yaar figures are niot available for

27

8

29

3n

32

reporling and contpansion

Income taxes

Amount recognised in profit or loss

Current tax

Current period

Chamges in respect of current income tax of previous year -

A
Reconciliation of eective tax rate
Profit before tax {506.08)
Tax rate 26%

Tax using the Indian tax rate
Tax effects of amounts which are not texable in calgulating taxable income

Iterms of adjustmenl under IND AS, but not taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income

Itemns of adjustment under IND-AS, but nat aliowable under Income Tax Act, 1961
Others adjustments

Utilisalion ved fur are pre

Company has neither advanced or nor loaned or invested funds {either borrowed (unds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any other person{s) or entityfies), includi  foreign entities (Intermedianias) with the
vnderstanding {whether recorded 1n wnting or otherwise} that the Intermediary shall

i} drrectly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or

on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

i1} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies;
The company has not recerved any fund from any person{s} or entrt  5), including foraign entities {Funding Parly) with
the understanding {whether recorded in writing or ctherwise) that the company

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or

on behalf of the Funding Party {Uitimate Beneficiaries) or
i} provide any guarantee, security ar the like on behalf of the Uiitimate Beneficianes

The pravisions of {SF u/fs 135 are not applicable to the company
Foreign Currency Transactions - Nil [P Y, Nil}

Contingent Liabilibes Wi [P.¥. NI}

Segment information

The business of the company falls under a single operating segment Oper edin a manner
consistent with the internal reporting prowided to the chief operating deci



IRDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
15t Floor, Bikaner Building, 871, Lal Bazar Street, Kolk - 700001
CIM: US1109WER2005PTCH 48

MNotes to the financ  tatements {In Hundreds}

33

34

35

36

17

38

3%

Related Party Dhsclosure

Retated Pary Reiatignship

Enterprises where control ensts ROB Realty & Intrastruciure Umiled — Holding Coopary
Enterprises with Common KMP - YRS Fimance Private um ted

Transactions & Dalances 31st March, 2023
Name of Party and Nature of Tragsactions Transaition Balanies
ROB Realty & Infrastruciure Limited
ADB 177 60
Unsecured short term |lean taken 36,000 00
Unsecured shart term loan repaid 37L,177.60
Interest on toan prowvided 4.739.61 )
nteres: on Loan paid 4,739.61
Advanie tu tontiactor for construction activities 2200323 220052

Bills ad usted for ronstruct.on actant e
Irn the egimian of the Board the Jurrent Assets, Loans and Advances ars rot .ess than the stated value f reslised in ordinary course ot

businesy The provston {er all known | abilities 's adegadte and not o euy 2 the amount reasorably necessary There is no (onungent
I8 y eacept staled gnd informed by the Manggement

o proceeding Fas bean imitiated or pending against the company fur hoiing any benarm propeny urder the Benami Transacuions
(Probrbrt.on) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rules madde thergunder

The company have not been declared willul defaulter by ary lender troie whom tunds have been borrowed.

The campany does not any knowledge of amy transactions or balances with companies struck off under secrion 248 of the Companies Act,
200113 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1856, hence no disclosure have been made

Campany does not have any subsidrary as delineo ufs 2{87) and hence gquestion of widation of number of layars prescnbed under dause
(Bholsechion 200 A read witn Companies [Restraction on number of Layers) Rules 2017 does not arise.

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosu

Particulars at at 31st March, 2023 Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
Nor Current
Other fingnoal as: e, 1K00.00
Current

Trade recevablos -
LCashand Lash equivatents 1,642 b
Other Fanancial Assets

It Financiat Assets BSH1w32 66 -

Financial Liak hties
MNor Cyrrent
Borrowings -

Other financiai habilities -

Current
Burriwings 579,09k 25 -
Trade and ather payables H, 280 00
Other hinandal habilities - -
Total Financial LiabHities ELr .l L]

Capital Requiremeants

for Lhe purpose of the Company's capital management cagtal incuthes msucd eguity capity | Juity
reserves attribatatle o the equity nolders of the Compdany The ponidry ubje 1 we of the Con € maxmsg
the sharehatder value

The Company manages s & structure and makes adjostrrents i lght of changes in ecor rmenis of



IRDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
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Notes to the financial statements {In Hundreds}

the findnoa covenants To mantar ar adjust the capita structure, the Company fiay @ 52 the diidend payment to sharanclaers,
return fapal o shareholders or 1ssoe new shares, The Company monadors rapital using a geanng rato, witich 5 net debt givized by tatal
capital plus et debt. The Company incluges within net debit, interest beanng .cans ang borrowings. trade and other payables less cash
and Lash sguivalents

Particulars 31st March, 2023

Borm\fvings fleng-term and shori-term. including  current 579,984 29
maturities of 1ong term borrowings)

Trade payatbes 2.280.00
Less: Cash and Cash eguivalents

Net debt 988,264.29
Eqquity <hare capuital 10,000.00
Othar equity 15046 i
Total Capital 9,493 94
- : . _ 0.01

the Company s ramial managenent, snungs! other things asms to ensore that F meets
findnoral covenants artached 1o the irbarest-beaning inans and borrow.ngs that deline tap Lal structure requirements Breaches n
meeting the linanctal covenants would permit the bank tommediately o 1ars gl barn gy There have beer no breaches o the
finanreal Lavenants of any interest-beanng loams and porrowing w the cureent penod

40  Disclosure of Financial tnstru 5
Financlal risk management ohjectives and ]

The Company's grincipal irancal habilities comprise loans and boernewings, trade and other payalies The main purpose of these
finar gl habilities is to fingnce and support Company s operations Tne Campany’s prnoipal fingnos) assets include trade and ather
recenvables, cash and cash equivalents angd loans and adwanies and refondable deposits that denve directly from s operations

The Company & exposed to market nsk, credit risk and iguidity nsk The Company’s serior management oversees the management af
these ks The Lomipany’s serior managerment sees that the Campany’s Hidnd il nisk attsvities are governed by appropriate pohoss and
uracadonag and that finangial risks are idenbidied, measourert and managed o accordance with the Comaany’s pohioes and nisk ohechives
Ihe Board of Directocs reviews and agrees policies For managing each of thesp risks, which are summarised helaw:

Market rink:

Market risk s the risk that the fa r value of furure cash flows of 3 fnancal instrument will fluctsarebecagse of changes in ‘narket prices
Market risw compnises twi Types of sk interest rave nskand ather price rigk, such as aguty pr ce nisk and commodityd real pgtate risk
The Compary has not entered into any foreign exchange or commudhity derivative Lontracts. Accordingly, there s no signfoant pyposure
e Yhe marker rsk other than interest risk.

{1 Interest rate risk

Imterast rate nisk s the rss that the tair vatue ar futore cash Hows of a fin Lonstrument will flucuaes becasse of changes in
market nterest rates The Caompany's exposure to the rs< of changes n market nterest rates re.ates primari y ta the Company ¢
long tertn debi itians with flasting interest rates,

Tt Compdny mandges its nterest rate risk by acorphing tuan, amd burrewings of of fixed rate Most of the borrowings of the
Company are unsecured and at foed rates The Company does not @nter into any interesl rate swaps.

{el] Priee risk

The Company has not made any investments for trading purgowes The surpluses have been deployed in bank duposits ds
explalned above.

Credit nsk
Credit risk 15 the risk that cauntarparty wlill nat meet its nhligations under a fmanaa fastrument ¢ 8 Tovd
hinancesl loss. The Company 1s exposed to credit risk from its operating activities [primarly trade Wanang

activities, i lurding refundable jcint development deposts, security deposds, loans (o employee: BN,
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Motes to the financlal statemants {in Hundreds)

Trade recaivatiles

Recenvables resuittng irgm sale of properties: Customer Credit sk s manaped By requinng customees ty pay advans os befare transfer of

swherstig, therefure, substantially 1 Rating the Company’s ore it risx i this respect
Reee vables resulting from alher thar sale of properiwes Cre Sish ey mandged by each husiness unst subjert 1o the Company's
established pol oy, protedures and cGorol relanmg 1o oesuansr credit nish gement. Quistanding customer recewables are regularly

momitored The mpairment analysisis performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major chents, In addition, z large
number of minor receivabiles are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collzctively. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date s the carrying value of each class of frmanaial 4ssets. The Company does not hold collateral as secunty.
The Company's credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageeng of trade receivablos are o Tollows: {Reter Mote 4 to Fingniclsl Statements)

Depours with banks and finannial inghiutions

Credit r sk From bd ances wilk branks and fegnoal nstitituons i managed by the Companyin accordan.e with the Cormpamy’s policy.
Irvestments of surplus funds ate mace anby with approved Lomterparties ann et liemits assgned 1o each ; gurderparty

Coutiterpariy eradit I are rewrewed Ly the Company's Board of Cradtors on an annual Basis, and My be wpd2ied throgghaul the
year suhject to approsval of the Board The are set to rrufietese the  om entration of fsks and therefore matigate bnancial loss
Irewgh 3 counterparty’s poteoba flure to make payments The Company's maximum exposure to cretht tisk ‘or the zuompoeents of
the statemient of fingncial position at 31510 March, 2023 15 the Carrying amounts,

Liguidity Risk
The Company’s nsestment decmians refating to degloyment of surpbus lgusdeby are gaded by the tenets of safoty, lquality and retoen,
The Company manages 1T+ hquidity risk by ensuring that it will aways have suffiuent 1abelitees when due 0 case of

ShOrt term requirarmants, It abtains shor-term loans from irs Bankees
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ates to & forming part of Financial 5Statements

41 T ancial Ratios:
315t 31st
Nature of Ratio Numerator Denominat March, March % Change
2023 2022
Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.15 NA NA
Reason for Deviation of more than 254%: This is the first financial statement af  incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.
Total borrowings and
Debt Equity Ratic rowing Total equity 103.22 NA NA
lease liabilities
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

Return on Eguity Ratio {in %)

Average
Profit for the year Shareholder's NA NA NA
tquity
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This 15 the first financial statement after incorparation, previous figures are not
availal  for average.
Lross Kevenue rom
P Average
Inventory turnover Ratio (in times) sate of preducts and ) NA NA NA
CrrIrog |nVent0r|ES
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorperation, previous figures are not
availabie for average.

Gross Revenue fram
Trade Receivables turen  rratio (in times)

Average Trade
sale of products and g NA NA NA
] receivables
services
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: Since the company was formed during the year, previous figures are not available for
averdge.

Trade Payables turnover r 3 {in times)

Average Trade
Total Purchase & NA NA NA
payables
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: Since the company was formed during the year, previous figures are not available for
average.

Gross Revenue fram
Net Capial turnover ratio {in times)

Working Capital
sale of products and

{Current assets 0.00
Services

NA MA
Current liabilitios)
Reason fer Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
availabte for averi .

Gross Revenue
Net Profit ratio (in %) from sale of NA NA NA
prod '
se
Reasan for Deviation of more than 25%: The company does not have any reven

erofit for the year
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Motes to & forming part of Financial Statements

Profit hefore interest ,
Return on Capital employed {in %} 2nd taxes Capital empioyed 0.00 NA NA

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%. This is the [irst financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

Time weighted
Income from

Return on investment {in %) average 0. NA NA
investments
Investments
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%. This is the first financial statement afier incorporation, previous figures are not

available for average.

Note : The company does not any fixed installments repayment loan outstanding, hence Debt Service Coverage Ratia in not
reported.

42 The figures of reported have been rounded off in hundreds in accordance with the amended mangdatory requirements of Division i

of Sched 13l except Number of Shares, Number of units, Earmings per share and Ratios

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants For RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Pvt Ltd
Pradeep 1mar Pugaiia

Vineet Kheten Director

Proprietor Mim KA~ NWAENT301

Membership No.060270
Place: 38, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkat~ 7nnnni

Date: LAE L LLIF
Din No.0792938



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Partners of
NIRVANA DEVCON LLP

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the LLP financial statements of NIRVANA DEVCON LLP, which comprise
the balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other expianatory information.

Management's Responsibility of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that gives a true
and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the LLP in accordance with
Accounting Standards and accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and appiication of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial controls relevan 2's preparation of the financial
statements that gives a true and fair view i esign audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also luating the appropriateness of the



accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the LLP as at 31st March, 2023, and its Profit for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
LLP so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d. Inour opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss comply with
the Accounting Standards to the extent applicable.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartetr s
(Firm R '8E)

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023
UDIN: 23060270BGTUIL1084






NIRVANA DEVCON LLP

#/1 Lal Bazar Street

Kolbata 7iH) (0]

LLPIN-AAE-9340)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31/63/2023

Puarticulary Note No, As at A at As at

3! March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
INCOME
Revenoe Inn Projects
Other Income I35 325003 51099496 1861.1k0
[I'uml oo 325,063 5,109,996 1,861,180
EXPENSES
a1 Coat ol Construction 14 21T iR 453 22307409 153212077
tri Change o Inventory 17 (217000 455 1223074648 133,212,677
¢ Fmplovees Benelit Expenses 1R - - -
dy Finance Cost 1 2tidiwg 4537006 [RtHd4
¢ Depreciation and Amortisguon 1 spenses
I't Other Fxpenses U 32,142 [ RRM GBI
|Tula| Expenses 521,142 4,556,433 1,178,863
IPruﬁt befure tax from continuing operativn 272921 553,163 682,317
Income tax Expense
aicurrent Tas 12 4UR, RO 2EANG
b Sl Credit
crDeterred tas LIRS 175000 -
[Iolai lun |- spenses 77,592 185,103 215,000
[Pruﬁt after Tax f  che vear 195329 368060 46707
Other Comprehensive Income
tems that mav net be reclassificd to U statement of profit & Lows
v Changes m Revaluation Surplus
it ncome Lay Refating wr These ltems
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of Tax
Total Comprehensive income

IN TERMSOF QURF 'ORT OF EVEN DATE

For YINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
CHARITTREN ACCOUNTAN S

Fur NIRVANA DEVCON LLP

s~

Ravi Prakash Pincha
1 Destgnoted Pariner)
DIN N, [HK1G4605

Vineet Khetn b
Proprietor
Membership No G602 70

cPesipnated Panner
LN No (H150133]

PMace
Jated















“irvana Deveon LLIP

Statement of Nigoificant Accounling Policies [or the year ended March JE, 20023

Significant Accounling Policies

{21 Matement of compliance
These el stitements are prepared i aecordance with Indian Accointiag Standards (nd AN rotifed oader Compames (ndan Acconntiny
Stndards ) Rules 2005 1o amended from tme to timed motied ender Secton 133 of the € ompanes Ack 2003 "Act Tand other relesant prosisions

{f) functional and presentation currency
These tinancial staiements are presented 1 Indian Rupees (23 which s alse the Compans s Tunctional currency

¢} Basis of messurement
These tinancial statements are prepared under the historical cost consention wi the accrual basis except tor Certan finanaal assets and habalities
measured at fair value trelor accounone policy regarding tinancial mstraments)

td) U s¢ of estimates and judgments

1w preparation of the Compaeny s {inancial statements requires mansgemend o mghe Judpments., estimates and assumptions (hat affect e reporied
amounts al lesenues, eypenses, assels and habdhities, and the accompany mg desclosures, und the disclosure of confingent habihities | stimistes and
underlving ssswmplions are reviewed on wn engoing basis | neertants sboul tiese assumptions dnd esstimaes could resuft i outeomes that reguire a
materitd adjustment o the camying anmounl of assets or hatthites adlocted o tuture penisds. Phe applicalyn of avcounting pebowes Giat reguire
eriteal aecountmg csimates ivolving comples and subective judgments and the use ol assumplions i thes Branesd statemenis base been
disclosed beloss Accounting estinates could chunge from penod 1o peonsd Awisal results coutd ditler Trom oo estnaates dpproprise changes i
estimates are made as mHnagement becomes aware of chatges i cacumstaees surtounding the estmites  Fhe changes i the estmites are reflected
m he finangid stitemerits o the penod @ whuch changes ware made wind. 1t matertal. thewr eficcts are dsclosed mthe noles ey thie Ninancial
statements

Th Revenue from contract with customer

Kesenue Trom conuadts sith customers o recogiised whei o ol ot the goods or semaees wre ranstermed o the customer al an amount that reliects
the coansideration (o which e Company axpedts e be anttled nneschange tor hese poods of senvaes . Bevenoe s measured at the lar salue oi the
consideraliem recernved of reeeivable. net of returns, diseosunis, soluwme rebales and peeds ind somviee s 1 he Company recogmises revenue when
the amount el revenue can be relbly mcasured. i 1s probable ot futere coonomie benelits will Bow o the Company regardless of when the
pas et s benge made

Lhe speci e tecogimbion sriteria desersbed el must also be met betore revenue s recognised.

Sale of Products

Revenue trom sale of products 15 regopnized when the Cempany trmsters the control of goods to the custonier as per the lenms ol contragt | he
Compuny considers whether there are ather promuses 1inthe coniract thal are separate performance obhgaions 1o which o porton ot the
transaction price needs o be allocated  In determuning the iransaction price. the Company considers tle ellects of varahle consideration. the
wuslence eof siguificant financing component non-cash considerations and consideration pasable W the customer Ul amy b i cise o domestie
salus, the company believes that the control gets ransterred L the customer on dispateh of the gacds from e fuctomy amd i vase of exports.
resenue Is recognised on passage of control os per the terms of vontraet  incolenms

Cuntract Balances

T'rade Receissbles

Arecen able represents the Compan, ™ nght o an amount o) consideration st 1s ancondstional (xe. enly the passage of me m requared
betore paymwent of the consuwleration 1w duei




Nirvana Deveon [P
Statemeni of Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended March 31, 2023

Refund Liabifities

A retund lighility is the obhigation to refund some or all of the vonsidersim sueeived {or receivable) from Lhe customer and is measured at the
amount the Company ullimatels sxpects it will have (o retum o the customer The Company updates ity estimates of cefund liabitities (and the
correspanding change in the ransaction price’ at the end of cach reporting period

Nividend income is reevgnized in Statement of Profit and Luss on the date on which the Company s right t receive payment is established.
[nterest maome 18 recopnized using the eftective interest method,

All other inenme are recognized on acerual basys,

I Preperty, Plant & Equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated a1 acywisition cost, less accumuiated depreviation and accumuisted mmpaumnent loss. 1f amy. The cost of
Property. Plant & FFquipment comprises ol i1s purchasc price. includmg impon duties and other nen-relundable taxes or levies and any dmrectly
atrributable cost of bringing the asset 10 its working condition for 115 mtended use. interest and other [Inancial charges on leans borrowed

I'¥) Intangihle Assets

Imtangible Assels acquired separastely are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible Assets acquired in a business comhinanon s valued at
their fwr value at the date of dequisition Following mitial recogaition intangible assels are carmied 21 cost Jess accumulated amortization and
accumulated impatmient Josses, i any

The wsetul [ves of Intangible Assely wre assessed gy cither Hinite or undefine

intangible Assels with (inite Lves are amortized over the useful economue bie and assessed for imparrment whenever there 1s an indication that e
intangible asset may be impatred. The amortization period and the amortization method for an ftangible Asset with a finne useful hite are reviewed
ar the end of each reporting penod. The amontization expense on Intangible Assels with fnite ves 15 recogmzed o the Statemien! of Profll & Loss.
The Compony amortizes intangibie nsseis over their estimated useful Lves using the straiehi line methed.

Imangible Assels wath indeiinte useful lives are not amorbized, bus are lested Tor impairment annuatly eiber individualhy or at (he cash-generaung
unit Jevel The assessment of indefinite hife i reviewed annually 10 determine whether the mdefinte lile conlinues W be supportable 11 nut, the
change in useful life from indefine to finle is made oo a prospecive bass.

Gains or losses ansing (rom derecogrition of an intangible asset are measured as the ditference benween the net disposal provecds and the carmying
amount ol the asset and are recognized i the $tatement of Protit & Loss when the asser 15 derecopmzed.

Y1 Inventories

Inventones are vilued at cost or net reshisable value whichever is lower except {or saleable seraps, whose cost 1s not idenalable, which are valued at
estimauted nel realisuble value Closing stock bns been valued on Weighied Average basts. Cosl comprises expenditure ingurred in the normal course
ol business in bringing such invertories o ils location and neludes. where applicable. appropriate overheads based on normal evel of actaviny,

Net realiseble value 15 the estmated sellimg price i the vrdinary course of business. less estunated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessury W make the sale




Nirvana Deveon TLP
Statement of Significant Accounting Palicies for the veur ended March 31, 2023

A 1 Financiat Instroments

Initial recognition and measucement

Ihe Company recoenizes smancal assets and Bouncial lishititics when it becomes a pany (o the cantraciuzl prossions of the iastrument Al
ngancial assets wd hubihties are recognizad at foe sadue on itlal recogmition. except for tradee recervables which are imialls measured w
rransacton price | ransaction costs that are directh attnibulable o the acguisinen oF issue of financial assels and financial habilities, which are
o at e satbue throwugh priofst o loss, e added o Lhe
acenunted for at trade date

wr value onmitial ieenenition: Repular s purchase and sale of financsal assets are

Subscqueat measurement

i, Saom derisalive financial inslruomeats
a) Financial assets carvied at amortized cost
A financal asset is subsequenthy measured at amortized cost ifan s hehd sothm a business nodel whiose objective s & hold the asset inoordes
v collect contractusl cash Nosss and the contractual ms of the finaneal asset give nase un speariiod dates o cash fhows that are solels
payments of principal wnd mterest on the principal amoeunt ontsandimg

b) Financial assels at [ir valae through other comprehensive inceme

A financial asset s subseyguently, mieasoresd at Gae value through other comprehensive meome 110t s held within o husmess model swhiese
abjevtive v achiesed by both calieetng contractual cash Mo and selling financial assets and the contractoal lerms of e fancial asset e
rise on spectiied dites to cash liws that are solely payments of princepal and mterest on the prncipal amount outstaodme The € supany has
made an revacable election Tor ats mvestments i are classilied as equils instrametis o presem the subsequent chumges in fair salue in

¢) Financial assets at [air saluc through profit or loss
A financral asset whivi i~ por classified moany of the sbove citegornes wre subsequentby fair valued through prodit or loss

d) Financial liabilities

Financial hahbifives are subsequently carmied ar amorized vost wsang she effective imters~t method, esepr for contngent consederation
recogmized 1 a busitess combinnaton whicl is subsequenty mesgured @ far value throaph profit and ivss For rade and ;her pasables
maturing within ane year from the Balance Sheel dale. the carnone amounts approximate Gwe salue doe o the short matury of theswe
nstnments

¢} Inveximent in subsidiarics

Inventment i sabswhiares s carrwed af cost i the separate Tmmceal statenents

il. Derivative financial instruments
Ihe Company holds denvatise financtal mstrements such as foraign exchange torward and option contracts by mitipat: the risk of changesn
exchange rates on lorengn currency exposures huch dersatinee financial msirements are intialls recognwed ar fanr sabue on the dae on which
g dernsalive conlract 15 entered nte and are subsequent!y re-meusured at 1air value through prodit or Liss and the resnlting exchange gamns or
lusses are included o uther meoine.

Derecognition of linancial instruments

The company dereengiiizes o linangid asset when the contravtogl rights o the cish Aows fron the Gnancial asset expire or # transters the
tinancial a0t and the wauster gualilies for derecogniion under ind AN 18 A financia habiliy sor a part ot 2 financial habilityy s
derecognized trom the ©ampany's Balanes Sheet when tie obbganon speciied i the conract s discharged or cancelled or exprres.

YED bair Vafue Measurement

The Company uses vulusien technugues that are appropriate 1 the aircunstances amd for which suificwent Jdata are oy arfable 1o measure tur value
mamwine Gie use ol relesant vhsernvable inputs and minmizing the use ol ugobservable mputs Al methods ol wssessing far value resslt m
pereral approsaniton ol vafue and soch value may never awetvally be realized

Al wesets and habihties for which e valee 15 measured or desclosed m the Tinapeal statements are cateponizad wittan e Far value hierarely
duseribed as follows. based on the lowest tevel input that is significant 1o the finr value measurement o< i1 whale

1 Level 1 — Queled tunadjusied r market prices i acuse markets for denucad assets o hablties

 Level 2 — Valuation technigees o whuch the losest lesel siput tiat s sigmilicant o e Gur value measurement is directls or indirectly
nbwers able

mrlevel 30 Valuaton techimgues For which the foaest bevel inpat han s segmtacant to the tars sabue moasbirenant s unobser able













Nirvana Deveon LLP
Statement of Sigoificant Aceounting Puolicies for the year ended March 31, 2025

XY 1) Curreat and Non-currcnt classificatiun
Ihe Company presents assets and hablities i the Balance Sheet based oncurrent non-comvent classelication

AN assels clissilied as curment when 1,
1 expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed i the normal uperating esele.
v held primarily for the purpose of trading,
iy expeciad o be realised within pwelve months atter the reporiing period. or
1ty uash or cash equivalents unless restricted frem bemng exchanged or wsed o settie a habihiy for at east twehe months alter the repanmg pennd

A hakihib is classified as curment whien s
Tt s expectedd Lo be seitled inothe normal operatme ovlle
L £ due 10 Pe settled wottim bwebve months after the reportinge perod or
i there 18 o unconditiood right W deter settfement of the liabilins for at least tvebve months alter the reporting perand

Adl other habihines are classilivd as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and habilities are classified as noncurment

AN Dividend
Provision is made tor the amount of any dividend declarad beng appropnatehy authonsed and no longer an the diseretion of the entity. on or betore
the end of the reporting periad but not distnhuted at the end ot the ceporting penad

A\ Rounding of A\maunts
Al amounts disclosed in the standalone Financial Statentents and netes have been rounded ot te the oearcst thousands as peT the reguirement of
Sciredule T undess uthetwise stated

A Ad} Reeent Aceounting Pronouncements

Mimstry of Corporate Affurs ¢"MOC A" potifics new standards or amendmems 1o 1he existing standards under Companies (Indian Avcounting
Standardst Rules as issued trom e to tme O March 31 2023 MO A amended the Companics tHndian Accounting Standards ) Amendiment
Rules, 2023, ax tollows

Ind A% | - Presentation of Financial Starements - This amendmen reguires the entities o dischse thar material acoountigg policies satier tha ther
siEmiicant accounung policics. The etiective date for adopt of this amendment 15 annnal perods begrnnme eioor after April 1. 2023 The
vompans has evaluated the smendment and the impact of the amendment s ieagmificant in the standalone financis stalements.

Ind AS ¥ - Aceounimg Policwes, Changes in deeounitng bsaimates and 1rors - This amendment Bas intridoced o defimtion of aceountmyg estimates’
and included amendments o Ind AN ¥ @0 help entities disuggish changes 1 accounung pelicies from changes m aceountig estimaies The
ellevtine Jdate Tor adoption utb this anteadiment is annual penieds begmmng on or atter Aprd 12023 The compamy has e aluated the amendment apd
there i no ampact an s standaloane Dnan il statements.

Ind A% 12 - fncome Taxes - s anendiment has narmowed the scope ol the 1 so thal 1t does nat apphy to (ransactums
thit grve nse fo equal and offsetting tempuzary diifeeenees The effective dut Iment 15 annudl periods begmning on or




“otes to the lnancisl statements for the year ended 30st March 2023

21

12

22

24

Finuacial Risk Managemeni
Ihe LL P~ Aetivenies expose 1w ligidity sk and credit nsk eperdoonat and busimess sk The sources of fishs which the
[1P 45 enposed to and how the |} P manages the rish s as follow

Market rish

Mitrket risk s the eish that the fan value of future cashe Shows of o financial iostrement wall Tuclate becavse of changes m
markel peces Tn the vase of L] P market visk promandy impact finsneal instraments measured at Gzir vatue through profic
o loss

Interest rate sk that the Lar value of futore cash oses of g finacaad instrument with Hoctuale becaese of change n
market interest raies. {he [ 11" has explosure o the nsk af chanzes 1in nuarhet interest rate

Credit Risk
Credit rsh s the sk thal the counterparty woll not mceel is nhlifgabions under a {inancial mstrntient vf o customer conitagl
leadmg w o Nnancial Joss

| igwidits rish

Diguodity nsk s defimed sy the sk that the LLEP sall oot B able to able to setile or meet1ts abhigations on time or s 4
reasonable pnice. The LLIP munages its lgquidits regurement by analy sing the matunty pattern of the L1Ps cash ow of
financial assets and tinancial hahihtes. the LIS objective 1s to mamtan a balance bent con contmwny of funding and
flextbliny

Helated Party disclossures

List of Related Parly and Relationship
RDB Realiv & Infrastructure | Ld (97%)

Ray Constructions Projects P11 ed 3%

Related Farty I'rumsaction Current Previcus
Year Yeur
Loan Received

RNB Realty & Iselrastrocture §id | E29300000) 42 IRNOG0IH)

Lasn Hefund
ROB Healty & Inirastructure |14 TuTdd Snin RISGIHUO

Clossing Current Capital

RDE Realty & Intrasirugtare §ad EERRSRIN 2471511

Contigent Liabilties

The FI I Fhas ner contigent [ atubtes

Cortespandmyg Tigure of the previous vear have been re-grouped wherever necessars W conlimm w current vear's bipures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Partners of
RDB CHENNAI REALTORS LLP

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the LLP financial statements of RDB CHENNAI REALTOR SLLP, which
comprise the balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that gives a true
and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the LLP in accordance with
Accounting Standards and accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financiai statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountanis of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial controls relevant s preparation of the financial
statements that gives a true and fair view ir sign audit procedures that are



appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overail presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit @ ence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the LLP as at 31st March, 2023, and its Profit for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
LLP so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d. inour opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss comptly with
the Accounting Standards to the extent applicable.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA V[NEEII T I MY
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 25" Day of May 2023
UDIN: 23060270BGTUJD2067









RDB C HENNALREALTORSLLE

8.1 Eal Bazar Street
Kolhata ™00 301
LIPIN-AAZ-RTYT

~- 1 -
Can\a Si-Jdln N 31/03/2023
Particulars A5 at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1} Cash Flows from Qperating Activities
Profis sor tra year 07353032 1730032
Adjusimers for:
Cepratiation ard ATgrrsatior Expeases .
Intefast Incoma
CperatingProfit before working Capital Change 5736639 -9736639
Adjauimes s for Increass Dacr—aes T CEerEd Mg assm,
Inwantaries -30554043%
Trade Recevaales 1,423 9209 -
Othar Currert Fingrcial Assats 2E7L3561 124 230,1558)
Other Current Assets -2117¢843 -2311748
Adjustmert for increase/Dacr2ase n operal ng Lianilities
Tragde Payable 18133590 3,160,852
Other Currert Financial Liata ties 6205628 -
Other Current Liabiliziss 1171437 28,655
Cash Generated from Operations 5229238 (41,558,5895)
tlreome Tax 2a'dl
Net Cash used in/Generated by Operating activities 5229238 -41558095
11} Cash Flows from investing activities
Additions ta Fropecty. AT and Egqu pment 28763 0
Intarest ‘negTe o]
Net Cash{used infGenerated by Investing activities -24368 0
I} Cash Flows from Financial Activities
M=t Raaaymen: of Borrow ~g) -134394C 41513184
Interesi Aan
Net Cash{used infGenerated by financial activities (4,849,940) 41,612,184
I'¥i Nat nzregse/Coc-paca ncash and Cask Equivalants 334330 53189
V) Casmard sz~ equivalaets at the beginning of the year 331187 G
Wiy Cask and cash ezuvalants at [~2 and of (ne yugr 433113 53139
Cask and Cash Equivalents constitute
Bzlance with Barks

Current Accsaris 453119 53180

Fixgz Depost

CashinHa~d
N TERMS OF OJUR REPORIT OF FVEN DATE
Far VINFET KHETAN & ASSOOIATES For RDBCHENNATREALTORS LY
CHARTERFIF AL NLEANTS
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Memberslip beo a2

Flaee
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25 Corresponding hgure of the pravious yvear huve heen re-aroupe.d whereser pecessarny to contirm o current yvenr's
figures
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L
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